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CORPORATE INFORMATION
LFIEH

LEGAL ADVISERS
As to Hong Kong Law
Stevenson, wWong & Co.

As to Cayman Islands Law
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

Prism Hong Kong Limited

with effect from 4 December 2024

Public Interest Entity Auditor registered in accordance with the
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SHAREHOLDERS' INFORMATION
Share listing

The Company's shares are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Ordinary Shares (as at 31 December 2024)

Shares outstanding: 1,299,276,000 shares
Nominal value: HK$0.01 per share

INVESTOR RELATIONS CONTACT
Email address: ir@ccnewlife.com.cn

STOCK CODE
9983
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Central China New Life Limited (hereinafter referred to as “CCNL”
or the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries hereinafter
referred to as the "Group”, stock code: 9983.HK) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 16 October 2018 as an
exempt company with limited liability, which was listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) on 15 May 2020 (the “Listing Date"). On 19
April 2021, CCNL was included as a constituent in the Hang Seng
Property Service and Management Index.

We are the largest property management service provider in
central China region (being a geographical region that covers the
central area of China, including the provinces of Henan, Hubei,
Hunan, Jiangxi, Shanxi and Anhui) by total gross floor area
("GFA") under management as at 31 December 2024 and total
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2024. Throughout three
decades of operating history, we have significantly grown our
business and operations. We believe our prospects and the
pursuit of better living experience and lifestyle by the people in
Henan are inseparable. We believe our well-established operating
history affords us a trusted and reputable brand which in turn
enables us to continue to offer a full spectrum of services that
can satisfy our customers’ diverse needs and effectively improve
their living quality.

As at 31 December 2024, our property management and value-
added services covered all 18 prefecture-level cities in Henan as
well as multiple provinces and cities such as Hebei Province, and
we served more than 2.6 million property owners and residents
in 1,121 properties. We manage a diversified portfolio of
properties, including residential and commercial properties,
office buildings, gyms, special towns, rural complexes, schools,
hospitals, parks, the “Three Supplies and Property Management”
project, urban services and industrial parks, etc.. We have been
ranked 11th among the Top 100 Property Management
Companies in China for four consecutive years since 2021.
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CORPORATE PROFILE
]y

We focus on serving our customers’ diverse needs and enriching
the list of goods and services within the geographic areas which
we cover: where they stay, where they travel, what they eat and
how they relax. We believe our competitive edge is the extensive
network of goods and services we offer, coupled with our deep
understanding of market demands and our capabilities in data
analytics. Through frequent interactions with our customers, we
have gained a deep understanding of customer needs and
preferences. Combined with our strong resource consolidation,
online-to-offline synergy and cross-selling capabilities, we are
able to identify and deliver desirable services and products within
our network and constantly refine our offering to better satisfy
customer needs. By providing these services, we are able to
aggregate significant consumer information which helps us cater
to our customers with more tailor-made services.

Over the years, we have received numerous awards in
recognition of our service quality. According to the research
results of 2024 China Top 100 Property Management Companies
issued by China Index Academy (7 #£ & %% Bx) and China Real
Estate TOP 10 Research Group (7 Bl &= 1 & TOP 109t 48), we
were awarded titles of “2024 China Top 100 Property
Management Companies (TOP 11) (2024 FF B ¥ 2 R TE A s > %
BB TOP 11)”, “2024 TOP 10 Companies by Services among Top
100 Property Management Companies in China (2024 /B #7 2 AR
B EBMEREHETOP 10), and “one of TOP 5 2024 Leading
Growing Companies among Top 100 Property Management
Companies in China (2024 R B 3 RI§ B > ER R MEE L
% TOP 5)." Furthermore, according to the Research Results on
China’s Listed Real Estate Companies in 2024 (2024 /1 B = i &
£ A B3 B &) published by China Enterprise Evaluation
Association, the Institute of Real Estate Studies of Tsinghua
University and the Information Technology Research Institute of
Beijing China Index Academy, we were awarded titles of “2024
China TOP 10 Listed Property Service Management Companies
by Comprehensive Strength (2024 R BI¥)# Ak1% LT ARIGREE
FITOP 10)" and “2024 China Listed Property Service Enterprise
with Excellent Investment Value (2024 2 B _+ ¥ ¥ RS EE
BEFEE)"

We believe our three main business lines, namely property
management services, community value-added services and
value-added services to non-property owners, echo with the
Group's core value, which is to root in central China and confer
benefit on the people.
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MAJOR EVENTS |
XERL

Major Events of Central China 2024 FEEMEFKST
New Life (CCNL) in 2024

01 > JANUARY —H

In January, to strengthen CCNL's on-site management services, CCNL launched a 60-day special campaign to enhance
the quality of on-site management services, further refining its on-site management system to provide higher-quality
services to customers.

1H - RE{tBRERSRY  BEHEEREABORNEGREMERAZIETE  E—PTERENTETRSE
HRR  ARPREEEHENRE -
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MAJOR EVENTS
XERL

02 > FEBRUARY —H

In February, due to a cold wave, heavy snowstorms swept across multiple regions of Henan Province. CCNL responded
swiftly, working overnight to clear the snow and ensure the safe travel of property owners.
2R REFHTE  ESMEERSRE  BENEELRTY  ERBFES - TEEILT -

In February, CCNL's lifestyle services made a breakthrough in the group meal business, rapidly expanding community
dining services. By the end of its first year, the business had achieved a coverage rate of 17% and generated revenue of
nearly RMB20 million.

2R BREFAEEERRBAFEERY ERAEIGHRE HEREKZERBE SREREFEBEEX
17% » WAFRIEL 2,000 & 7T °
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MAJOR EVENTS
XERL

03> MARCH = A >

In March, CCNL extended the long-running “Yellow River Tree Planting Day” public welfare initiative into its managed

communities. Property owners — both adults and children — planted flowers and trees, connected with nature, and

worked together to create a greener, more beautiful home.

3R E%%ﬁiéﬂ%ﬁ%T%{FEI’JFEFJ"**EWEDMI:{’E%EE&%E/*)\ I REERRE - KPDEEMTREERICER -
BOER  HEGSRANEERRE -
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MAJOR EVENTS
XERL

04> APRIL M A

In April, CCNL launched the Spring Renewal Initiative in its communities. By leveraging technological and smart
solutions, it continuously improved various micro-scenes related to honour guards, cleaning, maintenance, landscaping,
and housekeeping, making life more convenient for property owners and enhancing their overall happiness.

AR BEFEEREETRNTY  BAME  B2LFE  BEEE - RZR - #1E&  &t BEXETRAFY
BB —EE SR BREFAE  BRAEETERK -

In April, CCNL, in collaboration with the One Book Foundation of Henan Charity General Federation, initiated a book
donation campaign for property owners at Zhengzhou Jianye Sky Mansion Community, establishing “CCNL Starlight
Book Corners” to ignite children’s curiosity and inspire their dreams.

4R BENEFBMESTEEAESHE AEESUEYN  EFEXRE I EAMEFTRHEBEEREE - BIE@EFE
EEXBEA] OB BEERFMAOREIVNMR - BHE-—ESEE T -
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MAJOR EVENTS
XERL

y/

In May, to further strengthen the security awareness of night patrol honour guards at project sites, enhance urban
service quality, and create a safer community environment, CCNL's teams across Henan Province launched the “Zero-
Hour Operation” in a coordinated effort. This initiative included mutual night patrol inspections, ensuring that every
security checkpoint was tested against the strictest standards.

5 RTE—SPRICEAERMEELZENHEES  ROWTRERBKT SERIFHOLERZDIRE - BEFHEEF
BAFTHTHE—1TE - ARERTE  ERREES ARRTHEERRE KL -
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MAJOR EVENTS
XERL

06> JUNE 7< A

In June, to continuously improve community services, CCNL coordinated efforts across all projects under management
to launch the “Jade Polishing Campaign”, focusing on hardware upgrades, landscaping improvements, road repairs, and
equipment renewals to enhance the living environment and increase property owners’ comfort and happiness.

6R  RFBERABEBRBKT BEFEERERDAIELEEER  BEEGAR  RRE  BREW  RER
MEZHERPAREETE  TEHREXFEERBHBRAZ T FZEBETERK -
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MAJOR EVENTS
XERL

07> JULY £ B >

In July, relentless heavy rainstorms caused flooding in many parts of Henan Province. In response, CCNL teams
remained on the frontlines, building safety barriers with their own hands, demonstrating unwavering commitment and
responsibility in the face of natural challenges.

7R RMERNEERNBIESZMESLFLE EESHEEANKEBGD  BENEBARTHA—F AEF
FRLE2FE  BTPH2BEMEE -

BEFEEERAT / B IEER 13




MAJOR EVENTS
XERL

08> AUGUST /\ A

In August, to celebrate its 30th anniversary, CCNL hosted the “Neighbourhood Family Banquet & Birthday Feast” across
18 cities in Henan Province and even in Hainan Island, nearly 2,000 kilometers away. Over 300 Neighbourhood Family
Banquet brought together nearly 50,000 property owners and families, allowing them to share joy and celebrate three
decades of partnership with CCNL.

A BEFEEREMKI=TEF BRTHEARE - AHEEFD  WTmEAA T/ ERTIRTREINNE
ME —HZRRIERAOSEEREL ) REHRAR TASEETRA  BENEE  BE -2 ABEEKRE
B3R R AR F HOE M B0 F R T K o

In August, CCNL focused on solving daily inconveniences for property owners by launching ten thoughtful service
initiatives, including circuit inspections and equipment maintenance, ensuring a better quality of life for residents.

A BEFHERBREXFABLENT BLBEBEREBRA  BERESETHEEBRORE - AR FETERH [/
B BEFHETEENRAE RAR -
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MAJOR EVENTS
XERL

09> SEPTEMBER LB >

In September, when Typhoon Yagi made landfall in Hainan as an exceptionally powerful typhoon, CCNL quickly
mobilized emergency teams, conducting comprehensive inspections and response measures to ensure property
owners' normal daily lives.

98 BB [EB] UEINBAREARERETH  BEFEELZES  KIRT 2EHE BRI EEY 8
NRBEEHEFEE
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MAJOR EVENTS
XERL

In September, CCNL launched the “Good Life” Initiative, introducing various measures such as the Good Life Pass, Good
Life Rider Map, Good Life Refueling Station, and Good Life Takeaway Storage Area. The initiative called on property
owners, delivery riders, and industry peers to actively respond to government efforts in building rider-friendly
communities and ensuring smooth last-100-meter delivery access.

O  BEMAEEE [XAaE | BFE  WHENEFERBTE  XFEERFHE - EAEEMmLL - R44EE
INEBFRESZEREE  REEF  RWF  TERTERERBUNRE - £EITE [RFRFELR]  5E&%1%100

N

7N e

In September, A total of 431 “"Neighbourhood Family Mid-Autumn Banquets” were held, bringing together 48,690
residents under the CCNL family, where they raised their glasses to the moon and celebrated Mid-Autumn Festival
together.

OA AN GEETNEENEARE - PUEEEFRRE @ 4860 ANFRBZEHEE  EE2ETEFTARERE - £ E

A REHM -
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MAJOR EVENTS
XERL

10> OCTOBER 1+ A >

In October, during the National Day holiday, CCNL launched the “Neighbourhood Family Banquet — National Day Feast”
initiative, incorporating various cultural elements to express patriotism. Activities such as “100-meter Scroll for the
Motherland” painting event, Red Song Chorus, and Creative Sports Games created a strong sense of national pride and
celebration, earning two consecutive reports on CCTV (China Central Television).

108  BIEHME  ZEHEEHLE (MEERE - BEZE] TBEH  UEAUEABREREE - @B [ KkRE
RER ] 8E  ATWMEXEEE IR ENEEFCRE  BEE[RERAE|WRESRE  HHRERSEEMKX

B -
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MAJOR EVENTS
XERL

11 > NOVEMBER +—A >

In November, CCNL launched the “This Is My Home"” Photography Contest, receiving 4,248 original photography
submissions from property owners. With a total participation of 150,000 people, property owners showcased the beauty
of "home” through tens of thousands of photographs, expressing their deep love for life.

MA - BEFNEFERENRIBYARERT 428 BETBERTECHRAIBEZER - 15BARMARRE - 2
IR LERERERT [RIBHET  RETHARNHERAE -
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MAJOR EVENTS |
XERL

12 > DECEMBER +—H

In December, CCNL continued its long-standing “Warm Winter Action — Love for Farmers” initiative, which has been
running for decades. We procured over 800,000 catties of seasonal vegetables and distributed them free of charge to
property owners.

128 BEMAGEERAECEEHTFEEN [BLTH—BODEIEY  EERBOBRETEEZRY 28D
BIaEE -
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MAJOR EVENTS
XERL

CENTRAL CHINA HAPPY TIMES
BEZRERAE

In 2024, the Central China Happy Times activities adopted a dual-core approach, integrating “Culture + Services” to
elevate property management from basic services to emotional connections.
20245 BREFRFE/NBEBA [+ R EHmESH RO - BERYEBERERRBERBRUEEZNREE -

Throughout the year, the Central China Happy Times community culture development system continued to deepen,
with “Home Culture” at its core. Centered around themes such as “Neighbourhood Family Banquet” and “This Is My
Home", a total of over 9,700 events were held, attracting more than 810,000 participants.

2F  BEERRLENEMEERBRBEFERCUTRUE] Bzl U IMEERE] [ERERNOKR] AXE - HE
EB)HET9,7008815 - 2EAKERE -
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MAJOR EVENTS
XERL

ACTS OF KINDNESS AND GOOD DEEDS
WAFE

In 2024, in the communities under the management of CCNL, employees performed a total 10,162 acts of kindness
good deeds of serving property owners, with 2,941 pennants, 977 thank-you notes, and 6,244 phone calls for praise
from property owners. Countless little things of serving the property owners built a warm and solid barrier.

20245 - BENHEFEE DR HETAE10162MREEEATF AL S - EEARBIE2041E - BRIAEF9775 - HibE
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MAJOR EVENTS
XERL

EXPANDING PROJECTS
SMRTEE

In 2024, CCNL leveraged its scale advantages, resource strengths, and brand influence to further expand its presence in
the third-party property management market. Upholding the principle of high-quality development, the company
optimized its business structure, not only achieving a diversified and balanced revenue stream but also laying a solid
foundation for the expansion of multi-sector businesses.

20245 - BEFERRDEEAMRED EREVBNRETE N - EE=ZFIMREBEIFERM - RAHBKER
SRESERES  BRABCERLERE  TEERTWARENZ TS  ERAZTEBNARETE TREER -
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AWARDS AND HONOURS
BRERRE

MAJOR HONOURS OF CCNL IN BENETE 2024 F T LS
2024

1. ChinaIndex Academy, adhering to the principles of fairness, objectivity and comprehensiveness and based on the
scientific methodology system, conducted a comprehensive research on the outstanding Property Management
enterprises in Henan Province on 4 January 2024. It released a series of rankings such as “2023 Top 30 Enterprises
by Property Management Scale in Henan Region”, and CCNL was awarded the “2023 Top 30 Enterprises by
Property Management Scale in Henan Region (TOP 1)” and “2023 Leading Enterprises of Public Buildings Projects
in Henan Region (TOP 1)".

1. 202451 A48 RIERAERFAQL  FE - 2EMFRA - EREENFEAERETHEEESYERBLEE
TERETTT - BT [2023FE N RIEMEEEREIRDE | FRTIHEHR - BENETRE[2023FE T
RV EEIRRRI0EBZE(TOP 1)) » [2023FE A MRS AEYEFIBELME (TOP 1)) 8215 -

2. The 2024 China Top 100 Property Management Enterprises Research Conference, hosted by China Index Academy
and China Real Estate TOP 10 Research Group, was held in Beijing on 18 April 2024. With its outstanding service
quality and continuous business innovation, CCNL was awarded “2024 Top 100 Property Management Companies
in China (11th)”, “2024 China Top 10 Property Management Companies in terms of Business Size” and “Top 5
2024 China Leading Property Management Companies in terms of Growth Potential”.

Meanwhile, CCNL's managed projects, Zhengzhou Jianye Haima Jiuru Mansion and lJianye King of The City,
Nanyang, were named the “2024 China Five-star Property Service Project”.

2. 202454 F18H - B IEMRE - FEFEMETOPIOHFT AP 2024 EIMERB EREEATKRE |
AL REBIT - EEMEE AR S MR mEMITEN XA - B 2024 PEMERBAREEIF 1146
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AWARDS AND HONOURS
BERRE

3. The Press Conference on Research Results of “China’s Listed Real Estate Companies in 2024 and the 22nd Urban-
Industrial Integration Investment and Financing Conference” was grandly held on 16 May 2024. The event was
organized by the China Enterprise Evaluation Association, the Institute of Real Estate Studies of Tsinghua
University, and the China Index Academy, and hosted by the China Real Estate TOP10 Research Group of China
Index Academy.

CCNL was awarded the titles of “2024 China Excellent Listed Property Management Company by Investment
Value™ and “2024 China TOP 10 Listed Property Management Companies in terms of Comprehensive Strength.”

3. 202453168 AHRBECEFERHT BEABEWENRA - bt RHPIEEBRITMAIEREN - LR EE
BT 7T b Bl B A TOP10 A st 4B i ) [2024 R Bl B E E AR R EMSEE — T EEMR
EEMERE ] BECAR BFMETELRE (202440 H LMY ERBICEBEESLE]  [2024FE EHA A
IREEHTOP10] T8oR -

4. The “CREIS 2024 China Real Estate Market Trend Seminar” was hosted by the China Index Academy on 4 July
2024. Due to its excellent operational capability and professional service standards, CCNL was awarded the “2024
Leading Enterprise in Property Service Quality in Henan”.

4. 20247 A48 FHRIERFPEEENERENNTEREFE202UEEMSBERES - EEFETRIESEHW
B EE NFEZEMRFSKTE - E 20240 FEMERGESBLEZE] -
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AWARDS AND HONOURS
BRERRE

5. The 2024 Press Conference on Research Results of Real Estate Brand Value in China & the 21st China Real Estate
Brand Development Summit, hosted by the China Enterprise Evaluation Association, the Institute of Real Estate
Studies of Tsinghua University, and the China Index Academy and organised by the China Real Estate TOP 10
Research Group of China Index Academy, was convened in Xiong'an New Area on 13 September 2024. At the
conference, the 2024 China Property Service Brand Value Research Output was released. CCNL was honored
“2024 Outstanding Brand Enterprise in Public Property Management Services in China”, “2024 Leading Brand
Enterprise in Specialized Operation of Property Management Services in China”, “2024 Property Management
Excellent Brand in Henan™ and “2024 Brand of Property Management Companies in Central China”.

5. 202459 R13H - AMBRENERE BERSREMEMRER - L RPEEERMARR N - tRFEE
BB FTbe A B S 4 EE TOP 107 FE Al ) [2024 RIS HE Mm@ BEM AR EMEEE — T —EHEE
WEMMERRE] EETTREEEM - & L8 TCQ02UAPEEHEREmEEBERTRE) - BRALE
R [2024 P BEIREMERBGEImEEE] - (2024 EYHERBEX(CELBLRELE ] (20240 B
R A mEEE ] [2024 W B R IR FE RN meE B | fE5R -

6. The 2024 China Real Estate Big Data Conference cum 2025 China Real Estate Market Trend Seminar, hosted by
China Index Academy and organised by CREIS and China Property Service Index System, was held in Beijing on 19
December 2024. With its strong comprehensive strength, Henan Central China New Life Service Co., Ltd. won
titles including the “2024 Leading Property Management Companies in Central China in terms of Market Position
(Top 1)" and “2024 Property Management Companies in Henan Province in terms of Market Position (Top 1)”.

6. 2024F12R198 - dRIERPIEERRMMARE N - PEBEMERBZES - P EYERGEBERFANME2024
hEEMEABBFEE205PEEMENT SBERES | B REERM - IEEREFIEERBERAFR
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AWARDS AND HONOURS
BRI FHE

Awards and Honors of Central China Property Management in 2024
2024 FEREWERIERRE

No. Year Honour Awarded by Awarded to

o BREH KREEH KB EREE A

1 January 2024 2023 Outstanding Property Management Jianye Spring Time
Housings Property Project  Association of Xuchang Xinyuan, Changge

1 20241 A 03FEEFEETYMHEE HETVESENE RE  BEBRREN
B

2 January 2024 2023 Outstanding Public Property Management Yuhua Experimental
Property Project Association of Xuchang School, Xuchang

2 202441 A 0B3FEFEAELNHYEE FETHEERHE FEFEERER
B

3 January 2024 2023 Outstanding Property Management Jianye King of The City,
Housings Property Project  Association of Xuchang Xuchang

3 20241 A BFEEFETWERE FETHEREEHE T2 - BESHRMI
=i

4 January 2024 2023 Outstanding Property Management Jianye Chinoiserie Palace,
Housings Property Project  Association of Xuchang Xuchang

4 20241 A 03FEEFEETYMEE HETVESENE FTE - BEMFT
B

5 January 2024 2023 Outstanding Property Management Xuchang Branch, Central
Enterprise in Property Association of Xuchang China Property
Management Industry Management

5 2024F 1 A 023FEMERBITESLE FETHEERHE BEWEFEH A
EE

6 January 2024 Outstanding Enterprise Of Property Management Nanyang Jianye Luyuan
2023 Association of Nanyang Property Management Co.,

Ltd.
6 20241 A 20235 EEEDE HESTYEERHE MEEEGIMEERERA
Al

7 January 2024 Nanyang Property Services  Housing and Urban-Rural Jianye Happy Time,
Residential Property Development of Nanyang Nanyang
Demonstration Project

7 2024 F 1 A EETMERSEENE EEMERRTMESRE BE - E2EFRE
TEBIE H
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No. Year Honour Awarded by Awarded to
i BREH REEE TR EHERE HA
8 January 2024 Nanyang Property Services  Housing and Urban-Rural Jianye Forest Peninsula,
Residential Property Development of Nanyang Dengzhou
Excellent Project
8 20241 A EETYERBEEIME EEmEEMmEERE BN BERNES
B51EE
9 January 2024 Nanyang Property Services  Housing and Urban-Rural Jianye Park, Tanghe
Residential Property Development of Nanyang
Excellent Project
9 202441 A EETYERBEEME BETEERNETERE RO - AR
BFIEE
10 January 2024 Nanyang Property Services  Housing and Urban-Rural Jianye Park, Xixia
Residential Property Development of Nanyang
Excellent Project
10 202441 A HETOEREBEEYNE BEEHEEMEHERE PRI - EENERE
BHAIEE
11 January 2024 Outstanding Enterprise of Property Management Nanyang Branch, Central
2023 Association of Nanyang China Property
Management
1 20241 A 0235 EBEDE HESTYEERHE BEMEES D AT
12 January 2024 Qutstanding Enterprise Property Management Henan Jianye Wansheng
Association of Nanyang Property Management Co.,
Ltd.
12 20241 A BEDE TR ERGS R RMEERERA
7l
13 January 2024 Exemplary Organization of ~ Property Management Jiyuan Branch, Central
Jiyuan Property Service Association of Jiyuan China Property
Industry in 2023 Management
13 202441 A 03FEHERTWERE HBRITHEEEHS BEDEERD NA
TERRIREITERESN
14 January 2024 2024 Brand Enterprise in Property Management Jiyuan Branch, Central
Property Service Industry Association of Jiyuan China Property
in Jiyuan Management
14 2024F 1 H 2024 FEERTMERY EETHEEEHE BEMEFERD QA
TEmRRE
15 January 2024 Outstanding Housings Property Management Jianye Happy Time,
Project in Property Association of Shanggiu Shanggqiu
Services in 2023
15 202441 A 0BFEMERBESE BETMHEEEHE E - BREERE
£IEH
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AWARDS AND HONOURS
BERRE

No. Year Honour Awarded by Awarded to
i BREH REEE TRIRHAE EERE HA
16 January 2024 Advanced Unit for Green Property Management Henan Central China
Energy-Saving in 2023 Association of Zhengzhou Property Management Co.,
Ltd.
16 20241 A 03 FEHEMETEE DINTHEEEHE A RREEMEERERAA
iz
17 January 2024 Advanced Unit for Service Property Management Henan Central China
Innovation in 2023 Association of Zhengzhou Property Management Co.,
Ltd.
17 202441 A 203 FERBAIFEHEE  HNTYESERE TRREENMEEREFRAA
iz
18 January 2024 2023 Outstanding Property Management Henan Central China
Membership Unit Association of Zhengzhou Property Management Co.,
Ltd.
18 202441 RBFEEFGEEN WHTHEEEHE TEREYEERERAT
19 February 2024  Leading Enterprise in Henan Property Henan Central China
Property Service Quality Management Association Property Management Co.,
Service in 2023 Ltd.
19 202452 A 0B3FEMERBITHER  TEEDEERHE M HEXMFEERER AR
BERGREBE
20 February 2024 2023 Qutstanding Henan Property Henan Central China
Enterprise in Property Management Association Property Management Co.,
Management Industry Ltd.
20 2024 2 A 03FEMERBITESLE  FEEDEFERHE T REEMEERERAA
HERE
21 March 2024 Ten Best Property Service Property Management Zhumadian Branch,Central
Enterprises Association of Zhumadian/  China Property
Zhumadian Daily News Management
Agency
21 2024 3 A TEMERBEE HBEMYEERR BENMERFIED AT
& /55 B @it
22 March 2024 2023 Outstanding Property Management Zhumadian Jianye Lantian
Enterprise in Property Association of Zhumadian Property Management Co.,
Management Industry Ltd.
22 20244 3 A 0B3FEMERBTEE BHEETHEERHE HEEREERMEEEER
FzE NS
23 March 2024 2023 Outstanding Property Management Zhumadian Branch,Central
Enterprise in Property Association of Zhumadian China Property
Management Industry Management
23 2024 3 A 03FEMERBITRE HEETHXEEHE BEEMERBIES AT
FbE
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No. Year Honour Awarded by Awarded to

i BREH REEE TR ERHE 1EE

24 April 2024 Advanced Unit for Trade Zhengzhou Finance, Trade,  Henan Central China
Union Work in 2023 Light Industry and Service Property Management Co.,

Industry Union Ltd.

24 20244 03FETETIREME BHINTHERTEREE ATHRENEEEERAF
iz Ie

25 April 2024 2024 China Five-star the China index Academy Zhengzhou Jianye Haima
Property Service Project Jiuru Mansion

25 20244 4 A 2024 B R ERYMERY  ARPIRESRMARE BN - EZREFALA
HH

26 April 2024 2024 China Five-star the China index Academy Jianye King of The City,
Property Service Project Nanyang

26 2024 4 A 2024 T ERMERY AL RPIEEERMAER M5 BESHREA
THH

27 July 2024 Excellent Enterprise in Property Management Luoyang Branch, Central
Property Services in Association of Luoyang China Property
Luoyang (2023-2024) Management

27 202447 A REMYERBESEE BETHEREEHE BEMEREG D AAE
(2023-2024)

28 July 2024 Excellent Enterprise in Property Management Songxian Branch, Central
Property Services in Association of Luoyang China Property
Luoyang (2023-2024) Management

28 20247 A RETYERBESEE BETHEERHE BEMESH D AR
(2023-2024)

29 July 2024 Leading Enterprise in Property Management Yiyang Branch, Central
Property Service Quality in ~ Association of Luoyang China Property
Luoyang (2023-2024) Management

29 202447 A RETYERBREERL BETHEERHE BEEMEESH AT
1B % (2023-2024)

30 August 2024 Excellent Property China Property Service Xinxiang Xinfei Jianye
Benchmark Project in Index System Mansion
Henan Province

30 2024 8 A A ESYEFRER IV T A - SRR ET

31 September 2024 Zhengzhou Property Property Management Zhengzhou Jianye Office

2024 Service Archive Association of Zhengzhou Building

Management Model
Project

31 202449 A 2024 FEMN T RISHE EINTHEEEHE EPJN - S A E)
REBBRIER

EEMEFEFRAR/ —2-MFFR
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No. Year Honour Awarded by Awarded to
i BREH REEE TRIRHAE EERE HA
32 September 2024 Zhengzhou Property Property Management Zhengzhou Sky Mansion
2024 Service Elevator System Association of Zhengzhou
Model Project
32 20249 A 2024 FEMTIYIEIREE BN TMEEEHE EPN - EREE
R EIRIE B
33 September 2024 Zhengzhou Property Property Management Zhengzhou Sky Mansion
2024 Service Environment Association of Zhengzhou
Cleaning Model Project
33 202449 A 2024 FEMTAMERBIE  BNTYESERE BN - REEREE
BRRREIRIE B
34 September 2024 Zhengzhou Property Property Management Zhengzhou Sky Mansion
2024 Service Landscaping Association of Zhengzhou
Maintenance Model
Project
34 202449 A 2024 FEMTIMERBSAE BNTWESERE PN - EERE
L& EFIRER
35 September 2024 Zhengzhou Property Property Management Jianye Spring Time,
2024 Service Weak Current Association of Zhengzhou Zhengzhou
System Model Project
35 20249 A 2024 EEM T ARTSSS EINTMEERHE B - 2EERE
BRABMRIER
36 September 2024 Zhengzhou Property Property Management Jianye Spring Time,
2024 Service Elevator System Association of Zhengzhou Zhengzhou
Model Project
36 202449 A 2024 FEMNTIYIEREE BN TMEEEHE N - mEERE
EES e El=
37 September 2024 Zhengzhou Property Property Management Jianye Spring Time,
2024 Service Landscaping Association of Zhengzhou Zhengzhou
Maintenance Model
Project
37 20249 A 2024 FHMTMERBLE BHHDERERBES N - @EHERE
b EEERIRIER
38 September 2024 Zhengzhou Property Property Management Jianye Chengyuan Phase |,
2024 Service Elevator System Association of Zhengzhou Zhengzhou
Model Project
38 202449 A 2024 FBMTYFEREE BMNHHEEEHE N - EERE B
BRGEIRIER
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No. Year Honour Awarded by Awarded to
i BREH REEE TR ERHE 1EE
39 September 2024 Zhengzhou Property Property Management Jianye Chengyuan Phase |,
2024 Service Environment Association of Zhengzhou Zhengzhou
Cleaning Model Project
39 20249 A 2024 FEMTAMERBIRE BN THEEEHRE N - R
BRRREIRIE B
40 September 2024 Zhengzhou Property Property Management Jianye Chengyuan Phase |,
2024 Service Landscaping Association of Zhengzhou Zhengzhou
Maintenance Model
Project
40 20249 A 2024 FBMTMERBLE BHHHRERBES N - ZRER B
e B#EBERIAR
a1 September 2024 Zhengzhou Property Property Management Jianye King of The City,
2024 Service Fire Protection Association of Zhengzhou Gongyi
System Model Project
41 202449 A 2024 FEMTMERBE  BMNTYESERE FH - BESTWH
b7 # AR IE B
42 September 2024 Zhengzhou Property Property Management Jianye King of The City,
2024 Service Landscaping Association of Zhengzhou Gongyi
Maintenance Model
Project
42 202449 A 2024 EEM T RIS A BN ERHE FH - BRESTWHA
L& EERARIE B
43 September 2024 Zhengzhou Property Property Management Jianye King of The City,
2024 Service Environment Association of Zhengzhou Gongyi
Cleaning Model Project
43 202449 A 2024 FEM T EREER EINTHEEERHE BE - BESHHIH
RRZEARIE B
44 December 2024 Qutstanding Property Management Xuchang Branch, Central
2024 Enterprise in Property Association of Xuchang China Property
Management Industry in Management
Xuchang
44 2024412 A 2020 FEHEMERBIT FETHERERHE BEEMETED AR
FREFPE
45 December 2024 Outstanding Property Management Jianye Guiyuan, Xuchang
2024 Housings Property Project  Association of Xuchang
45 202412 H 220 FEEFETETWMEE HETVESENE 2 EEEE
B
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No. Year Honour Awarded by Awarded to
i BREH REEE TRIRHAE EERE HA
46 December 2024 Qutstanding Public Property Management Xuchang Economic and
2024 Property Project Association of Xuchang Technological
Development Zone
Comprehensive Service
Building
46 2024512 A 2020 FEEARNHYFEER  FETHEEERHE FFEMEERMFAEREGS R
E] BRI
47 December Honorary Vice President Henan Property Henan Central China
2024 Unit of Henan Property Management Association Property Management Co.,
Management Association Ltd.
a7 202412 A THEMEEEREEE THEADEERhE TRREENMEERERAA
BlgREMN
48 December Excellent Assistance Kuche Housing and Urban Kuche Branch,Xinjiang
2024 Enterprise for 2024 Rural Construction Central China Property
Industry Committee Management Co., Ltd.
48 202412 A 2024 FEEFEKDE EEE T {E B M A AR AT EBREMERGERARE
EL Y | EHAT
49 December Outstanding Enterprise of Kuche Housing and Urban Kuche Branch,Xinjiang
2024 2024 Rural Construction Central China Property
Industry Committee Management Co., Ltd.
49 2024 12 A 2024 FEEFE FEEMEEMMMRERT HEREVERBERAGTE
(%8¢ BHRF
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Dear Shareholders:

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Central China
New Life Limited, | am pleased to present the results of the
Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December
2024 (the “Year”). During the Year, the Group achieved revenue
of RMB2,952.2 million, representing an increase of approximately
3.8% as compared with RMB2,844.7 million in the corresponding
period in 2023. Net profit amounted to RMB238.2 million, as
compared with the net loss of RMB577.9 million in the
corresponding period in 2023.

2024 is a pivotal year of profound transformation and value
restructuring for China’s property management industry, and
also marks the milestone of the 30th anniversary of the
establishment of Jianye Property. In the face of dual challenges
of macroeconomic fluctuations and structural adjustments,
China’s property management industry has demonstrated strong
resilience. With the advancement of urbanisation, the upgrading
of community service demands, and the accelerated penetration
of digital technology, the industry’s service provision is gradually
transforming from traditional basic services to an ecological
model that combines space management and lifestyle services.
CCNL has always adhered to its core mission of being rooted in
central China and conferring benefit on the people. By grasping
opportunities in a complex environment, we have achieved
steady improvement in operating quality and core
competitiveness.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my gratitude to all
shareholders and investors for their trust and support for the
Group, and to all employees for their conscientious efforts and
dedication.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
FEHE

B TRE
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
FREHWE

PERFORMANCE REVIEW

In 2024, with a focus on enhancing customer value, the Group
adopted a development model that incorporates basic standard
services and customised lifestyle services, while integrating
resources and building professional teams to significantly
improve service response efficiency. Facing the competitive
dynamics of the existing market, we leveraged the digital
operation platform to implement precise business restructuring.
We focused on strengthening the synergy of our core businesses,
while simultaneously expanding the community value-added
service ecosystem. This approach enabled the innovative
transformation of traditional businesses and the breakthrough
development of emerging ones. To support strategy
implementation, the Group has comprehensively promoted the
optimization of organisational effectiveness through process
reengineering, talent echelon training and service culture
reshaping. The Group is committed to creating a more
competitive modern corporate governance system, to lay a solid
foundation for its sustainable development.

I.  Steady Growth in Revenue from Basic Property

Management and Stable Service Quality

In 2024, CCNL’s basic property management services
achieved revenue of RMB2,298.8 million, a year-on-year
increase of 15.4%, accounting for 77.9% of the total
revenue. To develop a competitive edge in quality services,
the Group deepened special projects such as the
Refinement Action and Service Refreshing throughout the
year. We completed a full-cycle hardware renewal,
strengthened brand perception through the reconstruction
of visual systems and service lines, and achieved the
efficient transformation of service value into customer
experience by organically integrating standardised systems
with personalised services.

Il. Initial Results of Diversified Presence
Establishment and Continuous Expansion of
Service Radius
CCNL embraces the concept of high-quality development
and implements precise investment strategies by deeply
exploring core resource endowments and regional service
advantages, focusing on high-potential formats such as
public office buildings and industrial parks.

34
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In 2024, the Company's accumulated contracted GFA
reached 290.1 million sg.m., and the GFA under
management reached 196.9 million sg.m., representing an
increase of 0.7% and 8.3% as compared with those as of 31
December, 2023, respectively.

Moreover, the Group maintained a high level of dividend
distribution and continued its steady dividend payment for
shareholders. A final dividend of RMB88.3 million was
declared for the year ended 31 December 2024.

Innovative Lifestyle Service Portfolio with an
Increasing Focus on Niche Segments

While continuing the service advantages in the field of
property management, CCNL has broadened growth room
for its value-added services through refined operations.
Relying on the advantages of nearby service scenarios, it
has innovatively constructed differentiated service models
such as community group meals. Additionally, it has
strengthened its traffic monetization capabilities through
emerging channels such as e-commerce livestreaming,
successfully achieving counter-cyclical growth in multiple
businesses.

Adhering to Culture-Oriented Development and
Highlighting Brand Value

In 2024, CCNL was devoted to creating a new model of a
better life that centres on the core culture of "Neighbourhood",
under which its property management services are able to
provide emotional connection in addition to fundamental
services. Throughout the year, the Central China Happy
Times held more than 9,700 activities with the themes of
"Neighbourhood Family Banquet" and "This is My Home",
with more than 810,000 participants.

- BEXLEIE
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FREHWE

In terms of brand recognition, CCNL was awarded with a
series of awards such as 2024 Top 100 Property
Management Companies in China (TOP 11), 2024 Top 10
Companies by Services among Top 100 Property
Management Companies in China, 2024 China TOP 10
Listed Property Service Companies by Comprehensive
Strength, 2024 China Listed Property Service Enterprise
with Excellent Investment Value, 2024 Leading Growing
Companies among Top 100 Property Management
Companies in China (TOP 5), 2024 Leading Enterprise in
Property Service Quality of Henan Province, 2024 China
Excellent Brand Enterprise in Public Property Services, 2024
China Leading Brand Enterprise in Specialized Operation of
Property Services, 2024 China Brand Enterprise in Property
Services of Central China Region, 2024 Leading Enterprise
in Property Service Market Position of Central China Region
(TOP 1), 2024 China Brand Enterprise in Property Services
of Henan Province, and 2024 Leading Enterprise in Property
Service Market Position of Henan Province (TOP 1)".
Meanwhile, the Group's property management projects,
Luoyang Jianye Honour Mansion and Puyang Jianye
Chinoiserie Palace, were awarded the title of
“Demonstration Base in China’s Property Management
Service Industry”. Zhengzhou Jianye Haima Jiuru Mansion
and Nanyang Jianye King of the City were awarded the title
of “Five-star Property Management Service Projects in
China in 2024". Zhengzhou Jianye Haima Jiuru Mansion and
Luoyang Jianye Loong City were shortlisted as 2024 “Quality
Property Management” Communities.

OUTLOOK

36

Strengthening Basic Service Quality to Build a
Foundation of Trust

We are committed to strengthening the refinement,
standardisation, and intelligent development of basic
services. We aim to optimise service standards and models
in areas like customer service, cleaning, security, and
engineering maintenance by introducing advanced digital
management tools, to achieve a comprehensive upgrade of
service quality. At the same time, a more complete
dynamic service evaluation mechanism and rapid response
system will be established to ensure that the needs of
property owners are addressed in a timely and effective
manner. Moreover, property owners are offered a high-
quality service experience characterised by zero distance
and seamless interaction, which will further strengthen the
trust relationship among them.
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Innovating Lifestyle Service Ecosystem and

Leading Community Consumption Upgrade

We will actively build an integrated platform that offers
property services and addresses living needs, focusing on
high-frequency scenarios and integrating high-quality
resources. Our goal is to incubate more customised service
products that meet the needs of property owners. By
promoting the upgrade of property management from
space management to lifestyle empowerment, we are
dedicated to leading the upgrading of community
consumption and creating a more convenient and
comfortable living environment for property owners.

Fostering Neighbourhood Relationships and
Cultivating a “Neighbourhood” Culture in the
community

We are committed to fostering neighbourhood relationships
and cultivating a “"Neighbourhood” culture within the
community by establishing the Central China Consumers
Club and engaging in continuous cultural activities. We plan
to organize various neighbourhood interaction activities to
enhance communication and connection among
community residents. At the same time, we will actively
work to build a community service platform that provides
residents with convenient channels for information
exchange and resource sharing, continuously enhancing
customer loyalty and fostering a warm community
atmosphere.

Focusing on Niche Segments and Rational
Investment and Development

In terms of investment and development, we will focus on
niche segments to provide more targeted and professional
property services tailored to the characteristics and needs
of different formats. At the same time, we will avoid
reckless expansion and excessive competition. By
strengthening our relationships with partners, such as
property owners and developers, we can collaboratively
explore innovative property service models that achieve
mutual benefits and win-win outcomes.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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Actively Responding to National Policies and
Assisting in the Governance of Modern
Communities with Chinese Characteristics

In active response to the guidance of national policies, we
are fully engaged in the governance of modern
communities with Chinese characteristics. Through close
cooperation with the government, communities, property
owners and other parties, we will collaboratively promote
the establishment of modern community governance
systems and capabilities. Furthermore, we will actively
explore new models for the deep integration of property
services and community governance, contributing to the
development of a social governance framework based on
co-construction, co-governance, and sharing.

Wang Jun
Chairman

26 March, 2025
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBGEE

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF 2HINERBE
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 31 December BE12H31HILF/E
2024 2023 Changes

2024 % 20234 BE
Revenue (RMB'000) WA ANEEFT) 2,952,227 2,844,655 3.8%
Gross profit (RMB’000) EFARKTFT) 640,738 757,092 -15.4%
Gross profit margin EF % 21.7% 26.6% -4.9%
Net profit/(loss) (RMB'000) ERE (BB (AREFT) 238,172 (577,906)  N/A i@ A
Net profit/(loss) margin SEFE(E1E) R 8.1% (20.3%)  N/A i@
Profit/(l0ss) attributable RNARIRREEFE(&BE)

to shareholders of (ARMFT)

the Company (RMB'000) 214,594 (574,369)  N/A TiEH
Core net profit attributable to the AR AR B ZOF RO

shareholders of the Company @ (ARBTFT)

(RMB’000) 294,044 403,203 -27.1%
Basic earning/(loss) per share BREARRZF,(EE)

(RMB) (AR#T) 0.17 0.45)  N/A T3
Diluted earning/(loss) per share SR#EERAN(F8)

(RMB) (AE#T) 0.17 (0.45)  N/A T3
Final dividend per share (HK cent) SRR ERRR B OFL) 7.36 - NATEA
SUMMARY OF BALANCE SHEET BEAERBE
AS at 31 December R12H31H

2024 2023 Changes
2024 % 2023 4F 2E
Total cash (including cash and cash #2384 (BIERE MRS

equivalents and restricted bank LEBYARZRBIIRITIFHK)

deposits) (RMB'000) (ARBTFT) 1,198,019 1,627,693 -26.4%
Total assets (RMB'000) wEEANREFT) 4,726,961 4,851,078 -2.6%
Total liabilities (RMB000) waBEAREFIT) 2,737,588 2,688,729 1.8%
Total equity (including non-controlling #8425 (B IEIFIERERES)

interests) (RMB'000) (AR#FT) 1,989,373 2,162,349 -8.0%
Equity attributable to shareholders of AN BB B G 25

the Company (RMB'000) (AR#FT) 1,863,154 2,054,783 -9.3%
Current ratio? MENE @ 1.6timesfE  1.6timesf& 0.0 timesfs
Net asset value per share (RMB) SFREEFEARET) 1.53 1.66 7.9%

Notes:

et

(1 Calculated based on profit/(loss) attributable to the shareholders of the (1)
Company, adjusted by the net impairment losses on financial and
contract assets, fair value gains or losses from financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, share-based payments and related income

tax effect.

(2)  Calculated based on the Group’s total current assets divided by the (2

Group’s total current liabilities.

REARRREREERE, (BE)FE - YRATHE
BETHE  RERAVEEREERFE UK
EBEFELEZHFTAZHERNEREENAAE
BB - AR AERON A RERNAEHRY
@,
RAREENERBEERAAEENZ R B EFTH
e
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Over the years, the Group is dedicated to providing services to
clients to meet their diverse needs. Our business now consists of
three major business lines, including property management
services, community value-added services and value-added
services to non-property owners. For the year ended 31
December 2024, the Group continuously optimised its income
structure. During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group's
revenue amounted to RMB2,952.2 million, representing an
increase of 3.8% as compared with that of RMB2,844.7 million for
the year ended 31 December 2023. Net profit was RMB238.2
million, as compared to net loss of RMB577.9 million for the year
ended 31 December 2023.

Property management services: The Group has been
providing traditional property management services such as
security, cleaning, maintenance and greening services since
1994. In 2024, the Group continued to strengthen the quality of
its property services, enhance the service experience of owners,
and provide refined, precise and people-oriented services around
the “security, cleaning, landscaping, warranty and customer
services”. We strive to provide owners with a higher-quality,
more comfortable and sustainable living environment, to truly
care for the owners and serve the owners. As at 31 December
2024, the Group's property management services covered all 18
prefecture-level cities in Henan province as well as multiple
provinces and cities such as Hebei Province, and the Group
served more than 2.6 million property owners and residents in
1,121 properties. The Group manages a diversified portfolio of
properties, including residential and commercial properties,
office buildings, themed towns, rural complexes, schools, parks,
the “Three Supplies and Property Management” project, urban
services and industrial parks. As at 31 December 2024, the GFA
under management and contracted GFA reached 196.9 million
sg.m. and 290.1 million sg.m. respectively, representing a
respective growth of 8.3% and 0.7% as compared with those as
at 31 December 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Community value-added services: In terms of community
value-added services, the Group integrates resources and builds
platforms to fulfil its mission of providing diversified living
services based on customers’ needs. Focusing on the entire
process of customers from property acquisition to moving in to
their daily lives, the Group extends relevant service offerings, and
gradually perfects the online and offline scenes to continuously
improve customer satisfaction and enhance the value of its
services. Community value-added services include the provision
of smart community solutions by the Group to property
developers and residents for the creation of modern, interactive
and intelligent environments within the community. In addition,
the Group focuses on online platform operation and offline
scenario-based community retailing. Through the Jianye+
platform online, the Group focuses on product categories based
on customer needs to create a localised living platform of Central
China that is “nice to look at, fun to play, and easy to use”, and to
build a new retail business system for the Jianye+ community in
an all-round way. At the same time, the Group integrates high
quality resources to provide owners with one-stop whole-house
renovation, basic decoration, balcony sealing services, etc., to
meet the expectations of owners in the new lifestyle of home
services, providing owners with time-saving, worry-saving,
energy-saving, money-saving, trouble-saving new experience
services, to create a happy home life for owners. During the year
ended 31 December 2024, the Group established a new arena,
i.e. "property + group catering”, providing a variety of community
catering services such as “community canteens, convenient food
trucks and special products” to satisfy the owners’ diverse
catering demands. The Group also provides group catering
services and canteen operation solutions to government
agencies, corporations, public institutions, and other entities by
integrating high quality catering resources.

Value-added services to non-property owners: The Group’s
value-added services to non-property owners focus on enhancing
the value of properties by meeting customers’ requirements
through professional services. Value-added services to non-
property owners include early intervention services, that is,
according to the industry management and customer
requirements, upon accepting an entrustment for product
development, we will participate in the whole process of it, such
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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as project design, construction, marketing, acceptance, delivery
and repair, and put forward rationalisation proposals from the
perspective of customers, developers and properties, so as to
maximise the customers’ satisfaction to products to meet their
needs and facilitate the use of customers in the later stage and
the operation of the property, and thus enhance the brand image
of the real estate and the customer’s loyalty. In addition, with the
service concept of “Dignity — Perfection”, the Group, relying on
years of service experience, defines the new standard of the
industry with craftsmanship and continues to optimise and
innovate its service model, covering five high-end service scenes,
namely, sales sites, 4S flagship stores, high-end clubs, exhibitions
and medical check-up centres, with tailor-made service solutions
to satisfy the diverse needs of its partners.

OUTLOOK

In the context of China’s economic situation, characterised by
"wave-like development and zigzagging progress”, the property
management industry is undergoing continuous change and
development. As a result, a focus on service quality has emerged
as a key industry trend. In the second half of the year, with the
frequent introduction of favourable policies, the industry is
expected to gradually return to normal development. As the
market and industry undergo adjustments, brand identity and
service quality will increasingly become the core elements of
industry competition. The Group will continue to strengthen the
quality of basic services while accelerating the development of
diversified offerings. Additionally, it will enhance digital
empowerment, boost brand building, foster craftsmanship and
diligence, optimise organizational structure to increase
effectiveness, and demonstrate new development prospects
through new standards, strategies, and a fresh outlook.

The Group will be committed to implementing the following key
strategic measures in 2025:

I.  Insisting on regional focus strategy and high-

quality expansion

Based on the macroeconomic situation and industry
landscape, we will pinpoint high-potential areas and insist
on in-depth localisation. We aim to achieve both growth in
scale and efficiency by strengthening investment and
expansion in niche segments via an innovative cooperation
model.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

At the same time, we will fully optimise our market
expansion mechanism, establish a measurable market
evaluation and control mechanism, with continuous focus
on high-quality investment and expansion targets.

Deepening innovation in basic and lifestyle
service models to create a second growth curve
With the needs of property owners in mind, we are
integrating basic and lifestyle services to create a full-scene
service ecosystem and unlock new sources of profitable
growth. As key components of our operating system, basic
services provide a solid foundation, while lifestyle services
add value by focusing on upgrading property services and
fostering neighbourhood socialization. We will concentrate
on sustainable, high-quality businesses, continue our
business expansion, deepen our product ecosystem and
supply chain collaboration, and drive endogenous growth.

Upgrading property service models through
technology to reduce costs and increase
efficiency

Leveraging cutting-edge technology, the Company will
realise intelligent operation management and digital service
processes to comprehensively improve operation efficiency
and service quality. We will actively embrace Al-driven
changes and deepen Al-property reform by reorganizing
service processes through Al technology, transitioning from
experience-based to data intelligence-powered property
management.

Cultural leadership to create differentiated
brands

Leveraging the Company's unigue cultural DNA, we are
committed to broadly disseminating brand values while
developing a series of community-focused cultural activity
brands to enhance the loyalty of our basic customer group.
At the same time, we will utilise community networks to
foster a strong cultural atmosphere, cultivating a highly
loyal brand with an exceptional customer experience.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THERE S

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of property
management services and related value-added services. For the
year ended 31 December 2024, the Group recorded a revenue of
RMB2,952.2 million (2023: RMB2,844.7 million), representing a
year-on-year increase of 3.8%. The revenue of the Group were
generated from three main business lines: (i) property
management services; (i) community value-added services; and
(iii) value-added services to non-property owners.

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the Group's
revenue from each business line during the years indicated.

B 7% [E]

WA

AEBZTZNERHEVESERBE REANIEE
BR7% - MEIZ2024F 12 A3 HILFE - AEEER
BUWAAREE295228 8B L(2023F : AR
28447 EETT) MEF LF38%  REBE YA
KEZBEEFEEBG  VWESERS : (It
BERRTS + M (i) IEZEFIRERTS -

TREIIAEERFRIZEEBREI DA -

For the year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLLEE

2024 2023
2024 F 20234
Revenue Revenue
LN WA
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
AR¥FT % ARMFIT %
Property management services S ER=RLER Y 2,298,829 77.9 1,992,212 70.0
Community value-added services FLIE I (B AR TS 544,757 18.4 658,915 232
Value-added services to IEE IR E R
non-property owners 108,641 3.7 193,528 6.8
Total/Overall a5t e 2,952,227 100.0 2,844,655 100.0
PROPERTY MANAGEMENT SERVICES MEEIERE

During the year, the revenue from our property management
services amounted to RMB2,298.8 million (2023: RMB1,992.2
million), representing a year-on-year increase of 15.4%. Such
increase was aligned with an increase in total GFA under
management of the Group.

As of 31 December 2024, the total GFA under management of
the Group was 196.9 million sg.m., representing an increase of
15.0 million sg.m. or 8.3% as compared with that as of 31
December 2023. The increase in GFA under management of the
Group was primarily driven by securing more new projects,
particularly from third-party property developers. During the year,
the average property management fee rate charged by the Group
at approximately RMB1.75 per sg.m./month (2023: RMB1.74 per
sg.m./month), which was in line with the previous year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The table below sets out the breakdown of our total GFA under
management for our property management services attributable
to the properties developed by Central China Real Estate Limited
("CCRE") and its subsidiaries (the “CCRE Group”) (and its
associates or joint ventures) and third-party property developers
as at the dates indicated.

THEWE S

TREIINPIRAHEEFRAZRLERD AR
~E([EFwE]) LENELR ([BERE]) (K
HE2RNRHEELE) RE=MERER A
EYREENMETERGARNEE EEZEm
BEAA -

As at 31 December 2024 As at 31 December 2023

R2024F12H 318

2023412 4318

GFA GFA
EEmE TR
‘000 sq.m. % ‘000 sq.m. %
FF T K % FFHK %
The CCRE Group and its associates — iEEEE & EB &
or joint ventures RNAIREERE 78,340 39.8 74,158 40.8
Third-party property developers BTN 118,533 60.2 107,685 59.2
Total &5t 196,873 100.0 181,843 100.0
COMMUNITY VALUE-ADDED SERVICES HEIG{ERTE

The Group provides a range of community value-added services,
primarily including intelligent community solutions, in-park sales,
turnkey and move-in furnishing and lifestyle services. During the
year, revenue from community value-added services amounted
to RMB544.8 million (2023: RMB658.9 million), representing a
year-on-year decline of 17.3%. This decrease was mainly
attributable to the decrease in revenue from intelligent
community solutions by RMB163.5 million as a result of the lower
number of housing deliveries. In response to the decline in
revenue from intelligent community solutions, the Group focused
on value-added community services this year to broaden the
service boundary and meet the diversified needs of property
owners. During the year, revenue from in-park sales amounted to
RMB268.9 million (2023: RMB190.7 million), representing a year-
on-year increase of 41.0%.

VALUE-ADDED SERVICES TO NON-PROPERTY
OWNERS

The Group provides a range of value-added services to non-
property owners, primarily including pre-launch intermediary
services and on-site management. During the year, revenue from
value-added services to non-property owners amounted to
RMB108.6 million (2023: RMB193.5 million), representing a year-
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on-year decrease of 43.9%. This decrease was mainly attributable
to the ongoing adjustments in the real estate industry,leading the
Group to proactively make business adjustment to scale down its
value-added services to non-property owners, of which the
revenue from pre-launch intermediary services and on-site
management decreased by RMB41.7 million.

COST OF SALES

The Group’s cost of sales primarily consists of employee benefit
expenses, greening and cleaning expenses, cost of goods sold,
utilities, maintenance business costs, construction costs,
professional service fees, security charges, depreciation and
amortisation charges, travelling and entertainment expenses,
office expenses, taxes and other levies and other costs.

During the year, cost of sales of the Group amounted to
RMB2,311.5 million (2023: RMB2,087.6 million), representing a
year-on-year increase of 10.7%. This increase was mainly due to
the increased scale of sales and the increased cost of high
quality services to improve customer satisfaction.

GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS PROFIT MARGIN
The following table sets forth the Group's gross profit and gross
profit margin by each business line for the years indicated.

AR EHEITERFERE - NEE Y IEE ELM
HEBHAE  WEFETIBERSHEBSEES
BA - ERaiNREBA RESREUWA TEA
REMNTEETT -

HEMA
AEENHERAIEBREERIAX - &1t
KBERE  HEMA  AHEXE  RERA -
BERA - EXERBE - ZRE - TEREHEE
ZRMBEFRX - RO - REREMEE NI
REMER -

FR - AEENHENARARKE231MNSBET
(20235 : AR¥2,087.6BE L)  BEF EFH
10.7% » Z L EERARHERENBAALS
REEPFMEEME NN mERGKA -

EFRERE
TRBIIREBRFRENRELBRUINE
FIRERE -

For the year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLLEE

2024 2023
2024 F 2023 %

Gross profit Gross profit

Gross profit margin  Gross profit margin

EF EF=E EF ESUES

RMB’000 % RMB’000 %

AR¥TT % ARETIT %

Property management services MEE IR RS 488,886 21.3 496,188 249

Community value-added services R IEE R 130,066 23.9 202,710 30.8

Value-added services to XTI ERT

non-property owners 21,786 20.1 58,194 30.1

Total Gh 640,738 21.7 757,092 26.6
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

During the year, the gross profit of the Group was RMB640.7
million (2023: RMB757.1 million), representing a year-on-year
decrease of 15.4%. This decrease in gross profit was mainly due
to the decrease in gross profit of value-added services. The gross
profit margin of the Group decreased from approximately 26.6%
as of 31 December 2023 to approximately 21.7% as of 31
December 2024, representing year-on-year decrease of 4.9
percentage points. Such decrease in gross profit margin was
mainly due to the decrease in gross profit margin of property
management Services.

The gross profit margin of property management services
decreased by 3.6 percentage points from approximately 24.9% as
of 31 December 2023 to approximately 21.3% as of 31 December
2024, which was mainly attributable to the increased cost of high
quality services to enhance customer satisfaction.

The gross profit margin of community value-added services of
the Group decreased to approximately 23.9% as of 31 December
2024 from approximately 30.8% as of 31 December 2023. This
decrease was mainly due to a change in revenue structure,
particularly a decrease in higher-margin revenues (such as smart
community solutions).

The gross profit margin of value-added services to non-property
owners decreased to approximately 20.1% as of 31 December
2024 from approximately 30.1% as of 31 December 2023. This
decrease was mainly due to a decline in higher-margin revenues
(such as pre-launch intermediary services) resulting from the
scaling down of the Group’s value-added services to non-
property owners.

SELLING AND MARKETING EXPENSES

During the year, the selling and marketing expenses of the Group
amounted to RMB16.2 million, representing a decrease of 9.1%
as compared with RMB17.9 million in 2023. This decrease was
mainly attributable to a cautious approach to the business
environment, with stringent control of various expenses, resulting
in cost reduction and efficiency improvement. During the year,
the selling and marketing expenses of the Group accounted for
approximately 0.6% of the revenue, which was the same as that
in 2023.
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ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

During the year, the administrative expenses of the Group
amounted to RMB187.0 million, representing a decrease of 5.5%
as compared with RMB197.8 million in 2023, and accounting for
approximately 6.3% of the revenue, which was decrease of 0.7
percentage points from 2023. This decrease was mainly
attributable to the stringent expenditures control, leading to cost
reduction and efficiency improvement.

NET IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON FINANCIAL
AND CONTRACT ASSETS

During the year, the net impairment losses on financial and
contract assets of the Group amounted to RMB74.9 million (2023:
RMB1,222.4 million), representing a decrease of 93.9% as
compared to the previous year. This decline was mainly due to
no significant change in credit risk during the year, compared to
the downturn in the real estate industry for the previous year,
which triggered a liquidity crisis and significant increase in the
credit risk of receivables from real estate developers.

OTHER INCOME

During the year, other income of the Group amounted to RMB6.6
million (2023: RMB19.0 million), representing a decrease of 65.5%
as compared to the previous year. This decrease was mainly due
to a reduction in government grants received.

OTHER LOSSES — NET

During the year, the net other losses of the Group amounted to
RMB9.3 million (2023: RMB34.1 million), which was mainly due to
the increase in the fair value of the US dollar-denominated bonds
held by the Group during the year, compared to a decrease in
their fair value for the previous year.

INCOME TAX (EXPENSES)/CREDIT

During the year, the Group's income tax expenses amounted to
RMB120.8 million (2023: income tax credit of RMB118.3 million)
and the income tax rate for the year was 33.6% (2023: 17.0%),
which was mainly due to a significant decrease in the Group’s
provision for credit impairment loss, resulting in turnaround for
the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PROFIT/(LOSS)

During the year, the Group recorded a net profit of RMB238.2
million (2023: net loss of RMB577.9 million). The net profit ratio
was 8.1% (2023: net loss margin of 20.3%), the turnaround was
mainly due to the decrease in net impairment losses on financial
and contract assets during the year. The profit attributable to
shareholders of the Company for the year amounted to
RMB214.6 million (2023: loss attributable to shareholders of
RMB574.4 million). Excluding the net impairment losses on
financial and contract assets, fair value gains or losses from
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, share-based
payments and related income tax effect, the core net profit
attributable to owners of the Company for the year was
approximately RMB294.0 million, as compared to that of
approximately RMB403.2 million in 2023. This decrease in the
core net profit attributable to owners of the Company was mainly
attributable to the Group's proactive business adjustment to its
value-added services in response to the ongoing adjustments in
the real estate industry and a reduced number of housing
deliveries, leading to a scale-down of value-added services,
especially those for smart community solutions and non-property
owner value-added services with property developers. Basic
earnings per share amounted to RMBO0.17 (2023: basic loss per
share amounted to RMBO0.45).

FINANCIAL RESOURCES MANAGEMENT
AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

We have adopted comprehensive treasury policies and internal
control measures to review and monitor our financial resources.
As at 31 December 2024, the Group's cash and cash equivalents
amounted to approximately RMB1,190.1 million (31 December
2023: approximately RMB1,620.6 million). As at 31 December
2024, the Group's bank borrowings amounted to RMB52.0 million
(31 December 2023: RMB52.0 million). For the year ended 31
December 2024, the Board has recommended to declare, subject
to shareholders’ approval at the 2025 AGM, a final dividend of
approximately RMB88.3 million in total to the shareholders of the
Ccompany. Such final dividend is expected to be paid out of the
Company’s share premium account. The final dividend is
proposed to be paid on or around Wednesday, 25 June 2025 to
the shareholders of the Company whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company at the close of business on
Wednesday, 11 June 2025.

The gearing ratio is calculated as total borrowings divided by total
equity, and the sum of long-term and short-term interest bearing
bank loans and other loans as of the corresponding date divided
by the total equity as of the same date. As of 31 December 2024,
the gearing ratio was 2.6% (31 December 2023: 2.4%).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THERE S

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENTS

As at 31 December 2024, trade and other receivables and
prepayments amounted to RMB2,853.9 million, representing an
increase of 13.4% as compared with RMB2,516.4 million as at 31
December 2023. This growth was mainly due to an increase in
amounts due from property owners, driven by the continuous
increase in the GFA under management.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
As at 31 December 2024, trade and other payables amounted to
RMB1,360.5 million, representing a decrease of 1.8% as
compared with RMB1,385.6 million as at 31 December 2023,
which was basically the same as that in 2023.

BORROWINGS

As at 31 December 2024, the borrowings were RMB52.0 million,
remaining stable as compared to RMB52.0 million as at 31
December 2023, which was a bank loan incurred by Henan
Tianming Property Management Co., Ltd. (‘Henan Tianming")
prior to its acquisition by the Group, and since the equity interest
of the company was acquired by the Group in 2022, its results
were included in the Group’s consolidated statement of accounts
in that year.

PROCEEDS FROM THE LISTING

References are made to (i) the prospectus (the “Prospectus”) of
the Company dated 5 May 2020 relating to the global offering of
the Shares; (i) the annual report of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2020; (iii) the Company’s announcements
(the “"Previous Announcements”) dated 8 July 2021, 16 March
2022 and 14 November 2023 relating to the updates on expected
timeline for use of proceeds from the listing of the Company’s
shares on the main board of the Stock Exchange (the “Listing”)
on 15 May 2020; and (iv) the announcement of the Company
dated 26 August 2024 regarding the change in use of the net
proceeds. After deducting the underwriting fees and relevant
expenses, net proceeds from the Listing amounted to
approximately HK$2,280.8 million (equivalent to RMB2,088.7
million). Having carefully considered the reasons set out in
"Reasons for and benefits of the proposed change in use of
proceeds and expected timeline” of the Company’s
announcement dated 26 August 2024, the Board resolved to
change the proposed use and the expected timeline of the
unutilised net proceeds in view of the business environment in
the recent years and the changes in the Company’s business
strategies. As of 31 December 2024, the Group has used
approximately RMB1,178.8 million of the proceeds. As of 31
December 2024, the Company has not yet utilised the net
proceeds of approximately RMB909.9 million.
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The table below sets forth the revised allocation and status of
utilisation of the net proceeds and the expected timeline of the
use of the unutilised proceeds from the Listing date and up to 31

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
THEWE S

TREHE LTHHEREZ2024412 A31H
BTSN IBEIET D ERAE R B RIA LB A RE
FFTS AR TEHR AR ¢

December 2024:
Revised Unused net
allocation Net  Actual use proceeds  Time frame
Original  of amount proceeds asat asat  (as disclosed
intended use  of the net used 31December 31December inthe Previous  Updated
Major categories Sub-categories of proceeds  proceeds'  during 2024 2024 " 202; Announcements) time frame
12024
R [ET R2024F  R024E  12NA BER
fesE  AERMNFS CSAKSTE 12831A BWAGR  (WEANERE SEF
FTEER FER RERR AR BE WERAE FERERE B KE
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000
ARETT  ARETT  ARETT AREFfrT ARKTx
1. Strategic investment, 1253216 132,723 - 132,723 -
cooperation and
acquisition
1 ERMRE  AERIKE
1.1 Acquiring property management 835,478 114,531 - 114,531 - Betweenonevyear -
service providers to four and a half
years after Listing
11 WEMEERRG RN Lk -EREY
1.2 Acquiring companies that will 208,869 - - - - Betweenonevyear -
expand our portfolio to four and a half
years after Listing
12 WERBARANEASHAT FiB-EREE
1.3 Acquiring other companies that 208,869 18,192 - 18,192 - Betweenoneyear -
can bring synergies to our to four and a half
business, in particular, our years after Listing
value-added services
13 WEEMTRRMER TTk-ZREY -
(LEREERE) HR
BRBER AT
2. Enhancement of Jianye+ 313,304 505,889 9,959 137,530 368,359
platform to optimise user
experience
2. MBRE+TFAU
ELAPER
2.1 Developing and optimising 104,435 159,465 9792 76,425 83040  Betweenoneyear  Byend of
software and our cloud system tofourandahalf  December 2025
years after Listing
21 REREBHERERS FHE-EREE  RABE
12REZA
22 Improving and expanding our 83548 83,548 - 1,990 81558  Betweenoneyear  Byend of
facilities and equipment tofourandahalf  December 2025
years after Listing
22 BRERBERAMMZER FTR-ZREY  RABE
B 12 REZH
2.3 Expansion of scale and diversity 83,548 137,199 75 49,874 87325  Betweenoneyear  Byend of
of membership resources tofourandahalf  December 2025
years after Listing
23 BREEERNRER TR -EREE  RABEFE
SHM 12AEZA
24 Expansion of our user base n773 125,677 92 9,241 116,436 Betweenoneyear  Byend of
tofourandahalf  December 2025
years after Listing
24 BREPE LWk -ZEMEY  RABF
12AEZ A
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THERE S

Revised Unused net
allocation Net  Actual use proceeds  Time frame
Original  of amount proceeds asat asat (as disclosed
intendeduse  of the net used 31December 31December inthe Previous  Updated
Major categories Sub-categories of proceeds  proceeds'  during 2024 2024 u 2024  Announcements) time frame
42024 %
Fia {/ET R204F  R04F  12NA KEER
figsE  AENFE SARBRE  12A3A WRER  (MEAAEHRE  SEH
TEER FER RERE REFE FE  WERREE FERETE 8) KE%
RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
ANREFT  AREFT  AREFT  AREFT  ARETT
3. Investment in advanced 313,304 346,575 3,467 146,111 200,464
information technology
systems
3 RAKEEEHN
45
3.1 Building intelligence communities 146,209 179,480 24,343 134,526 44954 Betweenoneyear  Byend of
and upgrading facilities tofourandahalf  December 2025
years after Listing
31 BREEHERARDRGE LHE-EREE  RABE
12REZA
32 Developing our financial sharing 5217 52217 7619 10,368 41849 Betweenoneyear  Byend of
system tofourandahalf  December 2025
years after Listing
32 FEBBRAZZER Ik -EREY  RABEF
12AEZA
3.3 Developing a process control and 83,548 83,548 - 1,008 82,540  Betweenoneyear  Byend of
KPl integration system tofourandahalf  December 2025
years after Listing
33 FBREEHRKPIERK RS IHE-EREE  RABE
12AEZA
34 Achieving digitalised 31,330 31,330 - 209 31121 Betweenoneyear  Byendof
documentation tofourandahalf  December 2025
years after Listing
34 ERXAET TTB-ZREY  RABE
12AEZA
4. General working capital Working capital and other general 208,870 656,189 327,725 536,595 119,594 Betweenoneyear  Byend of
corporate purposes tofourandahalf  December 2025
years after Listing
4 —freEES EEASREM-ROABR TR -EREE  RABEF
12AEZA
5. Renovating and improving - 149,106 5131 5131 143975 By end of
the quality of the old December 2025
residential communities
5 WERFZENE R2025E
Bz 12 REZR
6. Development of - 298212 20,726 220,726 77,486 By end of
value-added services December 2025
business
6. BREERBER 20255
12AEZA
2,088,694 2,088,694 596,008 1,178,816 909,878
Note: Biet -
1. The revised allocation of amount of the net proceeds equals the sum of 1. ST DAL HI TS R IBE FEENE E 2024 F 6 A30

actual use as at 30 June 2024 and the revised allocation of unutilised
amount of the net proceeds, as disclosed in the Company’s

announcement dated 26 August 2024.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Save as disclosed in the table above, the intended use of other
items of the net proceeds of the Listing remains unchanged. For
more details, please refer to the section headed “Future Plans
and Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus, the Previous
Announcements and the Company’s announcement published
on 26 August 2024.

The unused net proceeds are expected to be used for the above
purposes within the specified timeframe after the Listing Date,
though it may be subject to changes in market conditions from
time to time.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS
As of 31 December 2024, the Group did not have any pledged
assets for its loan guarantee.

MAJOR ACQUISITION AND DISPOSALS
The Group did not have any major acquisition and disposals of
subsidiaries and associated companies during the year.

MAJOR INVESTMENT OR FUTURE PLANS
FOR MAJOR INVESTMENT

As of 31 December 2024, the Group did not hold any significant
investment and had no specific plan for significant investments
or capital assets.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL
COMMITMENT

As of 31 December 2024, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities and capital commitment.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
There are no significant events subsequent to 31 December 2024
which would materially affect the Group’s operating and financial
performance as of the date of this annual report.

THEWE S

BR ERFTIREESN LS FIRFREMIER
MEREREERTE - BEEZHE  S2HLA
NANBRER KRGS MRS FARE | —66
FRIRE RARTR20245F8 A26 A HIBEHAE ©

REBAERRFRAHHN LT ARROETE
RRIAME RS LA TRHIEmRE
BAEE -

BEEKR
R2024F12A318  AEEXRE AERIEMIE
REMEE -

EARBRLE
REERE N BETERRERHENBAR
RS ATEE -

EXREHRREKXNIRE S

R2024F 12 A31H  AEB T ERFBERER
WE - MEEARESERNEENETTE -

HABBEREARNRIE

R2024F 12 A31H  REBT EEFMERNER
BENMEAREE -

EHEEE
HENFEHRBE - 1 2024F12 831 8% - HEE
MEAFHESHASEEZERYBRIFAEREKR
TRF 2 -

BEFEEERAT / B IEFR 53




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THERE S

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The principal activities of the Group are conducted in the PRC,
and a majority of the Group’s income and expenses were
denominated in Renminbi. Therefore, the Group is not exposed
to material risk directly relating to foreign exchange rate
fluctuation except certain bank balances were denominated in
Hong Kong dollars, which were held by the Company in its own
functional currency. Currently, the Group has not entered into
contracts to hedge its exposure to foreign exchange risk, but the
management will continue to monitor the foreign exchange
exposure, and take prudent measures to reduce the foreign
exchange risk.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY
As of 31 December 2024, we had 5,699 full time employees,
substantially all of whom were located in Henan province.

During the year, the Company continued to promote the
flattening of its organisational structure, aiming to enhance the
overall effectiveness and responsiveness of the organisation and
significantly strengthen decision-making efficiency and execution
by shortening communication channels. To continuously improve
efficiency, the Company has been comprehensively and
meticulously defining and optimising its internal authority and
responsibility processes based on daily work requirements. This
aims to achieve seamless integration of management from top to
bottom, while also simplifying workflows, accelerating business
processes, and significantly enhancing work efficiency.

In terms of talent management, the Company has always
adhered to the principle of selection that emphasises both
professional ethics and work ability, as we regard the
professionalism and ethics of our employees as the cornerstones
of the Company's sustainable development. To this end, the
Company not only strengthens its internal training system, but
also actively encourages its employees to participate in various
further education programs, helping them enhance their personal
capabilities and overall quality. In addition, for the career
development of its employees, the Company has designed a
clear promotion path. According to each employee’s unique
strengths and the Company’s strategic development direction,
we customise a personalised development path to help them
achieve their career goals.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS >

Regarding the remuneration package, the Company closely
monitors market trends and makes timely adjustments to salary
levels to ensure competitiveness and fairness. At the same time,
the Company has established an efficient performance appraisal
system that closely links employee performance with salary,
effectively motivating employees and fostering creativity through
specific, quantifiable performance indicators. Furthermore, the
Company has implemented strong incentives to create a
performance-based compensation system, further strengthening
its competitive edge.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERELIRSE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has always valued the superiority, steadiness and
rationality of having a sound system of corporate governance
and is committed to continuously improving its corporate
governance and disclosure practices. During the year ended 31
December 2024, the Company had complied with all code
provisions and mandatory disclosure requirements and, where
appropriate, adopted the recommended best practices set out in
the Corporate Governance Code in Appendix C1 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”).

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS OF LISTED
ISSUERS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct for the
Directors in their dealings in the Company's securities. Having
made specific enquires with each Director, the Company
confirmed that the Directors had complied with the required
standard as set out in the Model Code during the year ended 31
December 2024.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board, which is chaired by Mr. Wang Jun, consists of two
executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors as at the date of this report. The composition of the
Board ensures a balance of skills and experience appropriate for
the requirements of the business of Group and the exercising of
independent opinion.

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date
of this report include:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Jun (Chairman)

Ms. Dai liling (re-designated from a non-executive Director
on 16 August 2024)

Mr. Shi Shushan (resigned on 1 February 2025)

Non-executive Directors

Ms. Wu Lam Li (resigned on 19 June 2024)

Ms. Dai Jiling (re-designated as an executive Director
on 16 August 2024)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Leong Chong

Ms. Luo Laura Ying

Ms. Xin Zhu

All executive Directors have entered into service contracts or
letters of appointment with the Company for a specific term of 3
years. Under the articles of association (the “Articles of
Association”) of the Company, the Board is empowered to
appoint any person as a Director to fill the casual vacancy on or
as an additional Director.

In compliance with Rules 3.10 and 3.10A of the Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed three independent non-executive
Directors (representing at least one-third of the Board), one of
whom possesses the appropriate professional qualifications in
accounting and financial management. Each of the three
independent non-executive Directors has confirmed his/her
independence of the Company and the Company considers each
of them to be independent in accordance with the guidelines of
assessing independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. Each of the three independent non-executive Directors
has signed a letter of appointment with the Company for a
specific term of three years.

Pursuant to Article 83(3) of the Articles of Association, any
Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing
Board shall hold office only until the first annual general meeting
of the Company after his or her appointment and shall then be
eligible for re-election. Pursuant to Article 84(1) of the Articles of
Association, at every annual general meeting of the Company,
one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is
not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than
one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement at an annual general
meeting at least once every three years. In accordance with
Articles 84(1) and 84(2) of the Articles of Association, Ms. Dai
Jiling and Ms. Xin zhu, therefore, will retire from their offices at
the 2025 annual general meeting of the Company (“2025 AGM"),
and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

All Directors have given sufficient time and attention to the affairs
of the Group and in particular, the independent non-executive
Directors have provided the Board with their diversified expertise
and professional advices. The Board is of the view that there is a
balanced composition of executive and independent non-
executive Directors in the Board and the independent non-
executive Directors are able to provide sufficient checks and
balances to safeguard the interests of the Group and its
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Shareholders. The participation of the independent non-executive
Directors in the Board and committee meetings also provides
independent judgment on the issues relating to strategy, policy,
performance, accountability, conflict of interest and standards of
conduct.

The Board members have access to timely information relating to
the Group’s business and will be provided with further
documents and information upon request to enable them to
make informed decisions. Independent professional advice can
be sought to discharge their duties at the Group’s expense upon
their request. No such advice was sought during the year ended
31 December 2024. The Company has subscribed appropriate
and sufficient insurance coverage on Directors’ liabilities in
respect of legal actions taken against Directors arising out of
corporate activities.

RESPONSIBILITY OF THE BOARD

The Board is in charge of leadership and control of the Group and
is responsible for maximising the Group’s financial performance
and making decisions in the best interests of the Group and its
Shareholders. Under the leadership of Mr. Wang Jun, the
chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”), the Board is also
responsible for formulating and overseeing the business
strategies and policies of the Group, approving and monitoring
annual budgets and business plans, reviewing operational and
financial performance, and reviewing and monitoring the Group’s
financial control and risk management systems. The Board has
delegated the daily operation and day-to-day management of the
Group as well as the implementation of the Board'’s policies and
strategies to the executive Directors and management of the
Group.

CHANGES OF INFORMATION IN RESPECT OF
DIRECTORS
In accordance with Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the
changes in information required to be disclosed by the Directors
are set out below:

(1) Ms. Wu Lam Li resigned as the non-executive Director, with
effect from 19 June 2024,

(20 Mr. Shi Shushan resigned as the chief executive officer,
with effect from 16 August 2024 and as the executive
Director on 1 February 2025, respectively.
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(3) Ms. Dai Jiling was re-designated as an executive Director
and appointed as a chief executive officer, with effect from
16 August 2024.

(4)  Ms. Xin Zhu ceased to be an independent non-executive
director of Datang Group Holdings Limited in September
2024,

BOARD MEETINGS AND GENERAL MEETING
The Board holds meetings regularly and meets at other times as
and when required to review financial, internal and compliance
controls, risk management, company strategy and operating
performance of the Group. In addition, the Board holds general
meeting to maintain an on-going dialogue with the Shareholders.
For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Board held 4 regular
meetings, 3 audit committee meetings, 1 nomination committee
meeting, 1 remuneration committee meeting and 1 general
meeting.

The number of Board meetings, committee meetings and general
meeting attended by each Director from 1 January 2024 to 31
December 2024 is set out in the following table:
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Sufficient notice for regular Board meetings and notice of
reasonable days for ad hoc Board meetings were given to all
Directors so as to ensure that each of them had an opportunity
to attend the meetings, and agenda and accompanying Board
papers were given to all Directors in a timely manner. As agreed
by the Board, the Directors may also seek independent
professional advice at the Company’s expense. No such advice
was sought during the year ended 31 December 2024. During the
intervals between Board meetings, the senior management of
the Company provides the Directors with information on a timely
basis regarding all major developments or changes in the Group's
businesses.

Should a Director have a potential conflict of interest in a matter
being considered in the Board meeting, he or she will abstain
from voting in respect of the relevant resolution. Independent
non-executive Directors with no conflict of interest will be
present at meetings to deal with such issues.

Full Board or committee papers will be sent to all Directors at
least three days before the intended date of a Board meeting or
committee meeting.

Management has supplied the Board and its committees with
adequate information and explanations so as to enable them to
make an informed assessment of the financial and other
information put before the Board and its committees for
approval. Management is also invited to join the Board or
committee meetings where appropriate.

All the Directors are also entitled to have access to timely
information such as monthly updates in relation to our
businesses and have separate and independent access to senior
management.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

Code provision C.1.4 of the Corporate Governance Code requires
all Directors to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
This is to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant.

During the year, the Company Secretary regularly circulated
reading materials on the amendments to or updates on the
relevant laws, rules and regulations to all Directors as part of
their training materials in the continuous professional
development plan of the Company and the Company confirmed
that all Directors read the training materials and were in
compliance with Code C.1.4.
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In addition, every newly appointed Director will receive an
induction on the first occasion of his or her appointment, so as to
ensure that he or she has a proper understanding of the
operations and business of the Company, and his or her
responsibilities under laws, regulations and especially the
governance policies of the Company.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
The position of Chairman is held by Mr. Wang Jun, while the
position of Chief Executive Office is held by Ms. Dai Jiling.

As the Chairman, Mr. Wang Jun is responsible for the
management and leadership of the Board to formulate overall
strategies and business development directions for the Group, to
ensure that adequate, complete and reliable information is
provided to all Directors in a timely manner, and to ensure that
the issues raised at the Board meetings are explained
appropriately.

As the Chief Executive Officer, Ms. Dai Jiling is responsible for the
daily operations of the Group and the implementation of business
policies, objectives and plans as formulated and adopted by the
Board, and is accountable to the Board for the overall operation
of the Group.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to present a
balanced, clear and understandable assessment of the Group's
performance, position and prospects in the consolidated financial
statements of the annual and interim reports in accordance with
statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards.
Pursuant to Code Provision D.1.1 of the Corporate Governance
Code, management should provide sufficient explanation and
information to the Board to enable the Board to make an
informed assessment of the financial and other information put
before the Board for approval. The Directors confirm that, to the
best of their knowledge, information and belief, having made all
reasonable enquiries, they are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that might cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern.
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In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2024, the Directors have selected appropriate
accounting policies and applied them consistently, and have
made judgments and estimates that are prudent and reasonable.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group has announced
its annual and interim results in a timely manner within the limit
of three months and two months after the end of the relevant
financial periods, respectively, as laid down in the Listing Rules.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining sound and effective risk
management and internal control systems to safeguard the
Group’s assets and shareholders’ interests. The Group
acknowledges the responsibilities of the Board and the
management in the risk management and internal control
systems:

o The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining
the nature and degree of risk (including risks related to the
environment, society and governance) it is willing to take in
achieving the Group's strategic objectives, and ensuring
that the issuer establishes and maintains appropriate and
effective risk management and internal control systems,
overseeing the management in the design, implementation
and monitoring of the risk management and internal control
systems.

o The management is responsible for the design, implementation
and monitoring of the risk management and internal control
systems, and shall confirm to the Board on the effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control systems.

The risk management and internal control systems are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable rather than
absolute assurance that there will be no material misstatement
or loss.
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In 2024, the Company did not publish its annual results for the
year ended 31 December 2023 (“2023 Annual Results”) within
the timeline stipulated by Rule 13.49(1) of the Listing Rules. The
delay in publication of the 2023 Annual Results was primarily
attributable to difficulties in collecting necessary information
from CCRE and related entities, particularly regarding the
expected credit loss (“ECL") assessment and relevant financial
information of CCRE required by the then auditors of the
company.

To prevent re-occurrence of similar delay in future, the Company
had reviewed and enhanced its risk management and internal
control systems by adoption of several remedial measures,
including (i) strengthening communication with CCRE through
regular meetings, (i) establishing a committee to oversee the
collection of receivables due from CCRE and to conduct regular
ECL assessments; (iii) engaging accounting experts at an earlier
stage to quantify the ECL; and (iv) reducing the extent of
connected transactions with CCRE.

Having considered the remedial measures implemented during
the year ended 31 December 2024, both the audit committee and
the board of the directors of the Company are of view that the
remedial measures taken adequately address and rectify the
identified deficiencies. The Company will continue to monitor the
effectiveness of its risk management and internal control systems
to ensure compliance with its obligations under the Listing Rules.

For further details as to the delay in publication of the 2023
Annual Results, please refer to the Company’s announcements
dated 26 March, 27 March, 28 March and 21 May 2024.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group has established the risk management infrastructure,
defined the risk management process, adopted qualitative and
quantitative integrated risk management methods to identify,
evaluate and mitigate risks. It shall promote the sustainable and
healthy development of various businesses of the Group under
controllable risks.

Based on the work done in previous years, the Group continued
to improve the risk management system structure through the
following efforts and has guided the implementation of risk
assessment and continuous risk monitoring activities:

Restatement and continued implementation of risk
management organisational structure: The Group has
reconfirmed the risk management organisational structure that
covers the decision-making level (the Board and the Audit
committee), the execution level (the headquarters of the Group
and its subsidiaries at all levels) and the supervision level (the audit
and supervision department of the Group). This has clearly defined
the responsibilities and authorities and major work scopes of each
level in written form, which helps to comprehensively identify and
manage risks. The Group has sorted out the major risk changes
regarding five risk categories, namely strategic risk, operational
risk, financial risk, compliance risk and environmental, social and
governance risk, and updated the risk database. Based on the
changing internal and external environment, and the strategic
objectives of the Group and the risk appetite of the management,
the Group has updated the applicable risk assessment dimensions
and standards, as well as risk assessment methods with qualitative
and quantitative tools.
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REHE

The Board and Audit Committee
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Executive authority
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Headquarter of the Group
(including all functional department)
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Subsidiaries of the Group
(including professional companies)
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Supervision authority
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Audit and supervision department
of the Group
EMEERED

(Diagram 1: Organisational structure of risk management)
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Clarifying and standardisation of risk management
process: The Group established a closed-loop risk management
process including risk identification, risk assessment, risk
response, risk monitoring, reporting and improvement, defines
the specific steps and contents of risk management work, and
the management tools used to support the process
implementation. The major steps of our risk management
process are illustrated in the diagram below:

Risk Identification

Risk Assessment

Risk Response

Risk Identification
LB R B

Reporting and
Improvement
E R

Risk Monitoring
AR EE

the headquarter of the Group and
subsidiaries identify major risks that may
affect the achievement of strategies and
business objectives,

to evaluate and analyse the risks
identified from two dimensions, namely
the possibility of occurrence and the
degree of impact of risks, and to rank
the importance of risks by integrating
risk assessment questionnaires, data
analysis and industry benchmarking;

analyse the effectiveness of existing
risk management measures, identify
risk monitoring gaps and formulate
risk response plans to control risks
within an acceptable level,
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Risk Monitoring

Reporting and
Improvement

to track and inspect the implementation
of the risk response plan, and monitor
the effectiveness of risk management
through the audit and supervision
department as the third line of defense;

Discuss and communicate the work
results of risk management on a regular
basis, and continuously improve and
optimise risk management and control
capabilities.

The main features of the Group's risk management system are as
follows:

66

Closed-loop risk management process: The risk
management process adopts a combination of top-down
and bottom-up approaches. Through a series of work
processes including risk identification, risk assessment, risk
response, risk monitoring, reporting and improvement, the
Group fully understands the major risks faced by the Group
and continuously monitors and manages the risks through
a closed-loop risk management process.

Risk database with clear levels and prominent
focuses: Based on five risk categories, namely strategy,
operation, finance, compliance and environmental, social
and governance, and taking into account the principles of
comprehensiveness, importance, synergy and
standardisation, the Group has established a risk database
at different levels.

Compliance with the Group’s risk assessment
criteria: We have established appropriate risk assessment
criteria based on the nature of the Company's industry and
business objectives, and the management's risk appetite.

Continuous improvement and optimisation mechanism:
The frequency of risk assessment (at least once a year) and
reporting and communication requirements are specified.
Through regular assessment, implementation and follow-up of
risk response measures, communication and reporting, the
Company continuously improves the risk management work
process and optimises risk management measures.
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During the year, with the help of external consulting institutions,
the Group applied the assessment methods and assessment
criteria jointly confirmed by the management to evaluate, analyse
and prioritise the risks (including risks related to the environment,
society and governance) that would most likely affect the
realisation of corporate objectives, determine the key risks
exposed by the Group, and discuss the management measures
of such key risks. Meanwhile, for each major risk, the Company
sorted out and recorded the existing risk response measures,
proposed risk management improvement advices according to
the risk appetite of the management, and reported the
assessment results to the Audit Committee.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for establishing an appropriate internal
control system for the Group to safeguard the Group’s assets and
shareholders’ interests. The Audit Committee shall regularly
review the effectiveness of the internal control system to ensure
that the internal control system is adequate.

The Group has set up an audit and supervision department as the
third line of defense. Through internal audit and follow-up review
on the improvement of internal control deficiencies identified
during the audit process, the Group communicates with relevant
management, supervises the timely implementation of internal
control improvement measures, and provides the Board with
independent and objective opinions on the effectiveness of the
Group's risk management and internal control systems. At the
same time, the audit and supervision department have
unrestricted access to the documents and records, information
systems and staff necessary for the implementation of the audit
procedures, and reports the audit results to the Audit
Committee.

The Group continues to improve the “CCNL Group Whistleblower
Management Regulations”, supports rational reporting and
establishes a dedicated channel to receive reports, supports
employees and other correspondents (such as customers or
suppliers) to raise their attention about any possible improper
matters concerning the Company through phone call, letters,
emails, visits, etc.. A whistleblower protection mechanism is also
established to keep whistleblowers’ information highly
confidential to prevent any illegal discrimination or retaliation.
Meanwhile, the Group attaches importance to employee integrity
management. We require all employees to sign and comply with
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the Commitment Integrity Pledge. The internal integrity
management is enhanced through online and offline integrity
trainings, which cultivate a culture of integrity in our Group.

As the first line of defense, the management at the Group’s
headquarters and professional companies level and their
respective functional department managers have designed and
implemented a series of management policies and procedures to
ensure that their work is in compliance with laws, regulations
and the Company’s strategies and business objectives, and the
heads of relevant operating units and departments are
responsible for supervising the implementation and effectiveness
of such policies and procedures to ensure the effective operation
of the Company’s internal control system.

INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group is aware of its obligations under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance and the Listing Rules. With respect to the
procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, the Company has formulated
the Guidelines on Management and Disclosure of Inside
Information, and announced the disclosure policy to the
Directors, senior management and relevant employees who may
have access to sensitive information, requiring them to comply
with the relevant procedures, handle confidential and/or inside
information according to the guidelines, monitor information
disclosure and respond to enquiries.

REVIEW OF RISK MANAGEMENT AND
INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

During the year under review, through the Audit Committee, the
Board has conducted a comprehensive review of the
effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal
control systems, taking into account the changes in the nature
and severity of significant risks, and the Group’s ability to respond
to changes in its business and the external environment. The
work during the year included the commencement of 2024 risk
assessment and the commencement of internal control review
on key business areas, covering financial, operational and
compliance controls. The Board considers that the Group has
complied with the provisions on risk management and internal
control as stipulated in the Corporate Governance Code and
considered the risk management and internal control systems
effective and adequate.
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The Audit Committee has reviewed the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience of the accounting, internal
audit and financial reporting functions, training programmes and
budget and considered that they are adequate.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company considers stable and sustainable returns to the
Shareholders to be its goal. In deciding whether to propose a
dividend and in determining the dividend amount, the Board shall
take into account, inter alia, the following factors:

the financial condition of the Group;

o the liquidity position and expected working capital
requirements of the Group;

o any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be
imposed by the Group's lenders;

o the retained earnings and distributable reserves of the
Company and each of the members of the Group; and

o any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

The payment of the dividend by the Company is also subject to
any restrictions under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands
and the Articles of Association of the Company.

Any final dividend declared by the Company must be approved
by an ordinary resolution of the Shareholders at an annual
general meeting of the Company and must not exceed the
amount recommended by the Board. The dividend policy will
continue to be reviewed from time to time and there can be no
assurance that a dividend will be proposed or declared in any
specific period.
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BOARD COMMITTEES AND CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board has established three committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) and the Nomination Committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) to oversee the relevant aspects of the Company’s
affairs. The three Board committees are provided with sufficient
resources to discharge their duties.

The Board as a whole is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties including:

a) to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance;

b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

c)  to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices in compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

e) to review the Company’s compliance with the code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

In compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, the Audit
Committee was established on 29 April 2020. The Audit
Committee comprises Ms. Xin Zhu (the Chairlady of the Audit
Committee), Mr. Leong Chong and Ms. Luo Laura Ying during the
year ended 31 December 2024. None of them is a member of the
former or existing auditors of the Company. The Board is of the
view that the members of the Audit Committee have sufficient
accounting and financial management expertise and experience
to discharge their duties. However, the Audit Committee is also
authorised to obtain external legal or other independent
professional advice if it considers necessary.
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The Audit Committee has written terms of reference in
accordance with the Code. The principal functions of the Audit
Committee include:

To make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, reappointment and removal of external
independent auditors and to approve the remuneration and
terms of such appointments;

To review and monitor the independence and objectivity of
the external independent auditors and effectiveness of the
audit process in accordance with applicable standards;

To review the Company’s financial controls, risk
management and internal control systems and other major
financial matters;

To review the Group's financial and accounting policies and
practices, and to monitor the Company’s financial operation
and core business status,

To ensure that the management has fulfilled its duties and
the Group’s strategic objectives to maintain an effective
risk management and internal control system,

To ensure compliance with applicable statutory accounting
and reporting requirements, legal and regulatory
requirements, internal rules and procedures approved by
the Board from time to time; and

To review and monitor the integrity of the financial
statements, annual and interim reports and the auditor’s
report to ensure that the information presents a true and
balanced assessment of the Group's financial position.

The Audit Committee held 3 meetings during the year ended 31
December 2024 and conducted the following responsibilities:

1)

reviewed the Group's annual results for the year ended 31
December 2023 and interim results for the six months
ended 30 June 2024;

reviewed the audit plans and findings of the external
auditor; and

made recommendation to the Board on the remuneration,
resignation and appointment of the external auditor.

ERELIHRS

ZEeNBREERETANE® T AREL -
ZEENT2BEEE

RONBR L AZ BT - B LR RE

EQRBES - WHUER T M IEK
RIBERRE - BEMEE NS IB 2B

HIES M BB - W EZBRER AR
e

R I - 26 &% BB MRS N i B
BB M EEE - R EZBRER AR
e

ma AERE R PER G BOR R B -
EEARR AWM BE(E MR DR

AR

BREEECBITEBERASENRIEM
EiZ - DA A RS B 1R K 1A 30 BE 4
=88

BEREETEANEEGT RBERE &
REEERENAREZETRBBN AR
AR &2

B REBMBRE FERS  PHRE
RIZEERERN TR - URRERERZ
BYEAREENMBEANEE MFH S -

EZLE %maimmimﬂmaﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
7

BT T BA N Ekak
ERAEFBEHE2023F12A3NBIEFEY
FEEE LB E2024F6A308 1E/518 A
ZHEIELE
EHINEZEA 2 R BB R AR K

LML BED 2 F B - BHERBERESS
}Et}jgﬁﬁ °

BEFEEERAT / B IEFR 71




<

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREIWE

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the attendance record
of the meeting is set out on page 59 of this report.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group as well as considered and
identified risks of the Group subsequent to 31 December 2024
and will continuously monitor the systems on a regular basis.

The Audit Committee also met with the external auditor annually
in the absence of management to discuss matters relating to any
issues arising from audit and any other matters the external
auditor may wish to raise.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the external independent
auditor’'s remuneration to the Group's auditor in respect of audit
service and non-audit services provided to the Group was
approximately as follows:

HE2020F12A3NBIEFE e EiLEH
MRAREESIE -

ERZECeDRBIALEBENEKREE R ANIBERE
I WR2024FE 12 A3NB 2B EBRERT

AEENRR  SRETHERARGIE -
BERZRE EEEEELF 2B T E

ENEEF
SMNERZBEIEE MR mEMRAERELEZEE
RONEZBEN Al g Rl 2 (R E b E o

BE2024F1N2ANAULFE  NEBEREZE
B 73 78 &= B B2 A A0 R BUIR 15 S SF R BUIR TS S e
SNIEB R BEIRE AT

Nature of Service REMHE Fees
we

RMB’000

ARYT T

— Audit service — ZEBR 2,960
Total K 2,960

The Company'’s annual results announcement dated 26 March
2025 for the year ended 31 December 2024 has been reviewed
by the Audit Committee.

72

Central China New Life Limited / 2024 Annual Report

AR B R2025F3 26 B 3 2 & 22024 F 12
ANBILFEZE2FEENECHERELZESE
Bﬁ °



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 29 April 2020
with written terms of reference as suggested under the code
provision in the Corporate Governance Code. The Nomination
Committee comprises three members, namely Mr. Wang Jun (the
chairman of the Nomination Committee), Mr. Leong Chong and
Ms. Xin Zhu, a majority of whom are independent non-executive
Directors.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include: (i)
reviewing the structure, size and composition (including skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least once a year, and
making recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed
changes to the Board for conforming to the strategy of the
Company; (ii) identifying and nominating qualified individuals to act
as Directors and making recommendations to the Board regarding
such matters, (jii) assessing the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors; (iv) making recommendations to the
Board regarding the appointment or reappointment of Directors
and succession planning for Directors, in particular the Chairman
and the Chief Executive Officer; and (v) reviewing the Board
Diversity Policy (as defined below), and the implementation of the
progress targets set by such policy.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Nomination
Committee held one meeting on 23 April 2024, among other
businesses, to review the existing structure, size and composition
of the Board, consider the retirement and re-election of Directors
and assess the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors. During the year ended 31 December 2024, the
attendance record of the meeting is set out on page 59 of this
report.

The chairman of the Nomination Committee shall attend the
annual general meeting of the Company to answer questions
raised by the Shareholders on Directors’ nomination and other
nomination policy matters.

The Company has adopted the Board Diversity Policy with effect
on 29 April 2020 which sets out its approach to achieve and
maintain diversity on the Board in order to enhance the
effectiveness of the Board.
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The Company recognises the benefits of Board diversity and
endeavours to ensure that the Board has the appropriate and
balanced skill levels, experience and perspectives to support the
execution of its business strategies. The Company seeks to
achieve Board diversity through the consideration of a number of
factors, including professional qualifications and experience,
cultural and educational background, race and ethnicity, gender,
age and length of service. The Company will also take into
consideration factors based on its own business model and
specific needs from time to time in determining the optimum
composition of the Board.

As recommended by the Nomination Committee, the Board has
set measurable objectives (in terms of gender, skills and
experience) to implement the Board Diversity Policy and review
such objectives from time to time to ensure their appropriateness
and ascertain the progress made towards achieving those
objectives. The Nomination Committee will review the Board
Diversity Policy, as appropriate, to ensure its continued
effectiveness from time to time.

As at the date of this report, the Board consists of three female
Directors, representing 60.0% of the members of the Board. The
Board targets to maintain an appropriate balance of gender
diversity. The Company established a succession mechanism to
maintain a balanced composition of the Board, and to ensure
independent views and input are available to the Board.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 29 April 2020
with written terms of reference as suggested under the code
provision in the Corporate Governance Code. The Remuneration
committee comprises three members, including two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Ms. Luo Laura Ying
(the Chairlady of the Remuneration Committee) and Mr. Leong
Chong, and Mr. Wang Jun (the Chairman and executive Director
of the Company), during the year ended 31 December 2024.
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The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include (but
not limited to) (i) making recommendations to the Board on the
Company's policies and structures for all remuneration of the
Directors and senior management and on the establishment of a
formal and transparent procedure for developing policy on such
remuneration; (ii) determining the terms of the specific
remuneration package of individual executive Directors and
senior management; (iii) reviewing and approving remuneration
proposals with reference to the corporate goals and objectives
set by the Board from time to time; and (iv) reviewing and/or
approving matters relating to share schemes under Chapter 17 of
the Listing Rules.

The amount of the executive Directors’ remuneration is
determined by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of the
relevant executive Directors’ experience, responsibility, workload
and the time devoted to the Group. The entire Directors’
remuneration is adjusted by the Remuneration Committee from
time to time.

The Remuneration Committee may also consult the Chairman on
proposals relating to the remuneration of other executive
Directors and may seek independent professional advice if
necessary.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Remuneration
Committee held one meeting on 23 April 2024 to review the
policy, package and structure of the remuneration of the
Directors and senior management and make recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration of the Directors and senior
management. No grant was made during the year ended 31
December 2024 which required review by the Remuneration
Ccommittee pursuant to Rules 17.03F, 17.06B(7) and 17.06B(8) of
the Listing Rules. During the year ended 31 December 2024, the
attendance record of the meeting is set out on page 59 of this
report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

In compliance with Rule 3.28 of the Listing Rules, the Company
Secretary is a full time employee and has the day-to-day
knowledge of the Company’s affairs. The Company Secretary is
responsible for advising the Board on corporate governance
matters. During the year under review, the Company Secretary
has confirmed that he has undertaken no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the Shareholders and the Board. An
annual general meeting of the Company shall be held each year
at the place as may be determined by the Board. Each general
meeting, other than an annual general meeting, shall be called
an extraordinary general meeting.

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an
Extraordinary General Meeting and Put Forward
Proposals Thereat

The following procedures for the Shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting are prepared in accordance with
Article 58 of the Articles of Association of the Company:

1) One or more Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to
require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by
the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition.

2)  The requisition must state the objects of the meeting, and
must be signed by the Shareholder(s) concerned and may
consist of several documents in like form, each signed by
one or more of those Shareholders.

3)  The requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the
Company Secretary via mail to the Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong at Units 1602-1605, 16/F,
Tower 2, The Gateway, Harbour City, 25 Canton Road, Tsim
Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

4)  The extraordinary general meeting shall be held within two
months after the deposit of the requisition.

5)  If the Directors fail to proceed to convene the extraordinary
general meeting within twenty-one (21) days of the deposit
of such requisition, the Shareholder(s) himself or
themselves may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by him/her/them as a result
of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
Shareholder(s) by the Company.
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Proposals for Proposing a Person for Election as a
Director

Subject to applicable laws and regulations, including the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the Listing Rules and the
Articles of Association as amended from time to time, the
Company may from time to time in a general meeting by ordinary
resolution elect any person to be a Director either to fill a casual
vacancy or as an additional Director.

A Shareholder may propose a person (the “Person”) for election
as a Director by lodging the following documents at the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at Units
1602-1605, 16/F, Tower 2, The Gateway, Harbour City, 25 Canton
Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong:

1) anotice in writing signed by the Shareholder concerned of
his/her/its intention to propose the Person as a Director
with full particulars of the Person including his/her full
name and biographical details as required under Rule
13.51(2) of the Listing Rules; and

2) a notice in writing signed by the Person of his/her
willingness to be elected as a Director.

Such notices shall be lodged at least seven (7) days prior to the
date of the general meeting and the period for lodgment of such
notices shall commence no earlier than the day after the
despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such
election and shall be at least seven (7) days in length.

Procedures for Raising Enquiries

To ensure effective communication between the Board and the
Shareholders, the Company has adopted a Shareholders’
communication policy:

1) Shareholders may direct their questions about their
shareholdings to the Company'’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited.

ERELIHRS

BERREEENESR

EERERNER (BHEASHEBRRDE - LR
AR ARERMAA (ETRERD)WNBRRT - AR
AR N B E BRBR RN BORAE L& T
ALTRES NERESSREZR  HERR
BEESMENXE -

BEREABATXHEZEARTNEEEZEEL
EHB (MU ABFBNELDHERESHGHE
WE BN E 2 FE 1612 1602-1605F ) + LATR BT
Atr(ZAL])2BES:

1) REETRAEI1B5IQERRTE - BRAKE
RENZHEAN  ETHEHAERAA/E
FHRATHEEHE  EREZRRER
FE R

2) BRALTRENZTHBEN XPEREE2EE
% o

RAEHHM L7 BES
BAESEMNFEBHHERD
EiEA o

ZEBAMAZ DA
EEEha (R0l
7 A - I

EHRERF
REREFSHERRZMAERER  AQFER
MBRBAERER

1) BRROABFREEARR  ARARREE
BBFECYREBTREFELARA
AR -

EEMEFEFRAR/ —2-MFFR 77




<

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREIWE

2)  Shareholders may at any time send their enquires and
concerns to the Board in writing through the Company
Secretary whose contact details are as follows:

Central China New Life Limited
units 1602-1605, 16/F

Tower 2, The Gateway
Harbour City, 25 Canton Road
Tsim Sha Tsui Kowloon

Hong Kong

3)  Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at
the general meetings of the Company.

MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION AND
ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

On 28 June 2024, the Shareholders approved to (a) make certain
amendments (the “Proposed Amendments”) to its
memorandum of association and Articles of Association
(collectively, the “Memorandum and Articles of
Association”); and (b) adopt the amended and restated
memorandum of association and the amended and restated
articles of association of the Company (collectively, the
“Amended and Restated Memorandum and Articles of
Association”) incorporating and consolidating all the Proposed
Amendments in substitution for, and to the exclusion of, the
Memorandum and Articles of Association, for the purpose of,
among other things, (i) reflect and align with the latest regulatory
requirement in relation to the expanded paperless listing regime
and the electronic dissemination of corporate communications
by listed issuers and the relevant amendments made to the
Listing Rules which took effect from 31 December 2023; and (ii)
align with other relevant requirements of the Listing Rules and
company law of the Cayman Islands and incorporate certain
corresponding and housekeeping amendments. For details,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 23 April
2024 and the circular of the Company dated 5 June 2024. The
Company has adopted the Amended and Restated Memorandum
and Articles of Association effective since 28 June 2024.

Save for the above, during the year ended 31 December 2024,
the Company did not make any changes to its memorandum and
Articles of Association. The Amended Memorandum and Articles
of Association is available on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE COMMUNICATION AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The major task and objective of the Group’s investor relations are
to clearly introduce the Group, including the business positioning,
existing operations and future development of the Group, to the
media, Shareholders, investors, analysts and investment banks
through different communication channels. In future, the Group
shall further enhance communication with the media,
Shareholders, investors, analysts and investment banks on
various aspects such as development strategies, operation and
management, financial prospects and business operation
through meetings, senior management'’s participation in investor
forums, conferences and roadshows. The Group is confident in
establishing and maintaining a good relationship with the
international capital institutions through the continued
enhancement of information transparency.

The Group emphasises the importance of maintaining good
communication with the Shareholders, so as to increase the
Company’s transparency and understanding by the Shareholders.
To enable that the Shareholders are effectively informed of the
Group's status and developments, the Group issues
announcements, circulars, notices, interim and annual reports in
a timely manner. To enhance the Company’s transparency, other
information about the Company is published on the Company'’s
website.

The Company’s annual general meetings allow the Directors to
meet and communicate with the Shareholders and to answer any
queries that the Shareholders may have. An external
independent auditor is also present at the annual general
meetings. The Chairman will propose separate resolutions for
each issue to be considered at the annual general meetings. A
notice of annual general meeting is delivered to all Shareholders
at least 20 clear business days prior to the date of the meeting,
setting out details of each proposed resolution and other
information. Voting results are posted on the websites of the
Company and of the Stock Exchange.

During the Year, the Board has reviewed the shareholders
communication policy.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wang Jun, aged 44, was appointed as our Director on 16
October 2018, appointed as our chairman of our Board and chief
executive officer and redesignated as our executive Director of
the Group on 28 October 2019. On 14 February 2022, Mr. Wang
ceased to be the Company'’s chief executive officer in order to
separate the roles of chairman and chief executive with a view to
further optimise the corporate governance structure of the
Company and enable a greater delineation of responsibilities.

Mr. Wang joined our Group in June 2018. Since June 2018, Mr.
Wang has been a director of Central China New Life. Prior to
joining our Group, Mr. Wang had more than 16 years of
experience in the accounting and corporate finance fields. From
August 2003 to June 2007, Mr. Wang served as an auditor and a
senior auditor successively at PricewaterhouseCoopers. From
June 2007 to April 2011, he served as the head of the investor
relations department and senior manager of the finance
department of Country Garden Holdings Company Limited (Z#E
EZRR AR A A]) (@ company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock
code: 2007) successively. From May 2011 to June 2018, he
worked in the investment banking division (real estate team) of
Morgan Stanley Asia International Limited, with the last position
held as an executive director. From 21 August 2018 to 1 August
2022, Mr. Wang was an executive director of CCRE. Mr. Wang has
served as a non-executive director of DIT Group Limited (2x %
ERHREB AR AR (@ company listed on the Stock Exchange,
stock code: 726) since his appointment on 17 September 2019.
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Mr. Wang obtained his bachelor’'s degree in English from
Guangdong University of Foreign Studies (ERSMNEINE AE) in
the PRC in June 2002 and his master’s degree in business
administration from Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology in November 2011.

Mr. Wang has an interest in the shares of the Company, details of
which are set out in the section headed “Directors’ and chief
executives’ interests and short positions in shares, underlying
shares or debentures” under Directors’ report in this annual
report.

Ms. Dai Jiling, aged 51, was appointed as our non-executive
Director on 24 March 2023. Ms. Dai was re-designated from a
non-executive Director to an executive Director and was
appointed as the chief executive officer on 16 August 2024.

Ms. Dai has over 30 years of experience in journalism and
business operations. Between August 1993 and February 2001,
she served as a reporter at Anyang TV Station. Between February
2001 and March 2009, she served as a reporter at China Central
Television ("CCTV") News Center Interview Department. Between
March 2009 and May 2019, she served successively as the chief
reporter and manager of CCTV Henan Reporter Station. Since
May 2019, she has served as the vice president of the CCRE
Group, and has also served successively as the deputy secretary
of the CCP Committee, the secretary of the Discipline Inspection
Committee and the secretary of the CCP Committee of the CCRE
Group, where she oversees the party building, audit and
supervision, brand building, public welfare, customer service and
general management of the CCRE Group.

Ms. Dai obtained her bachelor’s degree in journalism from
Zhengzhou University in July 2002.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Leong Chong, aged 59, was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director of our Group on 29 April 2020. Mr. Leong
is primarily responsible for providing independent judgment on
our strategies, policy, performance, accountability, resources,
key appointments and standard of conduct.

Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Leong had over 20 years of
experience in the finance field. From July 1997 to June 2000, he
worked as an analyst in the equity research division of Morgan
Stanley Dean Witter. From June 2000 to October 2001, he was a
director of the equity research department of Credit Suisse First
Boston (Hong Kong) Limited. From June 2002 to September 2015,
he worked in Morgan Stanley Asia Limited with the last position
held as the managing director of the investment banking division.
From December 2016 to March 2019, he was the deputy general
manager of S.F. Holding Co., Ltd. (JIE & 3% f% B {5 AR 2 7)), a
company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code:
002352) in January 2017 and on the Stock Exchange (stock code:
6936) in November 2024. Mr. Leong has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director of JY Grandmark Holdings
Limited (£ & HEBEZEAREFR A F]) (@ company listed on the
Stock Exchange, stock code: 2231) since November 2019. Mr.
Leong has also been appointed as an independent non-executive
director of Longfor Group Holdings Limited (a company listed on
the Stock Exchange, stock code: 960) since January 2023.
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Mr. Leong was a director of Gateway Capital Group Limited (EJ[&
BE @A R AR]), a company incorporated in Hong Kong and
was dissolved on 9 August 2002. Mr. Leong confirmed that the
above company was solvent prior to its deregistration and was
deregistered as it had not commenced business since
establishment or had ceased to conduct business. He further
confirmed that, as of the date of this annual report, no claims
had been made against him and he was not aware of any
threatened or potential claims made against him and there were
no outstanding claims and/or liabilities as a result of the
deregistration of the above company.

Mr. Leong obtained his bachelor’s degree in computer science
from the University of California, Berkeley in the U.S. in December
1990.

Ms. Luo Laura Ying, aged 60 , was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director of our Group on 29 April 2020. Ms. Luo is
primarily responsible for providing independent judgment on our
strategies, policy, performance, accountability, resources, key
appointments and standard of conduct.
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Prior to joining our Group, Ms. Luo had over 20 years of
experience in the investment field. From 1995 to 1999, Ms. Luo
worked in various well-known investment banks including
Goldman Sachs (Asia) L.L.C. and Morgan Stanley Dean Witter.
From November 1999 to July 2001, she was the head of China
research of the research department of SG Securities (HK)
Limited. From July 2001 to July 2013, Ms. Luo worked in Schroders
Investment Management (Hong Kong) Limited, with the last
position held as an equity fund manager. From September 2013
to September 2019, she worked in Barings Asset Management
(Asia) Limited, with the last position held as the managing
director. Ms. Luo has been a consultant of GL Capital
Management Limited since December 2019 and subsequently
transferred to GL China Equity HK Management Limited in May
2020. Ms. Luo Laura Ying has been appointed as an investment
director and responsible officer of GL China Equity HK
Management Limited since August 2022. She has been an
independent non-executive director of China Medical System
Holdings Limited (525 2% 1%k BBR 2 ) (@ company listed on
the Stock Exchange, stock code: 867) since March 2020. She has
been appointed as an independent non-executive director of
Tianjin Port Development Holdings Limited (@ company listed on
the Stock Exchange, stock code: 3382) since March 2023. Since
February 2024, she has been appointed as a director of Pawo
Foundation Limited.

Ms. Luo was a director of eShine Technology Limited (fa=&H%
ABR A7), a company established in Hong Kong and was dissolved
on 17 August 2018. Ms. Luo confirmed that the above company
was solvent prior to its deregistration and was deregistered as it
had not commenced business since establishment or had ceased
to conduct business. She further confirmed that, as of the date of
this annual report, no claims had been made against her and she
was not aware of any threatened or potential claims made
against her and there were no outstanding claims and/or
liabilities as a result of the deregistration of the above company.
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Ms. Luo obtained her bachelor’'s degree in international
economics from Peking University (1t ;2 A£2) in the PRC in July
1987 and her master’s degree in business administration from
the University of Toronto in Canada in June 1991. Ms. Luo has
been as a chartered financial analyst by the Chartered Financial
Analyst Institute since September 1999 and a chartered
professional accountant by the Chartered Professional
Accountants of British Columbia since June 1995.

Ms. Xin Zhu, aged 56, was appointed as our independent non-
executive Director of our Group on 29 April 2020. Ms. Xin is
primarily responsible for providing independent judgment on our
strategies, policy, performance, accountability, resources, key
appointments and standard of conduct.

Prior to joining our Group, Ms. Xin had over 25 years of
experience in the accounting industry as well as executive
management in public companies. From 1990 to 2008, Ms. Xin
worked in various accounting firms and finance corporations,
including Shenzhen Shekou Chinese Accountancy where she
served as an accountant, and Shenzhen Brewery Limited where
she served as the chief financial officer. Since February 2006 and
up to present, Ms. Xin has been serving in various companies
listed on the Stock Exchange, including listed companies
engaging in the business of property development in the PRC.
From February 2006 to June 2008, she worked in Hopson
Development Holdings Limited (& £ &8l B & B & R A 7)) (@
company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 00754), with
the last position held as the vice president. From July 2008 to
June 2014, she worked in China Aoyuan Group Limited (# B & &
&£ B % A R 2 al) (@ company listed on the Stock Exchange,
stock code: 3883), with the last concurrent positions held as the
executive director and executive vice president. From July 2014
to September 2016, she served successively as (i) the chief
financial officer of Logan Property Holdings Company Limited (&
e EERR B R AR]) (@ company listed on the Stock Exchange,
stock code: 3380) and (ii) the executive vice president of
Guangzhou Yihe Real Estate Group Limited (E/NEEMEEE).
From June 2018 to February 2024, she was an independent non-
executive director of CanSino Biologics Inc. (B 7576 £ WAL {7 A 7))
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(a company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 6185), a
company engaging in the development, manufacturing and sales
of vaccines. From November 2020 to September 2024, she was
an independent non-executive director of Datang Group Holdings
Limited (RESBIZRR AR A A]) (@ company was then listed on
the Stock Exchange, stock code: 2117, and delisted in October
2024), a company engaging in the business of property
development in the PRC. Since April 2021, she has been an
independent non-executive director of Suxin Joyful Life Services
Co., Ltd. (BR#T 3T HIE IR AR A F]) (@ company listed on
the Stock Exchange, stock code: 2152).

Ms. Xin obtained her bachelor’'s degree in accounting from
Renmin University of China (FF B4 A R X &) in the PRC in July
1990 and her master’s degree in business administration from
Auckland Institute of Studies in New Zealand in December 1999.
Ms. Xin has been a certified public accountant of the PRC since
February 1996 and a member of the CPA Australia since January
2010.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Dai Jiling

For the details, please refer to the above paragraph headed
“Executive Directors”.
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The Board presents this annual report with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the financial
year ended 31 December 2024.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision of property
management services, community value-added services and
value-added services to non-property owners. An analysis of the
Group's revenue for the year ended 31 December 2024 by
principal activities is set out in note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Discussion and analysis of the business review required by
Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a
description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing by the
Group and an indication of likely future development in the
Group'’s business, can be found in the “Chairman’s Statement”
set out on pages 33 to 38 and the “Management Discussion and
Analysis” set out on pages from 40 to 55 of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to the long term sustainability of the
environment and communities in which it operates. The Group
operates its business in compliance with applicable
environmental protection laws and regulations and has
implemented relevant environmental protection measures in
compliance with the required standards under applicable PRC
laws and regulations. Further details of the Group's
environmental policies and performance will be disclosed in the
environmental, social and governance report of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2024 to be published in accordance
with the Listing Rules.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

As far as the Board and management are aware, the Group has
complied in all material aspects with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the business and
operation of the Group. During the year ended 31 December
2024, there was no material breach of, or non-compliance, with
applicable laws and regulations by the Group.
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EFEHE

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS, SUPPLIERS AND OTHERS

The Group fully understands that employees, customers and
suppliers are the key to our sustainable and stable development.
We are committed to establishing a close relationship with our
employees, enhancing cooperation with our suppliers and
providing high-quality products and services to our customers so
as to ensure the Group's sustainable development.

SEGMENT INFORMATION
Management considers there to be one operating segment under
the requirements of HKFRS 8.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2024 and the
state of the Group's affairs as at 31 December 2024 are set out in
the financial statements on pages 140 to 146 of this annual
report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

Profits attributable to shareholders, before dividends, of
RMB214,594,000 (2023: losses attributable to shareholders of
RMB574,369,000) have been transferred to reserves. Other
movements in reserves are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity.

HK$24.1 cents per share as special dividend for the year ended
31 December 2023 was paid out of the Company’s share
premium account on 23 July 2024 to the Shareholders whose
names appeared on the register of members of the Company at
the close of business on 9 July 2024.

HK$10.59 cents per share (for the six months ended 30 June
2023: HK$8.71 cents) was distributed as interim dividend for the
six months ended 30 June 2024.

The Board resolved to recommend a final dividend of HK$7.36
cents (equivalent to RMB6.80 cents) per share for the year ended
31 December 2024 to be paid out of the Company’s share
premium account (for the year ended 31 December 2023: nil).

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purposes of determining shareholders’ eligibility to attend
and vote at the 2025 AGM, the register of members of the
Company will be closed from Wednesday,28 May 2025 to
Monday, 2 June 2025 (both days inclusive), during which no
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transfer of shares will be registered. All properly completed share
transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share
registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, no later than 4:30 p.m. on
Tuesday, 27 May 2025, for registration.

In addition, the Board has recommended a final dividend of
HK$7.36 cents (2023: Nil) per ordinary share payable to
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members
of the Company on Wednesday, 11 June 2025, subject to the
Shareholders’ approval at the 2025 AGM. The register of
members of the Company will be closed from Monday, 9 June
2025 to Wednesday, 11 June 2025 (both days inclusive) for the
purpose of ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement to the
proposed final dividend. During such period, no share transfer
will be registered. In order to qualify for the proposed final
dividend, all transfers, accompanied by the relevant share
certificates, must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong
branch share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, no later
than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 6 June 2025, for registration. The final
dividend will be distributed on or about Wednesday, 25 June
2025.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated results and of the consolidated
assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 271 of this annual
report. This summary does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year are set out in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option schemes and share award scheme as
set out below, no equity-linked agreements were entered into by
the Group, or existed during the year ended 31 December 2024.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 23 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company and
the Group during the year ended 31 December 2024 are set out
in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements and in the
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity, respectively.

As at 31 December 2024, the Company’s distributable reserves
were approximately RMB1,623.4 million.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2024, purchases from the
Group's five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 15.1%
of the Group’s total purchases and purchases from the largest
supplier amounted to approximately 7.4% of the Group's total
purchases. Sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted
for approximately 3.2% of the Group’s total turnover and sales to
the largest customer amounted to approximately 1.5% of the
Group's total turnover.

Save as disclosed in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements, to the best knowledge of the Directors, none of the
Directors or their respective close associates or any Shareholder
owning more than 5% of the Company'’s issued share capital, had
any interest in any of the five largest customers or five largest
suppliers of the Group.

DIRECTORS
The Directors in office during the year ended 31 December 2024
and up to the date of this annual report are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Jun (Chairman)

Ms. Dai liling (re-designated from a non-executive Director on
16 August 2024)

Mr. Shi Shushan (resigned on 1 February 2025)

Non-executive Director

Ms. Wu Lam Li (resigned on 19 June 2024)

Ms. Dai liling (re-designated as an executive Director on
16 August 2024)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Leong Chong

Ms. Luo Laura Ying

Ms. Xin Zhu
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Pursuant to Article 83(3) of the Articles of Association, any
Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing
Board shall hold office only until the first annual general meeting
of the Company after his or her appointment and shall then be
eligible for re-election. Pursuant to Article 84(1) of the Articles of
Association, at every annual general meeting of the Company,
one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is
not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than
one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement at an annual general
meeting at least once every three years. In accordance with
Article 84(1) and 84(2) of the Articles of Association, Ms. Dai Jiling
and Ms. Xin Zhu, therefore, will retire from their offices at the
2025 AGM, and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, an annual written confirmation of his or her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all of the independent non-executive
Directors as independent.

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section
headed "Profile of Directors and Senior Management” on pages
80 to 86 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of our executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from the Listing Date or their date of appointment,
which may be terminated by not less than three months' notice
in writing served by either party on the other.

Each of our non-executive Directors and our independent non-
executive Directors has entered into a letter of appointment with
the Company for a term of three years commencing from the
Listing Date, which may be terminated by not less than three
months’ notice in writing served by either party on the other.

None of our Directors has any existing or proposed service
contracts with any member of our Group (excluding contracts
expiring or determinable by the employer within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation)).
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Other than the Director’s service contracts and appointment
letters, no contract concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Group was entered into or in existence as at the
end of the year or at any time during the year ended 31
December 2024.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

None of the Directors or an entity connected with the Director
had a material beneficial interest, either directly or indirectly, in
any transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to the
business of the Group to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party, nor any transaction, arrangement or
contract of significance has been entered into between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries and the controlling
Shareholders or any of its subsidiaries during the year ended 31
December 2024 or as at 31 December 2024.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2024, none of the Directors
or any of their respective associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) was considered to be interested in any business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the business of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

All Directors are entitled to a fee as approved by the Board with
reference to the prevailing market conditions. Executive Directors
are entitled to fees, salaries, housing allowances, other
allowances, benefits in kind (including contribution to the pension
scheme on behalf of our Directors), share award or discretionary
bonuses, which are determined by the Board having regard to
the Group’s performance and the prevailing market conditions
and approved by the remuneration committee of the Company.
Details of Directors’ emoluments and emoluments of the five
highest paid individuals of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2024 are set out in notes 35 and 11 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES OR
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2024, the interests and short positions of the
directors (the "Directors”) and chief executives of the Company
in the shares (the “Shares”), underlying Shares and debentures
(the "Debentures”) of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ")) required to be recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 352
of the SFO, or otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO or
pursuant to the Model Code in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules,
were as follows or as disclosed under the section headed “Share
Award Scheme” below:

(@) Long positions in the Shares and underlying
Shares of the Company
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EERFTETHAEBHE SORERMTE FrERaEAa BN E DL
Mr. Wang Jun Interest in a controlled 45,398,000 3.49%
corporation
FlefEE Xy AE R
Beneficial owner 1,800,000? 0.14%
EmlEEA
Mr. Shi Shushan Beneficial owner 900,000? 0.07%
(resigned on 1 February 2025)
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Ms. Wu Lam Li Interest of a spouse 848,092,944 65.27%
(resigned on 19 June 2024)
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Notes:

1. The approximate percentage of the interest in the Company’s
issued share capital is based on a total of 1,299,276,000 Shares
of the Company in issue as at 31 December 2024.

2. These interests in the Shares represent the share awards of the
Company which were granted and vested to the respective
Directors by the Company under the 2023 Share Award Scheme.
Details of which are shown in the section headed “2023 Share
Award Scheme” of this annual report.

(b) Long position in the shares of our associated
corporation

e -

1. BRI ARREEITRANMOE DR
2024F12A31H AR A B BEITRMHE B
1,299,276,000 it E -

2. BERGERIEADFRIE023F R L\
HEMEEEEH R BB ORA TR 20 -
5 RSB B A5 4F 3R 2003 F R 1) SR 5t 81
—f5 -

(b) REEEERGOTHNER

Percentage of
interests in the
associated

Class and corporation as at

Name of associated  Nature of number of 31 December

Name of Director corporation interest securities held 2024
%2024 &

12A31H

FrisR 585 BB B

EEME B EE AR ERME 53 4= EREIL
Ms. Wu Lam Li (resigned Enjoy Start Limited Interest of a spouse 1 ordinary share 100%

on 19 June 2024)

WA+ (R 2024 F BlABR AR BBz s
6H19H%EF)

Save as disclosed above or under the section headed “Share
Award Scheme” below, as at 31 December 2024, none of the
Directors, chief executives of the Company or their associates
had any interests or short positions in any Shares, underlying
Shares and Debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
would have to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which the Directors and
chief executives were deemed or taken to have under the
provisions of the SFO), or which were required to be and are
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(a)

Pre-IPO share option scheme

The pre-IPO share option scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme”) was conditionally adopted by the
Shareholders on 29 April 2020.

Purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to
provide incentive or reward eligible participants for their
past and continuing contribution to the Group.

Participants of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
Eligible participants include any director, employee,
customer, supplier, agent, partner, consultant, shareholder
or contractor (or trustees or companies beneficially owned
by any of the above), in each case of the Group or an
associate company in which the Group is a shareholder.

Maximum number of Shares

The Company granted two batches of share options to
subscribe for 45,000,000 shares pursuant to the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Options”) on 3
January 2019 and 10 January 2019. No further Pre-IPO
Share Options will be granted. As at 31 December 2024,
there were no outstanding Pre-IPO Share Options.

Limit for each participant

The maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted to any individual
grantee shall not exceed 1.0% of the total issued Shares
immediately upon its listing (without taking into account
any Shares which may be allotted and issued upon the
exercise of the Pre-IPO Share Options and the Post-IPO
Share Options), unless approved by the shareholders of the
Ccompany.
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Option period and vesting

The Pre-IPO Share Options may be exercised according to
the terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme in whole or
in part by the grantee after vesting but before the expiry of
five years after the vesting date. Any option which remains
unexercised shall lapse upon the expiry of such option
period.

The Pre-IPO Share Options will be vested in 3 tranches as
follows, provided that the annual performance appraisal
target set by the Group for the relevant financial year is
satisfied:

° 30% of the total number of the options will be vested
six months immediately following the Listing Date;

. 30% of the total number of the options will be vested
12 months immediately following the Listing Date;
and

° 40% of the total number of the options will be vested
24 months immediately following the Listing Date.

Payment on acceptance of offer and exercise price
Each grantee was required to pay HK$1 as consideration
for the acceptance of the grant of the Pre-IPO Share
Options. The exercise price is HK$0.62 per Share, which
was determined by the Board.

Remaining life of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme took effect upon the
listing of the Company and shall remain in full force and
effect to the extent necessary to give effect to the exercise
of any options granted prior thereto.

For details, please see the prospectus of the Company
dated 5 May 2020.

Central China New Life Limited / 2024 Annual Report

BREHRREGE
ERATRERBR(ENEBERBLFRE
B ) AR IR B R A3 A B A AR ET 81 M0 15
REBXEDITEBERXAFREEHIEAE -
TEARIRAT 2 #O BB A S 12 54 BB AR AR fE
BRI ©

BRARABEEMBRERZ T XAED B=
HEE  MRAASERAEMBFERE
MEEEREZBREEER

o  BRBAERMI0%HNERE LT A
‘ANEAERE

o BREAEH30%FNER LT A
BI2EALRE : &

o BREAZHNA0%FNERE LT A
®24EARERS

BEZEHATEERN S
FEABRANBAZMBTEAEREHE X
AHABEEIERENRE - TEEARER
0.62770 ' HEFERTE ©

BEAXAFRERBRET BB TR R
BRARMBERBRETENARLHRE
Mo BIDEBTRBNRIER - EL AR
HEE TR RS PATTE

HBEB2HARHEBA2020565 A5 HMA



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFEHE

Movement of the Pre-IPO Share Options for the year was as BRAREESAERENFEANCEEIAT
follows:
Exercise As at Granted  Exercised Lapsed Cancelled As at

Name or category price  1January duringthe duringthe duringthe duringthe 31 December
of participants Date of grant  per share 2024 year year year year 2024

#2024 E #2024 E
SEEREREAY  BRERH BRTEE 1A1H ERRL ERTR Eri¥  FRE#E 128318
Senior management 10 January 2019 HK$0.62 540,000@ - - - (540,000)@ -
and other employees
of the Group @
FEESAERER  2019F1A10B  062%7T  540,0009 - - - (540,000 -
EEE?

540,000 - - - (540,000 -
Notes: Btat -

None of the options granted to any participant would result in
the Shares issued and to be issued in respect of all options
granted to such person (excluding any options lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the scheme) in the 12-month
period up to and including the date of such grant to represent in
aggregate over 1% of the Shares in issue.

All such employees are employees (but not Directors) of the
Group and fall within the meaning of “employee participants”
under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

The fair value of Pre-IPO Share Options granted on 10 January
2019 determined using the binomial option-pricing model was
approximately RMB20.8 million. Due to the subjective nature of
and uncertainty related to a number of assumptions of the
expected future performance input to the binomial model as
well as certain inherent limitations of the model itself, the
calculation is subject to certain fundamental limitations. The
value of share options varies with different variables of certain
subjective assumptions, and any change to the variables used
may materially affect the estimation of the fair value of the share
options. Please refer to Notes 25 and 37.18 headed “Share-
based payments” to the consolidated financial statements for
details (including the accounting policy).

540,000 Pre-IPO Share Options were cancelled during the year
ended 31 December 2024.
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(b)
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Post-IPO share option scheme

The post-IPO share option scheme (the “Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme”) was conditionally adopted by the
Shareholders in compliance with Chapter 17 of the Listing
Rules on 29 April 2020.

At the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held
on 7 August 2023, the Shareholders resolved to terminate
the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme with immediate effect.
As a result, no further options may be offered but in all
other respects the terms of such scheme shall remain in
full force and effect. All options granted prior to such
termination and not then exercised shall continue to be
valid and exercisable in accordance with such scheme.

Purpose of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme is to
motivate eligible persons to optimise their future
contributions to the Group and/or to reward them for their
past contributions, to attract and retain or otherwise
maintain on- going relationships with the eligible persons
who are significant to and/or whose contributions are or
will be beneficial to the performance, growth or success of
the Group, and additionally in the case of Executives, to
enable the Group to attract and retain individuals with
experience and ability and/or to reward them for their past
contributions.

Participants of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme
Eligible participants include any of the following persons
that are invited at the Board’s sole discretion: any director
or proposed director (including an independent non-
executive director) of any member of the Group, any
executive director of, manager of, or other employee
holding an executive, managerial, supervisory or similar
position in, any member of the Group (an “Employee”),
any proposed Employee, any full-time or part-time
Employee, or a person for the time being seconded to work
full-time or part-time for any member of the Group, a
consultant, business or joint venture partner, franchisee,
contractor, agent or representative of any member of the
Group, a person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support or any
advisory, consultancy, professional or other services to any
member of the Group, or an associate (as defined under
the Listing Rules) of any of the foregoing persons.
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Maximum number of Shares

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Post-
IPO Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company must not in aggregate exceed
10% of the total number of Shares in issue as of the Listing
Date, being 120,000,000 Shares (the “Scheme Mandate
Limit"). Options lapsed in accordance with the terms of the
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme of the Company will not be counted for the
purpose of calculating the Scheme Mandate Limit. The
Scheme Mandate Limit may be refreshed with the approval
of the Shareholders in general meeting.

Limit for each participant

The maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted to any one eligible
participant (including exercised and outstanding options) in
any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in
issue from time to time.

Each grant of options to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Group or any of their
respective close associates under the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme shall be approved by the independent non-
executive Directors of the Company (excluding the
independent non-executive Director who is the proposed
grantee of the option). Where any grant of options to a
substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
director of the Group or any of their respective close
associates would result in the securities issued and to be
issued upon exercise of all options already granted and
which may be granted (including options exercised,
canceled and outstanding) to such person in the 12-month
period up to and including the date of such grant: (a)
representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the Shares in issue;
and (b) having an aggregate value, based on the closing
price of the Shares at the date of each grant, in excess of
HK$5 million, such further grant of options must be
approved by the Shareholders.
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Option period

The option period shall be determined by the Board. Any
option which remains unexercised shall lapse upon the
expiry of the option period. An option shall be subject to
such terms and conditions (if any) as may be determined
by the Board and specified in the offer of the option,
including any vesting schedule and/or conditions, any
minimum period for which any option must be held before
it can be exercised and/or any performance target which
need to be achieved by an option-holder before the option
can be exercised.

Payment on acceptance of offer and exercise price
The subscription price in respect of any particular option
shall be such price as our Board may in its absolute
discretion determine at the time of grant of the relevant
option (and shall be stated in the letter containing the offer
of the grant of the option) but the subscription price shall
not be less than whichever is the highest of:

() the nominal value of Share;

(i) the closing price of Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the offer date;
and

(i) the average of the closing prices of Shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the
five business days immediately preceding the offer
date.

Remaining life of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme
At the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held
on 7 August 2023, the Shareholders resolved to terminate
the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme with immediate effect.
As a result, no further options may be offered but in all
other respects the terms of such scheme shall remain in
full force and effect. All options granted prior to such
termination and not then exercised shall continue to be
valid and exercisable in accordance with such scheme.
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On 12 July 2021, the Company granted Post-IPO Share
Options to eligible participants to subscribe for an
aggregate of up to 11,738,000 Shares, all of which were still
pending acceptance by the participants. The closing price
of the share immediately before the date of the grant was
HK$6.92. During the year ended 31 December 2024, the
Post-IPO Share Options to subscribe for 2,400,000 Shares
(representing approximately 0.18% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the date of this annual report)
were cancelled.

Movement of the Post-IPO Share Options for the year was
as follows:
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the Shares issued and to be issued in respect of all options
granted to such person (excluding any options lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the scheme) in the 12-month
period up to and including the date of such grant to represent in
aggregate over 1% of the Shares in issue.

2. All such employees are employees of the Group and fall within
the meaning of “employee participants” under Chapter 17 of
Listing Rules.

3. The options granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme
would not have a dilutive effect on the earnings per Share for
the year.
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4. The vesting period of such Post-IPO Share Options is 5 years.
Vesting is conditional upon achievement of certain performance
targets by the Company as set out in the respective offer letters.
The Post-IPO share options have been granted pending
acceptance by the participants.

5. 2,400,000 Post-IPO Share Options granted to senior management
and other employees of the Group were cancelled during the
year ended 31 December 2024.

6. The number of options available for grant under the remaining
scheme mandate limit of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme
which was terminated on 7 August 2023.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

2023 Share Award Scheme

The Company’s new share award scheme (the “2023 Share
Award Scheme”) was adopted and approved by the
Shareholders on 7 August 2023. For further details, please refer
to the announcements of the Company dated 30 May 2023 and 7
August 2023 and the circular of the Company dated 20 July 2023.
Pursuant to the 2023 Share Award Scheme, the awarded Shares
will be satisfied by new Shares to be allotted and issued by the
Company to the trustee, or through on-market acquisitions of
existing Shares by the trustee at the prevailing market price.

Purpose

The purpose of the 2023 Share Award Scheme is to (i) align the
interests of the eligible participants with those of the Group
through ownership of Shares, dividends and other distributions
paid on Shares and/or the increase in value of the Shares; and (ii)
to encourage and retain eligible participants to make
contributions to the long-term growth and profits of the Group.

Participants

Eligible participants consist only of directors and employees of
the Group, who in the absolute discretion of the Board have
contributed (and will continue to contribute) or will contribute to
the Group. This also includes employees who are granted options
and/or awards as an inducement to enter into employment
contracts with the Group but excludes an employee or director
who has submitted his/her resignation or whose contract of
employment has been terminated (summarily dismissed or
otherwise). Further, eligible participants excludes anyone who is
resident in a place where the grant of an award and/or the
vesting and transfer of the awarded Shares pursuant to the terms
of the 2023 Share Award Scheme is not permitted under the laws
or regulations of such place or where in the view of the Board,
compliance with applicable laws or regulations in such place
makes it necessary or expedient to exclude such participant.
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Award of Shares and pool of awarded Shares

The total number of Shares which may be issued in respect of all
awards under the 2023 Share Award Scheme and other share
schemes of the Company would be no more than 127,872,600
Shares, representing no more than 10% of the total number of
Shares in issue as at the date of adoption of the 2023 Share
Award Scheme.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The maximum number of Shares, in a 12-month period up to and
including the date of award, which may be subject to an award to
a selected participant together with any Shares issued and to be
issued under any options granted to such person under any
share option schemes of the Company shall not (i) in aggregate
exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the
date of adoption of the 2023 Share Award Scheme; and (ii)
exceed any limits applicable to such person under the Listing
Rules.

Each grant of an award to any Director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or any of their
respective associates, shall be subject to the prior approval of
the independent non-executive Directors (excluding any
independent non-executive Director who is a proposed recipient
of the grant of an award). In addition:

(@ where any grant of awarded Shares to any Director (other
than an independent non-executive Director) or chief
executive of the Company, or any of their respective
associates, would result in the Shares issued and to be
issued in respect of all award shares granted (excluding any
award shares lapsed) in accordance with the terms of the
2023 Share Award Scheme and other share scheme(s) of
the Company (if any) to such person in the 12-month period
(or such other time period as may be specified by the Stock
Exchange from time to time) up to and including the date of
such grant representing in aggregate over 0.1% (or such
other percentage as may be specified by the Stock
Exchange from time to time) of the Shares in issue as at the
date of such grant, such further grant of awarded Shares
must be approved by Shareholders in general meeting in
the manner required, and subject to the requirements set
out, in the Listing Rules; or
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(b)  where any grant of awarded Shares to an independent non-
executive Director or substantial shareholder of the
Company (or any of their respective associates) would
result in the Shares issued and to be issued in respect of all
award shares and options granted (excluding any award
shares and options lapsed) in accordance with the terms of
the 2023 Share Award Scheme and other share scheme(s)
adopted by the Company to such person in the 12 month
period (or such other time period as may be specified by
the Stock Exchange from time to time) up to and including
the date of such grant representing in aggregate over 0.1%
(or such other percentage as may be specified by the Stock
Exchange from time to time) of Shares in issue as at the
date of such grant, such further grant of awarded Shares
must be approved by Shareholders in general meeting in
the manner required, and subject to the requirements set
out, in the Listing Rules.

In the circumstances described (a) and (b) above, the Company
must send a circular to the Shareholders. The selected
participants, his/her associates and all core connected persons
of the Company must abstain from voting in favour at such
general meeting. The Company must comply with the
requirements under Rules 13.40, 13.41 and 13.42 of the Listing
Rules.

Vesting of the awarded Shares and performance targets
The respective awarded Shares shall vest on the selected
participant in accordance with the applicable vesting schedule as
set out in the letter of grant when all the vesting conditions set
out therein have been satisfied and/or waived (all of which shall
be determined by the Board or the Remuneration Committee in
its absolute discretion). The Board or the Remuneration
committee may direct and procure the trustee to release from
the trust the awarded Shares to the selected participants by
transferring the number of awarded Shares to the selected
participants in such manner as determined by the Board or the
Remuneration Committee from time to time.
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The Board may at its discretion specify any conditions (including
performance targets (if any)) which must be satisfied before the
awarded Shares may be vested in the award letter. Such
performance targets may include financial targets and
management targets which shall be determined based on the (i)
individual performance, (i) performance of the Group and/or (iii)
performance of business groups, business units, business lines,
functional departments, projects and/or geographical area
managed by the selected participants.

Subject to the Listing Rules, the Board or the committee of the
Board or person(s) to which the Board delegated its authority
may from time to time while the 2023 Share Award Scheme is in
force and subject to all applicable laws, determine such vesting
criteria and conditions or periods for the award to be vested. The
vesting date in respect of any award shall be not less than 12
months from its date of grant, provided that for employees, the
vesting date may be less than 12 months from the date of grant
(including on the date of grant) in and only in the following
circumstances where:

(@ grants of "make whole” awards to new joiner employee
participants to replace share awards such employee
participants forfeited when leaving their previous
employers;

(b) grants to an employee participant whose employment is
terminated due to death or disability or occurrence of any
out of control event. In those circumstances, the vesting of
awards may accelerate;

(c) grants of awards with performance-based vesting
conditions, in lieu of time-based vesting criteria;

(d)  grants of awards that are made in batches during a year for
administrative and compliance reasons. They may include
awards that should have been granted earlier but had to
wait for a subsequent batch. In such cases the vesting
periods may be shorter to reflect the time for which an
award would have been granted;

(e) grants of awards with a mixed or accelerated vesting
schedule such as where the awards vest evenly over a
period of 12 months; or

(f)  grants of awards with a total vesting and holding period of
more than 12 months.
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Purchase price of awarded Shares

The purchase price of the awarded Shares (if any) shall be such
price which shall be determined by the Board from time to time
based on considerations such as the prevailing closing price of
the Shares (being the average closing market price for the five
preceding business days on which the Shares are traded on the
Stock Exchange), the purpose of the award and the
characteristics and profile of the selected participant. Such room
for discretion provides the Board with flexibility to stipulate, if
necessary, a purchase price for awarded Shares, while balancing
the purpose of the award and the interests of Shareholders.

Remaining life

Subject to early termination, the 2023 Share Award Scheme shall
be valid and effective for a term of 10 years commencing from
the date of its adoption, being 7 August 2023. As at the date of
this annual report, the 2023 Share Award Scheme had a
remaining life of approximately 8 years.

Movements of awarded Shares

On 29 May 2023, the Board resolved to award an aggregate of
21,800,000 awarded Shares (the “2023 Awarded Shares”) at nil
consideration to a total of 16 employee participants, which
includes 4 Directors, pursuant to the 2023 Share Award Scheme.

The closing price of the Shares, immediately before the grant
date of the 2023 Awarded Shares was HK$2.62. For the 2023
Awarded Shares, the fair value is recognised as an expense over
the period in which the vesting conditions are fulfilled. The total
amount to be expensed over the vesting period is determined by
reference to the fair value of the 2023 Awarded Shares. A total
expense of RMB15.8 million was recognised for employee
services received in respect of the 2023 Share Award Scheme for
the year ended 31 December 2024. For details, please refer to
the note 25 headed “Share-based payments” to the annual
financial information.
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The grant of the 2023 Awarded Shares were made conditional on
the Shareholders approving the adoption of the 2023 Share
Award Scheme (and for the Directors, approval of independent
Shareholders for such grant to them), which was obtained via the
ordinary resolution passed at the extraordinary general meeting
of the Company held on 7 August 2023. As such, no awarded
Shares were issued at the beginning of the year. The 2023
Awarded Shares were eventually issued to the trustee on 8
September 2023, and 5,640,000 Shares were vested during the
year ended 31 December 2024. Particulars of the movement of
the award granted under 2023 Share Award Scheme during the
year are shown in the following table in this section.

The 2023 Awarded Shares are subject to the satisfaction of the
vesting criteria and conditions as set out in the table below.
These also include performance targets. The Company has
established an appraisal mechanism to evaluate the performance
of each Selected Participant. Each Selected Participant will be
continually assessed throughout his/her employment. The
performance targets of the Awarded Shares are individualised
based on the job nature and job positions of each Selected
Participant and the projected market and business conditions.
The performance targets of the Awarded Shares include (among
others) the Company achieving satisfactory revenue, gross profit,
net profit, gross floor area under management or other internal
performance metrics during the vesting period of the awarded
Shares. Shortly prior to each vesting date, the Board will
determine whether the relevant grantee has met his/her
performance targets for the relevant one-year period prior to the
vesting date. In assessing whether such performance targets
have been satisfactorily met, the Board and Remuneration
Committee will focus on the growth and reputation of the Group,
its industry ranking, as well as benchmarking of such key
performance metrics against comparable companies in the same
industry and/or with a listing on the Stock Exchange or a
comparable and recognised stock exchange.

Subject to fulfillment of all such vesting criteria and conditions,
the 2023 Awarded Shares shall be transferred from the trustee to
the selected participants upon expiry of the respective vesting
period.
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Movement of the 2023 Awarded Shares during the year was as 2023 fE S2EN IR (A E A E B 0T ¢
follows:

Number of Awarded Shares
REBRAEE

Unvested
Unvested Lapsed/ as at
asat  Granted Vested cancelled 31
Selected Date of Vesting 1 January during during during December
participants grant © period 2024  theyear  theyear  theyear 2024
R2024 % R2024F
1818 FRA®/ 128318
BESHE REBHO BEH A5EE FRARY FAEE B AEE

Directors
EE
— Mr. Wang Jun 29 May 2023 —30%: 12 months from the date 6,000,000 - (1,800,000) - 4,200,000
of grant (i.e. 29 May 2024)
—30%: 24 months from the date
of grant (i.e. 29 May 2025)
— 40%: 12 months from the date
of grant (i.e. 29 May 2026)
—TREE 20203%F58298 —30%: B BSET 1288
(BN2024F5R8298)
—30% : BRI A EEE 2418 A
(BP2025F5A298)
—40% : BRI BERET 126 A
(BN2026F5R298)

— Mr. Shi Shushan 29 May 2023 —30%: 12 months from the date 3,000,000 - (900,000) - 2,700,000
of grant (i.e. 29 May 2024)
— 30%: 24 months from the date
of grant (i.e. 29 May 2025)
— 40%: 12 months from the date
of grant (i.e. 29 May 2026)
—2ELESE 2023658298 —30% : BR L BHEE 12(8A
(BD2024%5R298)
—30% : BR M AHRE 24 A
(BN202555A298)
—40% : BRI AR 120 A
(BN2026 5 A 298)

—Ms.Wulamli 29 May 2023 — 30%: 12 months from the date 1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000
of grant (i.e. 29 May 2024)
— 30%: 24 months from the date
of grant (i.e. 29 May 2025)
— 40%: 12 months from the date
of grant (i.e. 29 May 2026)
—FifRt 2023654298 —30% : BRI BHEE 12(8A
(BD2024%5R298)
—30% : BRI AR 24EA
(BN202555H298)
—40% : BRI AR 120 A
(BD2026 54 298)
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Number of Awarded Shares

RRROHE
Unvested
Unvested Lapsed/ as at
asat  Granted Vested cancelled 31
Selected Date of Vesting 1 January during during during December
participants grant © period 2024  theyear  theyear  theyear 2024
RK2024 % R2024F
1818 FRA®/ 128318
Broug BHEH BEH AEE  FRABRY FAEE 8 AEB
— Ms. Dai Jiling 29 May 2023 —30%: 12 months from the date 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000
of grant (i.e. 29 May 2024)
— 30%: 24 months from the date
of grant (i.e. 29 May 2025)
— 40%: 12 months from the date
of grant (i.e. 29 May 2026)
—Rikat 2023F5R298 —30% : B AMBE12(8A
(BN2024F5A29R)
—30%: BRI BB 24EA
(BD2025%5A298)
—40% : BRI BEEE 1208 A
(BN2026%5A298)
Five highest paid 29 May 2023 —30%: 12 months from the date 4,000,000 - (1,200,000) - 2,800,000
individuals of grant (i.e. 29 May 2024)
(excluding — 30%: 24 months from the date
Directors) (in of grant (i.e. 29 May 2025)
aggregate)” — 40%: 12 months from the date
of grant (i.e. 29 May 2026)
LEREHEMAL 2023557298 —30%: ARE AR 1217
(EZRM) (BD2024%5R298)
(gsho —30%: BRI AER24EA
(BN2025%5A29H)
—40% : BRI AR 126 A
(BN2026%5A298)
Other employee 29 May 2023 —30%: 12 months fromthe date 6,300,000 - (1,740,000) - 4,560,000
participants (not of grant (i.e. 29 May 2024)
being Directors or — 30%: 24 months from the date
chief executive of of grant (i.e. 29 May 2025)
the Company) — 40%: 12 months from the date
of grant (i.e. 29 May 2026)
HitlES28EE 2085579298 —30%: ERHEAHEN12HA
(FEATES (BD2024%5R298)
REETHAR) —30% : BRI AR 246 A
(BN2025%5A29H)
—40% : BRI BERE 1216 A
(BN2026%5A298)
Total 21,800,000 (5,640,000) - 16,160,000
@t
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Notes:

1. Save as disclosed above, there is no any other information required to
be disclosed pursuant to Rule 17.07 of the Listing Rules.

2. The purchase price of all awarded Shares set out in the table above is
nil.

3. All conditional grants to the Directors set out in the table above were
made on 29 May 2023 and became unconditional on 7 August 2023.

4. None of the grants set out in the table above were in excess of the 1%
individual limit under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. Further, the 2023
Share Award Scheme is not available to any related entity or service
provider.

5. The number of Shares available for grant under the scheme mandate
limit as at 1 January 2024 and as at 31 December 2024 was 106,072,600
Shares.

6. During the year ended 31 December 2024, no 2023 Awarded Shares
were granted by the Company under the 2023 Share Award Scheme,
therefore, the number of shares that may be issued in respect of
options and awards granted under the 2023 Share Award Scheme
during the year divided by the weighted average number of shares in
issue for the year is zero.

7. Of these five highest paid individuals, two are Directors whose award
shares are disclosed above.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
IN THE SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY
So far as is known to any Directors or chief executives of the
Company, as at 31 December 2024, other than the interests and
short positions of the Directors or chief executives of the
Company as disclosed in the sections headed “Directors’ and
Chief Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares,
uUnderlying Shares or Debentures”, “Share Option Scheme” and
“Share Award Scheme” above, the following persons had
interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO:
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Long positions in the Shares RERGBHPHTE
Approximate
percentage of
the interest in
the Company’s
Number of issued share
Name of Shareholder Capacity and nature of interest Shares held capital’
EHEERAT
S2RITREN
BRER BB SHORERMEE RO EE BABEDL
Mr. Wu Po Sum Interest in a controlled corporation 848,092,9442 65.27%
HHER A SEEEER
Enjoy Start Limited Beneficial owner 848,092,9442 65.27%
BB ER AR Emia A
Ms. Wu Lam Li Interest of a spouse 848,092,9443 65.27%
P+ [y
Gaoling Fund, L.P. Beneficial owner 84,857,000 6.53%
Ema A
Hillhouse Capital Advisors, Ltd. Interest in a controlled corporation 84,867,000 6.53%

Notes:

XYL E s

1. The approximate percentage of the interest in the Company’s issued 1.
share capital is based on a total of 1,299,276,000 Shares of the
Company in issue as at 31 December 2024.

2. Mr. Wu Po Sum holds 100% of the issued share capital of Enjoy Start 2.
Limited and is deemed to be interested in the 848,092,944 Shares held
by Enjoy Start Limited for the purposes of the SFO.

3. Ms. Wu Lam Li is the spouse of Mr. Wu Po Sum and is therefore 3.
deemed to be interested in the same number of Shares that Mr. Wu Po

Sum is interested in under the SFO.

4. Hillhouse Capital Advisors, Ltd. (“Hillhouse Capital”) is the sole 4.
investment manager and general partner of Gaoling Fund, L.P. Hillhouse
Capital is deemed to be interested in the 84,857,000 Shares held by

Gaoling Fund, L.P.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, there was no
other person (other than the Directors or chief executives of the
Company) who had an interest or short position in the Shares or
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be

kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

B b 3Pt & 4 -
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= o
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to the Company'’s Articles of Association, every Director
shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the
Company against all losses or liabilities which he/she may sustain
or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his/her office
or otherwise in relation thereto. The Company has subscribed
appropriate directors’ and officers’ liabilities insurance coverage
for the Directors and officers of the Group.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group has entered
into the following continuing connected transactions:

Provision of the real estate agency services by the
Group to CCRE

On 24 June 2019, the Company entered into the 2019 real estate
agency services framework agreement with CCRE, pursuant to
which the Company shall provide real estate agency services in
respect of the first-hand property sales as well as preparation
services (including but not limited to consultation services and
event organisation services) to CCRE. Due to the adjustment of
the annual cap under the 2019 real estate agency services
framework agreement, on 30 October 2020, the Company
entered into the 2020 real estate agency services framework
agreement with CCRE in place of the 2019 real estate agency
services framework agreement. As the 2020 real estate agency
services framework agreement was due to expire on 31
December 2022, the Company entered into the 2022 real estate
agency services framework agreement with CCRE on 9
December 2022 to extend the term to 31 December 2025. The
service fees were charged as commission based on contracted
sales amount of the CCRE's properties, depending on the overall
property market environment, project location, difficulties of
marketing and other factors.

The service fees to be charged for the real estate agency services
are determined after arm'’s length negotiations with reference to
the (i) the agency fees charged as commission and incentives
based on contracted sales amount of CCRE Group's properties,
depending on the overall property market environment, project
location, difficulties of marketing, scope of services and other
factors; and (ii) the rate generally offered by the Group to
independent third parties in respect of comparable agency
services. With respect to each project, the relevant members and
associates of CCRE and the Group will further enter into individual
separate agreement that prescribes the specific terms and
conditions of each project.
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The annual caps for the real estate agency services framework
agreement for the years ending 31 December 2023, 2024 and
2025 are RMB350 million, RMB350 million and RMB350 million
respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, there was no service fee
receivable by the Group under the real estate agency services
framework agreement.

For details, please see the circular of the Company dated 19
January 2023.

Provision of the tourism services by the Group to CCRE
On 30 January 2019, the Company entered into the tourism
services framework agreement with CCRE to renew the 2018
tourism services framework agreement, pursuant to which the
Company shall provide the tourism services to CCRE for the
promotion of the CCRE’S business. As the tourism services
framework agreement was due to expire on 31 December 2021,
the Company entered into the renewed tourism services
framework agreement with CCRE on 29 October 2021 to extend
the term to 31 December 2024.

The fees payable by the CCRE Group and its associates to the
Group in respect of the tourism services shall be determined with
reference to (i) the degree of customisation of the tourism
services; (i) the actual cost involved (including but not limited to
costs of transportation, accommodation, catering, entrance
tickets and other travel-related expenditures); and (i) prevailing
market prices for comparable projects and comparable services.
A cost-plus pricing is used with a mark-up percentage from 8% to
30% after taking into account taxes.

The annual cap of the tourism services framework agreement for
the years ending 31 December 2022, 2023 and 2024 are RMB50
million, RMB70 million, and RMB100 million, respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the service fee receivable
by the Group under the tourism services framework agreement
amounted to approximately RMB33,000.

For details, please see the announcements of the Company
dated 29 October 2021 and 9 November 2021.
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Provision of the commercial property management
services by the Group to CCRE

On 26 June 2019, the Company entered into the commercial
property management service framework agreement with CCRE,
pursuant to which the Company will provide operation
management and consulting services to the CCRE's commercial
assets, including but not limited to hotel, office building, cultural
tourism complex, cultural tourism and other commercial projects.
Due to the expansion of scope of management services, the
original annual cap will be insufficient for 2021. On 13 May 2021,
the Company and CCRE entered into the supplemental
commercial property management services framework
agreement to include and amend certain terms of the
commercial property management services framework
agreement. As the commercial property management services
framework agreement was due to expire on 31 December 2021,
the Company has entered into the renewed commercial property
management services framework agreement with CCRE on 29
October 2021 to extend the term to 31 December 2024.

Fees payable by the CCRE Group and its associates to the Group
in respect of hotels shall comprise of (i) basic fee; (i) service fee;
(i) booking fee; (iv) incentive payment; and (v) consultation fee,
calculated in the following manner:

()  Basic fee: depending on the nature of the hotel projects
(self-run hotel projects/entrusted hotel projects), basic fee
shall be determined with reference to the total operation
income in respect of self-run hotel projects or charged at a
fixed rate per each hotel room in respect of entrusted hotel
projects. The standard charge for self-run hotel projects is
2% of the total operation income of such self-run hotel,
while the charge for entrusted hotel projects is RMB5,000
per hotel room per year.

(i)  Service fee: 1% of the total operation income for self-run
hotel projects.

(i) Booking fee: 1% of total revenue per available room for
self-run hotel projects.

(iv)  Incentive payment: (a) as a percentage (50%—60%) of profit
increase/loss reduction with reference to the excess over
the targeted net operating profit for hotel operations or (b)
as a percentage (4%-6%) of monthly revenue for spa
operation.
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(v)  Consultation fee: determined with reference to the nature
and scope of the consultation services and at
approximately RMB2,500,000 per project.

Fees payable by the CCRE Group and its associates to the Group
in respect of cultural tourism complexes shall comprise of (i)
opening preparation fee, (i) basic management service fee, (iii)
incentive management service fee, and (iv) advisory consultation
service fee, calculated in the following manner:

() Opening preparation fee: at a fixed rate of RMB20,000,000
per project;

(i) Basic management service fee: at 9% of the revenue of a
project;

(i) Incentive management service fee: at 50% of net operating
profit in excess of the budget; and

(iv) Consultation service fee: depending on the project
progress, the consultation service fee will be determined
with reference to the nature and scope of the consultation
services and at a fixed rate of RMB1,000,000 to
RMB1,500,000 per project.

Fees payable by the CCRE Group and its associates to the Group
in respect of other commercial properties (excluding hotels and
cultural tourism complexes) shall comprise of (i) basic
management service fee, (i) business solicitation commission, (iii)
incentive management service fee and (iv) opening incentive,
calculated in the following manner:

() Basic management service fee: the service fee will be
determined with reference to the project location, expected
operation and management cost, market price and other
factors. It will be based on the operational commercial
building area and charged monthly at a fixed basic
management service fee. Depending on the project
progress (preparation stage or operation period), the price
ranges from RMB90,000 to RMB500,000 per month.

(i) Business solicitation commission: 1.5 times of the monthly
standard rent applicable to the associated brand.

(i) Incentive management service fee: during the operation
period, the fee will be 40% of net operating profit over the
budget; or 5% to 10% of operation income plus 10% of
profit.
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(iv)  Opening incentive: approximately RMB13.1 per square
meter in prefecture (county)-level cities, and approximately
RMB19.65 per square meter in provincial capitals.

The annual caps for the commercial property management
services framework agreement for the years ending 31
December 2022, 2023 and 2024 are RMB105 million, RMB115
million, and RMB120 million, respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, there was no service fee
receivable by the Group under the commercial property
management service framework agreement.

For details, please see the announcements of the Company
dated 29 October 2021 and 9 November 2021.

Provision of the property consultation and
management services by the Group to CCRE

On 31 January 2019, the Company entered into a property
consulting and management services framework agreement with
CCRE. On 28 October 2019, due to the adjustment of the annual
cap, the Company and CCRE renewed the property consulting
and management services framework agreement to replace and
terminate the previously concluded property consulting and
management services framework agreement. As the property
consultation and management services framework agreement
was due to expire on 31 December 2021, the Company entered
into the renewed agreement on 11 November 2021 to extend the
term to 31 December 2024. Pursuant to these agreements, the
Company will provide property consulting and management
services to CCRE in accordance with the needs of the CCRE's
residential and commercial property projects in Henan Province,
PRC. The services and fees to be charged by the Group include:

(@) Consultation services (including pre-delivery
consultancy services and early stage initiation
services): determined with reference to the nature and
size of the property and the scope of the consultation
services. The price ranges between RMB1 to RMB8 per
sg.m..
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(b) Marketing centre management services: charged
based on the operating costs (including staff salaries, staff
benefits, administration and management costs), the
applicable tax of approximately 6.72% related to the
marketing centre management services, plus a mark-up of
10% to 20% depending on factors including the nature, type
and location of the property projects, the location and size
of the marketing centre and the nature, schedule and
complexity of the marketing activities.

(c) Vacant properties management services: charged in
accordance with the management fee standard for
residential property or parking lot in the district where the
vacant property is located. The price ranges between
RMBO.6 to RMB20 per month per sg.m..

(d Self-owned properties management services:
determined with reference to the expected costs and
prevailing market prices for comparable services. The price
ranges between RMBO0.6 to RMB20 per month per sg.m..

(e) Properties pre-delivery inspection services:
determined with reference to the size of the property,
expected costs and prevailing market prices for comparable
services. The price ranges between RMB6 to RMBS8 per
sg.m..

The fees to be charged by the Group for provision of such
services are determined on arm'’s length basis with reference to
the (i) nature, category and location of the properties; (ii) gross
floor area of the properties; (i) anticipated operation costs,
including primarily staff costs and administration costs; and (iv)
prevailing market prices for comparable services. With respect to
each project, the relevant members and associates of CCRE and
the Group will further enter into individual separate agreement
that prescribes the specific terms and conditions of each project.

The annual caps for the consulting and management services
framework agreement for the years ending 31 December 2022,
2023 and 2024 are RMB300 million, RMB375 million and RMB480
million, respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the service fees
receivable by the Group under the consulting and management
services framework agreement amounted to approximately
RMB28.3 million.

For details, please see the circular of the Company dated 9
December 2021.
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Provision of the membership maintenance and
management services by the Group to CCRE

On 29 March 2019, the Company entered into a membership
maintenance and management services framework agreement
with CCRE. On 30 October 2020, due to the adjustment of the
annual cap, the Company and CCRE renewed the membership
maintenance and management services framework agreement
to replace and terminate the previously concluded membership
maintenance and management services framework agreement.
As the membership maintenance and management services
framework agreement was due to expire on 31 December 2022,
the Company entered into the 2022 membership maintenance
and management services framework agreement with CCRE on 9
December 2022 to extend the term to 31 December 2025.
Pursuant to these agreements, the Company will provide
membership maintenance and management services to CCRE.
Membership maintenance and management services are
provided to residents of residential property projects developed
and to be developed by CCRE, who are or will become members
of the community. Membership maintenance and management
services include member normal services and large-scale event
planning and organisation services.

As under the membership maintenance and management
services framework agreement, the fees to be charged for the
membership maintenance and management services shall be
determined based on arm’s length negotiations and taking into
account the anticipated operational costs including labour costs
with reference to the fees for similar services and similar type of
projects in the market. In terms of the daily operation and
management services for members, the service fee is RMB4,500
per person per year. In terms of the events organisation and
planning for the members of the Central China Consumers Club,
the service fee ranges from approximately RMB1 million to RMB4
million per event. With respect to each event, the relevant
members and associates of CCRE and members of the Group will
further enter into individual separate agreement that prescribes
the specific terms and conditions of each event, including the
service scope and service fee applicable to the particular event.

The annual caps for the membership maintenance and
management services framework agreement for the years ending
31 December 2023, 2024 and 2025 are RMB100 million, RMB100
million and RMB100 million, respectively.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024, there was no service fee
receivable by the Group under the membership maintenance and
management services framework agreement.

For details, please see the announcement of the Company dated
9 December 2022.

Provision of the procurement services by the Group to
CCRE

On 30 October 2020, the Company entered into the procurement
services framework agreement with CCRE, pursuant to which the
Company agreed to provide procurement services to CCRE in
respect of gift packs for the property purchasers of the CCRE as
part of their marketing. Such gift packs comprise goods and/or
services offered by the Independent Third Parties, such as
electrical appliances and household commodities as well as
services offered by the CCRE Group and its associates, such as
cash vouchers for hotels, shopping malls, cultural tourism
complexes and Cuisine Henan Foodcourts (# ¥ A& &) owned
by the CCRE Group and its associates. As a result of the growth
in business of the Company, the original annual cap under the
framework agreement would be insufficient for 2021. On 9
November 2021, the Company and CCRE entered into the
supplemental procurement services framework agreement to
amend such annual cap. As the procurement services framework
agreement was due to expire on 31 December 2022, the
Company entered into the 2022 procurement services framework
agreement with CCRE on 9 December 2022 to extend the term to
31 December 2025.

Procurement by the CCRE Group and its associates

The Group will continue to provide to the CCRE Group and its
associates the procurement services to the CCRE Group and its
associates, being procurement services in respect of gift packs for
their property purchasers as part of their marketing strategy. In order
to improve customer satisfaction, promote the brand recognition of
“Central China (E%)" and increase customer repurchase rate, the
CCRE Group and its associates typically offer gift packs to their
property purchasers. The gift packs are tailored for each property
project of the CCRE Group and its associates based on its marketing
strategy themes with the own characteristics of each property
project.
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Such gift packs comprise goods and/or services offered by the
Independent Third Parties, such as electrical appliances and
household commaodities as well as services offered by the CCRE
Group and its associates, such as cash vouchers for hotels, shopping
malls, cultural tourism complexes and Cuisine Henan Foodcourts
(3% AR ) owned by the CCRE Group and its associates.

In order for us to prepare the gift packs for the target property
purchasers, the CCRE Group and its associates shall enter into an
individual agreement with the Group for each property project,
which sets out (i) the market value per gift pack in RMB; and (ii)
the specific categories of goods and services to be included in
the gift packs in order to tailor to the consumption preferences
and needs of the target property purchasers for the particular
property project.

Prior to entering into any individual service agreement for
procurement by the CCRE Group and its associates for a specific
property project, the CCRE Group and its associates would
determine the service fee for the procurement Services with the
Group on arm’s length basis with reference to the following
factors:

o the marketing positioning and brand planning of the
property projects and the market conditions at the time of
sales launch of the property projects, including the
promotion offers of the competitors of the CCRE Group and
the CCRE Group's expected marketing budget (which, to
the Director’s knowledge and belief, has been impacted by
the continuing downturn of the real estate industry and
ongoing impact of COVID-19), which would in turn affect
the total market value in RMB of the gift packs;

o the expected prevailing market prices of the goods and/or
services offered under the gift packs at the time of
procurement; and

o a reasonable mark-up rate, ranging from 10% to 30%, to be
charged by the Group for the provision of procurement
services, which amounts to similar price level in case the
CCRE Group and its associates acquire similar merchandise
from the relevant suppliers in the market without the
benefits of the Group’s sourcing networks and bulk
purchase discount offered by the Group's suppliers.
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Procurement by the CCNL Group

Where the Group has a need to acquire services of the CCRE
Group to be offered under the relevant gift packages prepared by
the Group (such as cash coupon for hotels, shopping malls,
integrated cultural tourism projects and Cuisine Henan
Foodcourts (2 % X & ¥) owned by the CCRE Group), whether
for the CCRE Group or otherwise, the Group may purchase such
services from the CCRE Group.

Prior to entering into any individual service agreement for
procurement by the CCNL Group, the CCRE Group and the Group
would determine the service fee for the procurement services on
arm'’s length basis with reference to:

o the cost of the CCRE Group of providing such services
required by the Group;

o the expected prevailing market prices of the goods and/or
services offered under the gift packs at the time of
procurement, with reference to quotations from at least
two Independent Third Party service providers for
comparable services (to the extent possible); and

o a reasonable bulk discount for purchases of cash coupons
at appropriate discounts.

The annual caps for the procurement by the CCRE Group and its
associates for the years ending 31 December 2023, 2024 and
2025 are RMB25 million, RMB25 million and RMB25 million,
respectively.

The annual caps for procurement by the CCNL Group for the
years ending 31 December 2023, 2024 and 2025 are RMB25
million, RMB25 million and RMB25 million, respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, there was no service fee
receivable by the Group for the procurement by the CCRE Group
and its associates, while the service fees payable by the Group
for the procurement by the CCNL Group amounted to
approximately RMB0.7 million.

For details, please see the announcement of the Company dated
9 December 2022.
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Sublease by the Group from Central China Properties
for principal place of business in Hong Kong

On 31 March 2023, Central China Properties Development
Limited (X% %2R AR A7) ("Central China Properties”)
(as sublessor) and the Company (as sublessee) entered into a
sublease agreement pursuant to which, Central China Properties
agreed to sublet the premises (situated at Unit No. 7708B on
Level 77 of International Commerce Centre, 1 Austin Road West,
Kowloon, Hong Kong) to the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 1 April 2023 to 30 March 2026 (both days
inclusive). Under such sublease agreement, amounts payable by
the Company consist of rent at HK$206,392.90 per calendar
month (exclusive of air-conditioning and management charges,
government rates and other outgoing which are payable by the
Company) and air-conditioning and management charges at
HK$28,131.61 per calendar month. The Company paid a deposit
of HK$731,339.43, which is equivalent to the aggregate of three
months’ rent, three months’ air-conditioning and management
charges and three months’ government rates.

The Company'’s previous lease for its principal place of business
in Hong Kong expired on 31 March 2023. As such, the Company
entered into the above sublease agreement to move its principal
place of business in Hong Kong to an adjacent unit for cost
efficiency. The Company intended to sublease the relevant land
from Central China Properties as one of the Group’s office
premises, taking into account the above, as well as the
favourable location, size and floor level of the Subleased Portion.
The terms of the sublease agreement (including the rent) were
determined after arm’s length negotiations between the parties,
with reference to the actual rental, air-conditioning and
management charges and other fees and charges charged by the
landlord of the head lease (between the landlord and Central
China Properties) pursuant to the terms of such head lease
without any mark-up (being about 35% of the size of the head-
lease premises). The rental being charged by the landlord of the
head lease to Central China Properties was determined by
reference to the prevailing market rental of comparable office
premises in the vicinity of the head-lease premises.

With effect from 5 January 2024, the Company relocated its
principal place of business in Hong Kong to Room A122B, 16/F,
Tower 5, The Gateway, Harbour City, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon,
Hong Kong and ceased using the premises under the above
sublease agreement.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024, there was no rental fee
paid by the Group for the sublease.

As at the dates of these agreements and up to the date of this
annual report, Mr. Wu Po Sum is the controlling shareholder of
the Company, and indirectly owned more than 30% equity
interests in CCRE and Central China Properties. Therefore, the
abovementioned transactions also constitute the connected
transactions and continuing connected transactions of the
Company. Details of these agreements are set out in the
prospectus of the Company dated 5 May 2020 and
announcements of the Company dated 30 October 2020, 13 May
2021, 29 October 2021, 9 November 2021, 11 November 2021, 9
December 2022 and 31 March 2023 and the circulars of the
Company dated 23 November 2020, 9 December 2021 and 19
January 2023.

The Board confirmed that there is no material change in the
contractual arrangements and/or the circumstances under which
they were adopted, and its impact on the Group. The Board also
confirmed that there is no unwinding of the structured contracts
or failure to unwind when the restrictions that led to the adoption
of the structured contracts are removed.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent
non-executive Directors of the Company have reviewed the
relevant framework agreements and confirmed that the
agreements have been entered into:

a)  inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

b)  either on normal commercial terms or, if there were not
sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether they
were on normal commercial terms, on terms no less
favorable to the Group than terms available to or from (as
appropriate) independent third parties; and

C)  in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Company’s shareholders as a whole.
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The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions for the year ended 31
December 2024 in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) "Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 (Revised)
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued its
unqualified letter containing its conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of material related party transactions of the Group
undertaken in the normal course of business are set out in note
32 to the consolidated financial statements. Save for the
connected transaction and continuing connected transactions as
disclosed above, none of these related party transactions is
required to be disclosed under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
There are no significant events subsequent to 31 December 2024
which would materially affect the Group’s operating and financial
performance as of the date of this Reporting.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 December 2024, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the Company’s listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
of Association or the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION OF HOLDERS
OF LISTED SECURITIES

The Company is not aware of any tax relief or exemption
available to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the
Company'’s securities.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group’s emolument policy is designed to attract, retain and
motivate talented individuals to contribute to the success of the
business. The emolument policy of the employees of the Group
is formulated and reviewed by the Remuneration Committee on
the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regards to the Group's
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF
Scheme”) pursuant to the MPF Schemes Ordinance for all its
employees in Hong Kong. All the employees of the Group in Hong
Kong are required to join the MPF Scheme. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to consolidated income statement as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered fund. The
Group's employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme. No forfeited contribution
is available to reduce the contribution payable in the future years
as of 31 December 2024.

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC, in compliance with the
applicable regulations of the PRC, participated in a state managed
retirement benefits scheme operated by the local government.
The subsidiaries are required to contribute a specific percentage
of their payroll costs to the retirement benefits schemes. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefits scheme is to make the specified contributions. During
the reporting period, the total amounts contributed by the Group
to the schemes and costs charged to the consolidated income
statement represent contribution payable to the schemes by the
Group at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.

The Company has also adopted certain share option schemes
and a share award scheme as described in this annual report.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has maintained the prescribed level of public float
during the year and up to the date of this annual report as
required under the Listing Rules.
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DONATIONS

Charitable donations and other donations made by the Group
during the year amounted to RMB33,750 (2023: RMB71,758).

MATERIAL LITIGATION AND ARBITRATION
For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Company was not
involved in any litigation, arbitration or claims of material
importance and there was no litigation or claim of material
importance which was known to the Directors to be pending or
threatened by or against the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company's corporate governance principles and practices
are set out in the Corporate Governance Report at pages 56 to 79
of this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company has reviewed the annual
results for the year ended 31 December 2024, including the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group, and
discussed auditing, risk management and internal control
systems and financial reporting matters with the management as
well as the reviewed the consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2024.

AUDITORS

PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC") resigned as the auditor of the
Company with effect from 4 December 2024. Prism Hong Kong
Limited (“Prism"”) was appointed as the new auditor of the
Company with effect from 4 December 2024 to fill the casual
vacancy following the resignation of PwC. Details of the change
of auditor of the Company are set out in the announcement of
the Company dated 4 December 2024.

The auditor of the Company, Prism, will retire and, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-appointment at the 2025 AGM. A
resolution for their re-appointment as auditor of the Company
will be proposed at the 2025 AGM. The consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 have been
audited by Prism.

By order of the Board
Wang Jun
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

%@ Prism

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CENTRAL CHINA NEW LIFE LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Central
China New Life Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 140 to 270, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2024, and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including material accounting policy
information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2024, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with HKFRS Accounting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Accounting ("HKSASs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matters is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the
basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated

FARENEE
MAREFSEERERFINFEXHE - RRYHA
MGG BHREANBIRAERNTH GLF
BeERMEFBREAMBHRRLEARRE
ETREN - AT SHELEREHEBNE
R o B TS —FBAER T RIAELEH
R ALL RS = -

BMERRET T ARS [ZBEN B A M
WRAFENELT] —HHANET  8REELS
BHEBNEE - BEM - BHANES TERESR
1T REE A S M ISR EA SRR E B2
MRt FEZF - HPIBTRARFNE
BREEH TAEEMATHIERF  SEEMHER
REREREFABRIEMHTER -

financial statements.

Key Audit Matter
BEESE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BFNET NAEERRETSE

Provision for expected credit losses on trade
receivables
BEZRWRENEREESRRE

Refer to Note(s) 3.1.2, 4, and 19 to the consolidated
financial statements.
BRMEREMIEHREMFE312 4K 19
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We have performed the following procedures in relation
to the provision of ECL on trade receivables:

EMERE SERFBENTEREEBEREEELATE
% :

(@) Obtained an understanding of the Group's internal
control and assessment process of estimating the
provision for ECL on trade receivables, and assessed
the inherent risk of material misstatement by
considering the degree of estimation uncertainty and
other inherent risk of factors, such as complexity and
subjectivity, changes and susceptibility to
management bias or fraud,

T BEEEHMEAFESERFIEMNEREEEER
HEE A BRI S REH TR - I0E B ET A E R
EREMELREREEZ(NEMEEREST &
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AR ETEE @)

Key Audit Matter
BREESBE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BRANE AR ERRET SR

Provision for expected credit losses on trade
receivables (Continued)
EZEWARENBHEEFERE(HE)

As at 31 December 2024, the gross carrying amount of
trade receivables amounted to RMB3,326,649,000, which
represented approximately 70% of the total assets of the
Group. Management has assessed the expected credit
losses (“ECL") of trade receivables with a loss allowance
of RMB1,364,627,000 made against the gross trade
receivables.

M202412 A31H - ESRNFEREABAARK
3,326,649,0007T - h BEEEREEXNTO%  EEED
B ZERFIENEREERE ((BHEEEE]) -

W5k B 5 IR RR AT IR B R 18 A R 6 1,364,627,000

JC °

Management applied the simplified approach under
HKFRS 9 to measure the lifetime ECL of trade receivables.
EEECEREBYBHRELENZEIFRIE NHLIT AT
SEFHRYFNR G TEREEEE -

For trade receivables with remarkably different credit risk
characteristics, where repayment collection has stagnated
or credit impairment has occurred, leveraging its
experience of historical credit losses and taking into
account the current situation and forecasts of the future
economic situation, the Group constructs a regression
model on the basis of internal and external rating models
in the industry in accordance with macro-economic
indicators. Upon calculation and adjustment, an expected
credit loss rate is determined, and a corresponding
provision is made for expected credit losses, which are
recognised based on an individual assessment.

HTAFEZETREERBRERBWRREBNEEER
BENEZSERNIE - ESERBEELEESBEHL
B BEEENBRMERREBELENTER - ETEA
SNEFETARAR B LR |- - A A B BRI R R FRE
KA HARRSIEREESEX  HEBEEHEE
ITIEMERE - BHIEEBE /T EENMAENR LER -

(b) For trade receivable assessed individually, we (i)

evaluated the criteria and rationality of management’s
judgement that trade receivable are featured with
remarkably different credit risk characteristics; (ii)
evaluated the rationality of management’s
assumptions of the financial positions of the
customers, expected cash flow distribution, and ECL
rate and related probability weight under different
scenarios according to historical credit loss
experience of contract counterparties, statistics from
third parties, public information, evidences of the
latest developments in negotiations, etc.; (iii) evaluated
the results of management’s sensitivity analysis using
reasonably possible changes of the relevant key
parameters;
HRBIENEE ZEUGRIE - BMOTHTERE
HETE Z B FIEABBETNREERBREGMZE
REEM  (VBREAREFHINELEEEELR
FE=FHRTEIE - AREER  RARFERNER
£ THEEBHEFPMMBAN - TRESR TERS
Remoh  BHREESERMARMREENRR
WEEM (T hEREENBEERRE2E80EE
AR L FTEH M BURRME AT AR
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

FABRETEE @

Key Audit Matter
BRESEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BRMANE MARERRET SR

Provision for expected credit losses on trade
receivables (Continued)
EZREWARENBHEEFERE(HE)

For the trade receivable without occurrence of credit
impairment or the expected credit loss cannot be
estimated for an individual financial asset at a reasonable
cost, the management grouped trade receivables based
on shared credit risk characteristics and measured the
ECL based on groups. For the trade receivable in groups,
the management made reference to the historical
experience of credit losses, combining with the current
situation and forecast of economic situation in the future,
and prepared the model which refers to the aging profile
and external credit rates (if available) in order to measure
the ECL.

HRAREEEA iﬁfﬁiéﬁifu/—\ﬁﬁk$ﬁ%‘+ﬁlﬁfﬁEﬂﬁ
ENEHEEBENZE S ERKGIE  BEEEREXRAN
FEERBREBEE S EVRIBEETTSA I*E?F"iﬂﬂ
TEHEEEBETE - HR \ZHWE’J%Z%JEHQM
ERE2ZETEEBENELLES /m\;ﬁﬁfi/ﬂﬂﬂ
R B TER I%ﬁ%?%ﬁé%ﬁé%ﬂ&&l\*lﬂﬂ
BT Ay (ansE ) KRR - 2R EEEEIE -
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(c) For the trade receivables assessed in groups, we

evaluated the appropriateness of the methodology
and the reasonableness of key assumptions adopted:
(i) assessed the appropriateness of customer grouping
based on our understanding on the Group's business
process, the credit control process and the credit risk
characteristics of trade receivables; (i) assessed the
reasonableness of significant assumptions used in
estimating the loss rate by comparing the ultimate
loss rate used in calculating the historical loss rate
with the historical settlement performance; (iii)
challenged and evaluated management's assessment
on the financial positions of the customers, existing
markets conditions and forward-looking factors with
reference to our understanding of Group’s business,
industry and external macroeconomic data; (iv) tested,
on a sample basis, the accuracy of aging of trade
receivables prepared by management to supporting
documents;
HRAETENE S EWGRIE - B T FERAR
EREEERBREBENESEN 0 EREMYE &
SEERRE  ERENREME %J_EMZW\IE1§/§\E\4
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SEARMANKEHARBARER DNEEREE
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AR ETEE @)

Key Audit Matter
BREESBE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BRANE AR ERRET SR

Provision for expected credit losses on trade
receivables (Continued)
EZEWARENBHEEFERE(HE)

The assessment of ECL of trade receivables is considered
a key audit matter given the significance of the trade
receivables balance. In addition, the judgements and
estimations in relation to assessment of ECL are subject
to a relatively higher degree of uncertainty and
subjectivity. The Group’s measurement of expected credit
loss based on individual assessment involved significant
managerial judgements and assumptions, and the Group'’s
measurement of ECL based on groups involved both
complex models and significant managerial judgements
and assumptions.

HRESEBFIENEAN  B5RKFIETEHRERE
BHRT R RERERTEIE - LI sTEBRAEEE
BREEMABRAFAEERSNITEEE R EH
Mo BERURBEEIENEHEEEBENTEIR
EREBEEAEG KRR HRAEETENIEEEESE
BT E - BEP REMERD - by REREERE HE KR

e

(d) Checked the mathematical accuracy of the calculation
of the provision for loss allowance; and
REGFHEERBEHNEBERL &

(e) Assessed the adequacy of the disclosures related to
ECL of trade receivables.
FHHEE FENGRIRTRHEE BB A EHENT M o

Based on the above, we considered that the management’s
judgements and assumptions applied in the assessment of
ECL of trade receivables were supportable by the evidence
obtained.

EREXF - BPRBEERNEETUAZRERE
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

FABRETEE @

Key Audit Matter
BREESBE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BRMAMNES AR ERRET SR

Impairment assessment of goodwill and order-
backlog and customer relationships
AR URERITERE FRERENG

Refer to Notes 4(c) and 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.
BRMGRE S IREMITEAC) K16 °

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had goodwill and
order-backlog and customer relationships of
RMB204,475,000 primarily in relation to the Group’s
acquisition of several property management services
companies and technology companies (the “Acquirees”).
A provision of RMB22,496,000 was made against goodwill
arising from certain Acquiree as at 31 December 2024.
R2024F12 8310 » EXENEEARERIERER
BERERAEARKE204,4750007T - TEF R ESEWNESR
FTHHEEERB AT RBHE AT (KBS 1) - 12024
F12A318 - gt ETHRKESEENEEFIREBERA
R 22,496,000 7T °

132

Central China New Life Limited / 2024 Annual Report

We have performed the following procedures in respect
of the impairment assessment of goodwill and order-
backlog and customer relationships:

BME M BURBER] B AR P BER BTG EL A
TR :

(@) Understood and evaluated the Group’s internal control

over the impairment assessment of goodwill and
order-backlog and customer relationships, and
assessed the inherent risk of material misstatement
by considering the degree of estimation uncertainty
and other inherent risk of factors, such as complexity
and subjectivity, changes and susceptibility to
management bias or fraud;
R BESEYEHENURERSEEZPBIE
WAERT (A B ASDIEFI B AR - WiERE R T EE
MEHIZE R A E R BB E = (e MR E R EE M -
BEMAERE R RIS FEERAGURNME) - LFHEER
Fe R PR LA [E 5 B

(b) Evaluated the outcome of prior period impairment
assessment of the Acquirees to assess the
effectiveness of the management's estimation
process;

AR T A AR ER AR - T E R
BAHEIR T BB M

(c) Evaluated the appropriateness of the methodology
and the reasonableness of key assumptions adopted
with the involvement of our internal valuation experts;
ERBEEZERNZET - SHEFTRAAEEE T
R EAREBHAE BN ;
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AR ETEE @)

Key Audit Matter
BREESBE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BRANE AR ERRET SR

Impairment assessment of goodwill and order-
backlog and customer relationships (Continued)
HMEURBERIEEE FRFRRENME (#)

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually, or when there
are events or changes in circumstances indicate that it
might be impaired. For the purpose of impairment
assessment, goodwill and order-backlog and customer
relationships was allocated to each group of cash-
generated units of the Acquirees. Management assessed
the impairment of goodwill and order-backlog and
customer relationships related to major Acquirees and
determined the recoverable amounts based on a value-in-
use (“VIU") calculation using cash flow projections. The
VIU calculation was based on financial budgets approved
by management. The key assumptions considered
primarily include (i) expected growth rate of revenue, (ii)
terminal growth rate after 5 years, and (iii) pre-tax
discount rate.

HESFETRENR  HMESHIRRCETY
B ERETAR - BURENEME - BN KRE
BT EREFARE A IEESARKE TR CEESN -
EREFMESEAEWE T EENE B REER] EHE
BEFPBERE  URECAEE(EREEDFERE -
KARSRBABSEIKREERE - FABEDERERE
B ENMHEEmMEL - BREEERSEZBIE()
WARTEERERE - () AFENRBGRE - R (>i)BAT
ARER % o

(d) Evaluated the reasonableness of the key assumptions

used in the cash flow forecast, mainly including: (i)
expected growth rate of revenue during the forecast
period, we compared them with historical financial
data and approved budgets; (i) for the terminal growth
rate after 5 years, we assessed it with reference to the
long-term expected inflation rate based on our
independent research; (iii) assessed the discount rate
with reference to comparable listed companies based
on our industry knowledge and independent research
done by us;
MRS RERAMEANERRENSEY =2
BIE  ()VFERBRREW AN TEEIE R K - BTG EEE
SMBEE REBETRERITHE (VR AFRAK
g RE  ERBEMOBIMRT L2 ERATELRR
IR SR AT RIS ¢ (i) ER B MIHI1T A KT &
M 2EA AR ET AR HAIRE ¢

©

Tested source data to supporting evidence on a
sample basis, such as approved budgets and available
market data and considered the reasonableness of
these budgets;

BB ABIERR - BHEEE SUFER - flangg
HEBERAANTSEE  TEEZSHEENGE
M
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

FABRETEE @

Key Audit Matter
BRESEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BRMANE MARERRET SR

Impairment assessment of goodwill and order-
backlog and customer relationships (Continued)
HMEURBERIEEE FRAFRRENMS (#)

We focused on auditing the impairment of goodwill and
order-backlog and customer relationships because the
estimation of recoverable amount is subject to a relatively
higher degree of estimation uncertainty. The inherent risk
in relation to the impairment assessment of goodwill and
order-backlog and customer relationships is considered
relatively higher due to the subjectivity of significant
assumptions used and change of industrial environment.

BB EIREAREUAREETIERETFPAERE  E
AARE S BN G FERERS NN EE N - AR
RERBERNEEERITERENE (L - HEBURE

BRI EREFBERENEARNERRRKRREE
?S(_lﬂ °
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(f) Evaluated the reasonableness of the sensitivity
analysis performed by management on the key
assumptions to understand the impact of the
reasonable changes in assumptions on the
recoverable amount;

FGE EEJE'F%T%q»f?j*“rﬂﬁ/\i%%@%ﬂuﬁz@ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%
EMERREBERETHRRXMESTH SN

(8) Assessed the adequacy of the disclosures related to
impairment assessment of goodwill and order-backlog
and customer relationships; and
BT B B A &F FIEHEPEEREN AN EE
HEEERD

Considered whether the judgements made in selecting
the methodology and the key assumptions would give
rise to indicators of possible management bias.
ZRILEERFEZRBRBRFMEOHERS S S|
ARENBREEERANER -

Based on the above, we found that the significant
management’s judgements and the key assumptions
adopted in the impairment assessment of goodwill and
order-backlog and customer relationships were supported
by available evidence.

ER EXFr - BPIRADENAVRE] AL IFE BN
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OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2023 were audited by another auditor who
expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on 23
April 2024.

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report, other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. we
have nothing to report on in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRS Accounting Standards issued by
the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors of the Company determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The director of the Company are assisted by the audit committee
in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed
terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but it is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAS will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAS, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’'s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZBENH S

AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STA

TEMENTS (continued)

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among

other
signifi
intern
We al

have
indep

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
cant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
al control that we identify during our audit.

so provide the audit committee with a statement that we
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
endence and to communicate with them all relationships

and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Lee Kwok Lun.

Prism Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Lee Kwok Lun
Practising Certificate Number: P06294

Hong Kong
26 March 2025

B ZBENHE

BB GESMEHRRAEN
BE @

tREZZESBBNFET  HFIEEWLE
FHARGREMBREANEFTRAER  AME
PREBSEE ST F IR o MAEZ AN RS P i iE L
B RIPERERTATARBEELER
FEBBERNBERT - RS IEFERERFIR
EHARARFREARNAERREBEENAR
i RPAPRETEERETBBZER °

HARBY ZEARENETREABARTH

BEEHAERRAERAR
HE 2D

= E B
MEBERIR - P06294

)
20253 H26 B

BEFEEERAT / B IEFR 139




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FEaEREkaR

Year ended 31 December

BZ12831BLEE

2024 2023
2024 F 2023 F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
BtaF AR¥FT ARBTFT
Revenue WA 6 2,952,227 2,844,655
Cost of sales SHE PR 10 (2,311,489) (2,087,563)
Gross profit E¥ 640,738 757,092
Selling and marketing expenses HE REHEAXT 10 (16,238) (17,866)
Administrative expenses T X 10 (187,009) (197,831)
Net impairment losses on financial CRRENEERBERE
and contract assets FEE 3.1.2 (74,907) (1,222,352)
Other income HAb YA 7 6,561 19,029
Other losses — net H{thE518 558 8 (9,337) (34,099)
Operating profit/(loss) LERE(BER) 359,808 (696,027)
Finance cost — net BRE R A FER 9 (868) (430)
Share of net (loss)/profit of associates 5 A M2 i A BR Y FE (G B
accounted for using the equity method &R = (E18) /58
%ol 12 (9) 282
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRAT S B ATRIE,
(E548) 358,931 (696,175)
Income tax (expenses)/credit Fris®i (%) e 13 (120,759) 118,269
Profit/(loss) for the year FRFE(EHE) 238,172 (577,906)
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable L T&FELEFER
to: FE(EBR)
— Shareholders of the Company — AR AR 214,594 (574,369)
— Non-controlling interests — R ER 23,578 (3,537)
238,172 (577,906)
Other comprehensive (expense)/ ERHEMEE (BX), W
income for the year, net of tax (BRBEE)
ltems that may be reclassified to AlgeEF DB EIBRMIER
profit or loss
— Currency translation differences — EEmE R (9,672) 1,818
Total comprehensive income/ FrzEkE (X)) 8%
(expense) for the year 228,500 (576,088)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FEEREkaR

Year ended 31 December
BZE12H31BLEE

2024 2023
2024 F 2023 F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
HfaE ARMTFT ARBTFT
Total comprehensive income/ UT&EFERFEREZE
(expense) for the year attributable U3 (FI>) #48 :
to:
— Shareholders of the Company — RNAFIRRE 204,922 (572,551)
— Non-controlling interests — IR ER 23,578 (3,537)
228,500 (576,088)
Earnings/(loss) per share for AT RRESL
profit/(loss) attributable to B (BR) K
the shareholders of the Company BRER(HR)
(expressed in RMB per share) (MERARBTZ5)
— Basic —ERK 14 0.17 (0.45)
— Diluted —EE 14 0.17 (0.45)

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income A E4R4 2 Uk 25 38 & B2 BEFT B 7 — GBI -
should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

maMBRAER

As at 31 December

M12H31H
2024 2023
2024 F 2023 £
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BtaF AR¥FT ARKFT
Assets BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investments in associates REEE QAR E 12 4,756 4,765
Property, plant and equipment L E S 15 65,975 52,419
Intangible assets mEEE 16 231,986 251,893
Financial assets at fair value through AR BEGELF ABRS
profit or loss NEREE 18 - 3,835
Other receivables and prepayments B e W sk I8 K FA A BUR 19 59,084 50,359
Deferred income tax assets BLEFEMEE 29 345,184 327,685
706,985 690,956
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 20 11,249 12,691
Contract assets BHEE 6 11,336 13,200
Trade and other receivables and B 5 N E M EWEIR
prepayments VAR B 508 19 2,794,783 2,465,991
Financial assets at fair value through AAARBEFELFA
profit or loss BaemEE 18 4,589 40,547
Restricted cash ZREIIR S 22 7,871 7,137
Cash and cash equivalents ReRFSEEY 21 1,190,148 1,620,556
4,019,976 4,160,122
Total assets BEEHE 4,726,961 4,851,078
Equity =
Equity attributable to shareholders &2 B RRE/GER
of the Company
Share capital & A 23 11,527 11,538
Other reserves E A 24 584,868 958,607
Retained earnings RE AT 1,266,759 1,084,638
1,863,154 2,054,783
Non-controlling interests JEEE AR =S 126,219 107,566
Total equity fERAAEE 1,989,373 2,162,349
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

FEMBRAR

As at 31 December

Mm12A31H
2024 2023
2024 & 20234
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B et AR¥FiT AREFT
Liabilities =L
Non-current liabilities FRBERS
Borrowings &R 28 52,000 27,000
Lease liabilities HeEaE 26 6,299 9,899
Deferred income tax liabilities BEMSHREE 29 21,817 33,522
Other payables H e 0B 27 1,090 1,273
Contract liabilities AHEE 6 97,990 67,104
179,196 138,798
Current liabilities REBAE
Borrowings (B 28 = 25,000
Lease liabilities HeEaE 26 8,661 5,945
Trade and other payables B 5 REAMERNFIR 27 1,359,425 1,384,284
Contract liabilities EHEE 6 863,676 758,678
Current income tax liabilities BNERFTIS R & E 326,630 376,024
2,558,392 2,549,931
Total liabilities BEEEE 2,737,588 2,688,729
Total equity and liabilities kB BERAHE 4,726,961 4,851,078

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 140 to 270 were
approved by the board of directors of the Company on 26 March
2025 and were signed on its behalf.

Wang Jun
%
Director
EF

PA_Efer & BT AR 2% 8 S Y P 5 — BF B RE

F140E 270 B FTE AR S B SRR E R 2025 4F 3
A26AESAAREETEHE  YHERKRERE -

Dai Jiling
KRR
Director
EE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FReEQBER

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

NG
Non-
Share Other Retained controlling Total
capital reserve earnings Total interests equity
BA Hitfts REEBA @ FERER ERin
Notes RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
it AREFT  AREFT  AREFT  AREFT  AREFT  ARETT
(Note 23) (Note 24)
(Wit 23) (Wizz24)
Balance at 1 January 2023 R2023E 18 1 Bf&R 11,337 1,238,079 1,693,148 2,942,564 116,555 3,059,119
Total comprehensive expense for FRZEBEZAR
the year
Loss for the year FRER - - (574,369) (574,369) (3537) (577,906)
Other comprehensive income for the year ~ ERE b2 ARG - 1,818 - 1,818 - 1,818
- 1818 (574,369) (572,551) (3,537) (576,088)
Transactions with shareholders HARENRS
Repurchase of shares of the Company NG ) 24(b) = (2.933) = 2933 = (2.933)
Share award scheme-value of RR{p 8Bt El—(E B RS B(E
employee services 25 - 13964 - 13964 - 13964
Issue of shares in connection with 2023 F {7 BN E
2023 Share Award Scheme Bk 2 201 (201) - - - -
Capital contribution from non-controling ~ FHERERTE
interests - - - - 93 93
Return of capital to non-controlling FERRERREAR
interests - - - - (134) (134)
Dividend declared to non-controling FEERERERR S
interests - - - - (5,411) (5,411)
Dividend distribution to shareholders AREDRRS 30 - (326,261) - (326,261) - (326,261)
Appropriation of statutory reserves EERERE 24 - 30,141 (34,147) = = =
Balance at 31 December 2023 12023 %12 A 31 AMEER 11,538 958,607 1,084,638 2,054,783 107,566 2,162,349
Balance at 1 January 2024 #2024 5158 1AL 11,538 958,607 1,084,638 2,054,783 107,566 2,162,349
Total comprehensive income for FR2ENEAE
the year
Profit for the year FRFIE - - 214,594 214,594 23,578 238,172
Other comprehensive expense for the year  FRE 2 ERX - (9,672) - (9.672) - (9.672)
- (9,672) 214,594 204,922 23,578 228,500
Transactions with shareholders ARENRS
Cancellation of shares RS 23and 24(b)
23R 24(b) (11) 1 - - - -
Share award scheme-value of RR{p 8Bt Bl —(E B RS (B
employee services 25 - 15,824 - 15,824 - 15,824
Capital contribution from non-controling ~ FHERIERTE
interests - - - - 60 60
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—HHBAA - - (415) (415) (416) (831)
Dividend declared to non-controling AFEEREREIRRE
interests - - - - (4,569) (4,569)
Dividend distrioution to shareholders ARED RS 30 - (411,960) - (411,960) - (411,960)
Appropriation of statutory reserves EERERE 2 - 32,058 (32,058) - - -
Balance at 31 December 2024 R2024E12 A 31 AR LR 11,527 584,868 1,266,759 1,863,154 126,219 1,989,373

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should

be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

ﬁéiﬂﬁllllgi

As at 31 December

M12H831H
2024 2023
2024 £ 2023 F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Ha AR¥TFT ARBTFT
Cash flows of operating activities RETHHESRE
Cash generated from/(used in) operations &% 18 (FTH)IR& 31 150,875 (36,459)
Income tax paid BAPTSH (147,019) (40,629)
Net cash generated from/(used in) & FZEFE (FTH)
operating activities HEFE 3,856 (77,088)
Cash flows of investing activities RETHEESRE
Purchase of property, plant and BEWE - BEMEE
equipment (8,382) (12,805)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEWE - BE K&
and equipment Frf3 k18 4,712 581
Repayments of loans from third parties ~ EEBFE=H1RHNER - 22,800
Interest received on loans to third parties M58 =75 & ERI FI B 7 4,243 4,780
Disposal of a subsidiary S B A A 320
Disposal of an associate kNG - 3,100
Net cash generated from investing REZEFFESHESTE
activities 893 18,456
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FRRERER

As at 31 December

M12H31H
2024 2023
2024 F 2023
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BtaF AR¥FT ARMFT
cash flows of financing activities RMETBHHRESRE
Repurchase of shares of the Company AAFIEERS 24(b) = (2,933)
Capital injection by non-controlling R ERITE
interests 60 93
Capital withdrawal by non-controlling FEEAR R R A
interests (416) -
Return of capital to non-controlling FIFEIERER R EE AR
interests - (134)
Cash advances from related parties RaE 7 K IR & 23K = 1,799
Interest paid BRFE 9 (4,712) (5,352)
Principal elements of lease payments MENTHREHD (7,774) (9,939)
Repayments of bank borrowing ERIRITEN - (22,000)
Dividends paid to shareholders ETIRERARE 30 (411,960) (326,261)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests & 1~ JE#5 A b 25 HO A% (4,569) (5,411)
Net cash used in financing activities B&EFEFTAREFEHE (429,371) (370,138)
Net decrease in cash and ReERHESEEY
cash equivalents WD REE (424,622) (428,770)
Cash and cash equivalents at FYRERIREEEBY
the beginning of year 1,620,556 2,049,079
Effects of exchange rate changes on RENRESZEYMH
cash and cash equivalents P R B 5/ & (5,786) 247
Cash and cash equivalents at FERAERBLEEY
the end of the year 1,190,148 1,620,556
The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read MA HARE IR & 8 2R e B BB BT P T — DR BIEE o

in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fr 8 M B E R

(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B SZB#HAEIN - FTBESBAARE FITE)

GENERAL INFORMATION

Central China New Life Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 16 October 2018 as
an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law CAP. 22 of the Cayman Islands. The
address of the Company's registered office is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.

The Company was listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
on 15 May 2020.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are
principally engaged in provision of property management
services, community value-added services and value-added
services to non-property owners in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC"). The controlling shareholders of the
Company are Enjoy Start Limited (“Enjoy Start”), a
company incorporated under the laws of British Virgin
Islands (“BVI") and Mr. Wu Po Sum (collectively “Mr. Wu"
or the “Controlling Shareholder”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB"), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for
issue by the board of directors of the Company on 26
March 2025.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

(@) Compliance with HKFRS Accounting
Standards and Hong Kong Company
Ordiance
The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with HKFRSs
Accounting Standards (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“"HKSAS") and Interpretations) as issued
by Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

—R&EHR
BEMEFBRAR(ERDT])K20184F
10 A 16 BIRBFR SRS EMFE 25 ARE)
EREHEFMRZABEREBRAFR - K
A 7 B B = & iz R Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands °

ARABINR2020F5 AISHETEBHAER S
FrER AT ([BRAT) =R EmM -

ARBB—FKREZER AT o NAE) REMH
BAR(SEA2KE)TERFEARK
ME(THBDEEREMEEERY - R
IERRT K IE R T IR ERTE - AR B HER
BRREMGERIB(AME] —RREH
BHEBRES ((RBERRES ) AP
PXILE) R R)) R R AR ST A (ke [ d SR 4
s [ERRER]) °

BRRBAFHAN  ZEFEMBHRERROUAR
BTAR%D 27 - ZEHKARBHREREN
2025F3 A 26 AEARRIESTSH AT

mEEE
(@ BIEBEMBREENSTEIR
BB D BMEG

AEBRAVBHRERLBEE 6D
AE((BERESHMAF)EMNEE
Mg HmEEN LR (BERERE
MBmEED BEGHEA(ER
B ER ) RRE) BEAREFR
AIRFERRGIIRBERERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fma BRI

(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (38 tREIN -

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

148

(b)

(c)

Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on a
historical cost basis, except for certain financial
assets measured at fair value.

Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures

The Group has applied the following revised HKFRS
Accounting Standards, amendments and
interpretation for the first time for its annual reporting
year commencing 1 January 2024:

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-
current — Amendments to HKAS 1;

. Non-current liabilities with covenants —
Amendments to HKAS 1;

o Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of a Team Loan
that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause
— Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (Revised);

o Lease Liability in Sale and Leaseback — HKFRS
16; and

o Supplier Finance Arrangements — HKAS 7 and
HKFRS 7.

The above revised HKFRs Accounting Standards did
not have any material impact on the amounts
recognised in prior periods and are not expected to
significantly affect the current or future periods.

Central China New Life Limited / 2024 Annual Report
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (S A& AN -

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(d)

Issued but not effective HKFRS Accounting
Standards

The Group has not adopted the following new and
revised HKFRS Accounting Standards that have been
issued but not yet effective, in these consolidated
financial statements. These new and revised

fr 8 M B E R

AESBEAARE T L)

2. RBEE @)
(d) CEMERENNEEHBREE

Rt 2EA

ARER B iE R AR B 5 R R AR
AT B BB 18 R R HT AT R A8
RIEEMBREER S LR - A
SEN ] REERT RN ER IR K

standards are not expected to have a material impact
on the entity in the current or future reporting periods
and on foreseeable future transactions:

ARBEHRHYEBLAALRER
HELERTE

Effective for
accounting
periods beginning
on or after
RUTHEHR 2%
HmNET LR

Amendments to HKAS 21
BRI ERE 215 (BETA)

Amendments to HKFRS 9 and
HKFRS 7

BBV R ELERE IR K
BRMBHRELERNET7 5 (BFIR)

Sh

Amendments to HKFRS 9 and
HKFRS 7

BV EERFE IR BN
WELAZET 5 (BFTAR)

Amendments to HKFRS Accounting
Standards

BBV G HmEER T ER (BFTA)

HKFRS 18

BB HRERERE 185

HKFRS 19

BB HRERERE 195

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Lack of Exchangeability
i BN o

Amendments to the Classification and
Measurement of Financial Instruments
T AEDERTEZERT

Contract Referencing Nature-dependent
Electricity
WREREEREREEENINER

Annual Improvement to HKFRS Accounting
Standards — Volume 11

ERBmEER G LR FEECE
— 11 f

Presentation and Disclosure in Financial
Statements
REERERZ 25 R P FE

Subsidiaries without Public Accountability:
Discloses
FARZABEFRAAINHEE

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture

1 January 2025
2025%1H1H

1 January 2026

2026%1 H18

1 January 2026

2026F1H1H

1 January 2026

20261 H1H

1 January 2027
20271 A18
1 January 2027
2027 F1H1H

To be determined

BB R EERE 105 & KEEEEBECENEECEZHEN BRHFET
BEGIEAIE 285 (1B3T4) BEHERHE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fma BRI

(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (38 tREIN -

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's
overall risk management program focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial

performance.

3.1 Financial risk factors
3.1.1 Market risk

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group's businesses are principally
conducted in RMB, except for the oversea
group entities whose functional currency
is Hong Kong Dollar (“HK$"). Currency risk
as defined by HKFRS 7 arises on financial
assets and financial liabilities being
denominated in a currency that is not the
functional currency and being of a
monetary nature. Therefore non-
monetary financial assets and financial
liabilities, monetary financial assets and
financial liabilities denominated in the
entity’s functional currency and
differences resulting from the translation
of financial statements of overseas
entities into the Group’s presentation
currency are not taken into consideration
for the purpose of the sensitivity analysis
for currency risk.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr 8 M B E R

(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B SZB#HAEIN - FTBESBAARE FITE)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
3.1.1 Market risk (Continued)

(0

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

The Group has not entered into any
forward exchange contract to hedge its
exposure to foreign exchange risk. The
foreign exchange risk of the Group mainly
arises from the monetary assets and
monetary liabilities denominated in
Renminbi (‘/RMB") and the financial assets
denominated in United States Dollar
("US$") held by the oversea group
entities, whose functional currency is
HKS.

The management considers that foreign
exchange risk of RMB against HK$ was
insignificant to the Group due to the
immaterial carrying amounts of monetary
financial assets and financial liabilities
denominated in RMB held by the oversea
group entities and foreign exchange risk
of US$ against HK$ was insignificant due
to the linked exchange rate system of HK$
and US$ (31 December 2023: same).

3

B E b IR ()

3.1

B 7 B B R & (48)
3.1.1 75 &k (&)

(i)

EEHMEFERRAR/ —2-MFFR

SME [ (AF)

7R & BUR AT SLAEAAT = B 40
PE & 49 DA S SIMEE L Bzt
AEB R INE R B £ B R
BUREEEREITHIEI
SEERBANUARE
TAR®DEENERE
EREEABENURIAET
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

152

(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
3.1.1 Market risk (Continued)

(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate

risk

The Group’s main interest rate risk arises
from cash and cash equivalents with
variable rates and senior notes with fixed
rate, which expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk and fair value interest
rate risk, respectively. The directors of the
Company do not anticipate there is any
significant impact to the Group's
performance resulted from the changes
in interest rates, because the interest
rates of bank balances are not expected
to change significantly and the discount
impact on the fair value of the senior
notes is quite limited.

3.1.2 Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to
its trade receivables, contract assets, note
receivables, other receivables, financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss (“financial
assets at FVPL") , restricted cash and cash
deposits at banks. The carrying amounts of
trade receivables, contract assets, note
receivables, other receivables, financial assets
at FVPL, restricted cash and cash deposits at
banks represent the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to financial
assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS |
fr 8 M B E R

(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B SZB#HAEIN - FTBESBAARE FITE)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HEERER @)
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BRERREZE#E)

3.1.2Credit risk (Continued) 31.2ERpk (&)

The Group considers the probability of default
upon initial recognition of asset and whether
there has been a significant increase in credit
risk on an ongoing basis throughout each
reporting period. To assess whether there is a
significant increase in credit risk, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
asset as at the reporting date with the risk of
default as at the date of initial recognition. It
considers available reasonable and supportive
forwarding-looking information. Especially the
following indicators are incorporated:

— internal credit rating

— external credit rating

— actual or expected significant adverse
changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant change to the debitor’s
ability to meet its obligations

— actual or expected significant changes in
the operating results of the debitor

— significant changes in the expected
performance and behaviour of the
debitor, including changes in the payment
status of debitors in the Group and
changes in the operating results of the
debitor
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

154

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
3.1.2Credit risk (Continued)
The Group accounts for its credit risk by
appropriately providing for expected credit
losses on a timely basis. In calculating the
expected credit loss rates, the Group considers
historical loss rates for each category of
receivables and adjusts for forward-looking
macroeconomic data.

(i)

(ii)

Cash deposits at banks (including
restricted cash)

The Group expects that there is no
significant credit risk associated with cash
deposits at banks (including restricted
cash) since they are substantially
deposited at state-owned banks and
other medium or large-sized listed banks.
Management does not expect that there
will be any significant losses from non-
performance by these counterparties.

Trade receivables, note receivables and
contract assets

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit
losses (“ECL") which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade
receivables and contract assets.

The contract assets relate to unbilled
construction in progress. The Group
reasonably estimates the loss rates of
contract assets based on the probable
default of contract assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B SZB#HAEIN - FTBESBAARE FITE)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
3.1.2 Credit risk (Continued)

(i) Trade receivables, note receivables and
contract assets (Continued)
For trade receivables and contract assets
with remarkably different credit risk
characteristics, where credit impairment
has occurred or repayment collection has
stagnated, leveraging its experience of
historical credit losses and taking into
account the current situation and forecasts
of the future economic situation, the Group
constructs a regression model on the basis
of internal and external rating models in
the industry in accordance with macro-
economic indicators. Upon calculation and
adjustment, an expected credit loss rate is
determined, and a corresponding provision
is made for expected credit losses.

Receivables without occurrence of credit
impairment and the collection of
repayments stagnated, or the expected
credit losses cannot be estimated for an
individual financial asset at a reasonable
cost, the Group groups the receivables
based on its judgement whether there are
significant differences in customers’
credit risk characteristics and measures
the expected credit losses based on
groups. Basis for determining groupings is

as follows:

Group 1: Receivables due from third

parties — property owners

3
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

156

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
3.1.2 Credit risk (Continued)

(ii)

Trade receivables, note receivables and
contract assets (Continued)

Group 2: Receivables and contract assets
due from third parties — property
developers

Group 3: Receivables due from third
parties — non-property developers

Group 4: Receivables and contract assets
due from related parties

For the trade receivable and contract
assets in groups, the Group makes
reference to the historical experience of
credit losses, combining with the current
situation and forecast of economic
situation in the future, and prepares the
model which refers to the aging profiles
and external credit rating (if available) in
order to measure the ECL.

The expected credit losses also
incorporate forward-looking information
on macroeconomic factors affecting the
ability of the customers to settle the
receivables. The Group has identified the
most relevant factors for customers in
different industries (e.g. money supply
and gross domestic product in China), and
accordingly adjusts the historical loss
rates based on expected changes in these
factors.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B SZB#HAEIN - FTBESBAARE FITE)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HEERER @)
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BRERREZE#E)

3.1.2Credit risk (Continued) 31.2ERpk (&)

(i) Trade receivables, note receivables and

(i) EBZEUKNE  BREE

contract assets (Continued) REHWEE (48)
(@) Trade receivables and contract (@ BECGEREMNES
assets with occurrence of credit JEWFIB R A 4B E

impairment

Trade receivables amounting to
RMB69,691,000 (31 December 2023:
RMB74,929,000) from a non-
controlling shareholder in Group 2
were assessed using regression
model on the basis of internal and
external rating models in the
industry in accordance with macro-
economic indicators, since it was in
operating difficulty, and management
assessed the ECL of the receivables

B RI23E 1 R OB R
MmE S EKRRKE
A B % 69,691,0007C
(2023512 A318 :
AR #74,929,0007T)
EHEGENEmMRA
FEATERINBT R AR
MERE  BALRE
KBRS EEREE
REITIE  BEE
EE R

by considering experience of BEEEEBEBLER -
historical credit loss, current B ATE N R R AR,

situations and forecasts of future
conditions of the non-controlling
interest.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group
considers there has been a

TERI & R e MK IR
MEHEEEE -

MR2024%12 A318 -
AEEBERE ARE

significant increase in credit risk on HEMERMDERA A
trade receivables and contract ([ E |) K& HH
assets in Group 4 as Central China BArl([BEMES
Real Estate Limited (“CCRE") and its BORHEEEGER
subsidiaries (the “CCRE Group”) Bt N A1 E 2023 F %

and its joint ventures and associates
faced liquidity constraints since the
second quarter of 2023. Trade
receivables and contract assets
totaling RMB1,664,632,000 (31
December 2023: RMB1,719,480,000)
from related parties in Group 4 was
assessed using regression model on
the basis of internal and external
rating models in the industry in
accordance with macro-economic
indicators, accordingly.
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FBERBEAARET L)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

3.1.2Credit risk (Continued)

158

(ii)

Trade receivables, note receivables and

B S E B B IR ()

3.1 BERREZE#E)
1.2 Rk (&)

(i) EBZEUNE  BREE

contract assets (Continued) REWEE (&)

(@  Trade receivables and contract (@ BEGEREMNES
assets with occurrence of credit JEUFIB R & 4B E
impairment (Continued) (&)

Gross Loss
carrying Expected  allowance
amount loss rate provision
REAE RAHSEX BEBRETR

(RMB'000) (RMB'000)
(AR%TF7) (ARETF7)
As at 31 December 2024 ®2024512A31H
Group 2 #8512
— Trade receivables due from — B — B IR R
a non-controlling shareholder 0 5 EUEE 69,691 53.04% (36,962)
Group 4 #8514
— Trade receivables — B S EKGR 1,640,198 62.78%  (1,029,635)
— Contract assets —BHEE 24,434 65.33% (15,963)
1,734,323 (1,082,560)
As at 31 December 2023 #2023%12 8311
Group 2 #8512
— Trade receivables due from — B — B IR R
a non-controlling shareholder K8 S EMIE 74,929 52.76% (39,534)
Group 4 R4
— Trade receivables — B RN 1,694,099 61.71%  (1,045,433)
— Contract assets —RHEBE 25,381 61.71% (15,663)
1,794,409 (1,100,630)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr 8 M B E R

(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B SZB#HAEIN - FTBESBAARE FITE)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HREMER @
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 B¥RKEEHE)
3.1.2 Credit risk (Continued) 3.1.21=ERE: (&)
(i) Trade receivables, note receivables and (i) BZEIRIE  EIRERE
contract assets (Continued) REHEE ()
(b)  Trade receivables and contract (b) IrEZEEEERER
assets without occurrence of credit B ENFIER A
impairment BE

Less than 1to2 2t03 3to4 Over 4
1year years years years years Total
TEBI1FE 15226 25Z3F 35Z4F 4FHL @t

As at 31 December 2024 %

2024 12A31H
Group 1: A5
Trade receivables g 5 EWIE
Gross carrying amount FEAE

(RMB'000) (AR%EFT) 667,927 146,243 167,269 56,340 43,191 1,080,970
Expected loss rate HHERE 1.98% 4.86% 8.06%  68.09%  89.59%
Loss allowance provision — E5iEBfEatR

(RMB'000) (AREFT) (13,212) (7,110)  (13,475)  (38,360)  (38,694) (110,851)
Group 2: Apl2:
Trade receivables E5ENHE
Gross carrying amount REAE

(RMB'000) (AR%FT) 62,482 138,953 51,556 20,665 3,981 277,637
Expected loss rate BHBEX 22.67% 31.56% 37.75% 80.85% 89.59%
Loss allowance provision  [EiER TR

(RMB'000) (AR¥Fr) (14,164) (43,854) (19,461) (16,708) (3,567) (97,754)
Contract assets BNEE
(Gross carrying amount FEAE

(RMB'000) (AREFT) 2,136
Expected loss rate BHEBER 3.21%
Loss allowance provision — E5EBfEatR

(RMB'000) (AREFT) (68)
Group 3: #53:
Trade receivables g5 ENFE
Gross carrying amount Rmef

(RMB'000) (AREFT) 174,364 36,600 35,923 9,162 2,104 258,153
Expected loss rate REEEX 2267%  31.56%  80.63%  82.87%  85.11%
Loss allowance provision 1B EaHE

(RMB'000) (AREFT) (39,527)  (11,551)  (28,964) (7,592) (1,791)  (89,425)
Contract assets BNEE
Gross carrying amount FEAE

(RMB'000) (AR%F7T) 838
Expected loss rate BHEER 4.84%
Loss allowance provision iR TR

(RMB'000) (AR®FT) (41)
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fma BRI

(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B RABEIN © FTE S EIAARE FITH)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HREBER@
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 MERBREZEE)
3.1.2Credit risk (Continued) 31.21ERk (&)
(i) Trade receivables, note receivables and (il BHZEKIE EREE
contract assets (Continued) REWEE (&)

(b)  Trade receivables and contract (b) WEZELEEEREH
assets without occurrence of credit B ZRYGLIIAR S #
impairment (Continued) BE (&)

Less than 1t02 2t03 3tod  Overd
1year years years years years Total

TRB1F 152265 2523F

3FELAFE AFHUE w5t

As at 31 December R2023F

2023 12A31H
Group 1: A5l
Trade receivables g B EWE
Gross carrying amount REAE

(RMB'000) (AE%ETFT) 429,481 172,225 60,609 30,922 21,894 715131
Expected loss rate REEEX 7.90% 15.34% 21.34% 32.20% 68.49%
Loss allowance provision B R #E=H1R

(RMB'000) (AR%F) (33909)  (26413) (12937 (9.958)  (14,994) (98,211)
Group 2: ARl2:
Trade receivables B 5 ENHE
Gross carrying amount FEAE

(RMB'000) (AR%TFT) 139,148 104,635 20,935 2816 1,366 268,900
Expected loss rate BHEEX 8.70% 32.68% 5423%  10000%  100.00%
Loss allowance provision 2B EEHE

(RMB'000) (ARKFT) (12108) (34199  (11,353) (2,816) (1,366) (61,842)
Contract assets BNEE
Gross carrying amount REAE

(RMB'000) (AR®FT) 2992
Expected loss rate THEEEE 1.72%
Loss allowance provision i8R TR

(RMB'000) (AR®F) (52
Group 3: 53
Trade receivables LEY e ¢
Gross carrying amount REAE

(RMB'000) (AR%F) 142,765 61,420 11,262 2,780 131 218,358
Expected loss rate BHEEX 13.06% 48.93% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
Loss allowance provision BB EHE

(RMB'000) (ARKFT) (18639)  (30,050) (11,262 (2,780) (131) (62,862)
Contract assets BHEE
(Gross carrying amount FEAE

(RMB'000) (AR%FT) 552
Expected loss rate RHBEX 1.78%
Loss allowance provision B2 B atR

(RMB'000) (AREFT) (10)
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(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B SZB#HAEIN - FTBESBAARE FITE)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HEERER @)
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BiREEREZE(E)

3.1.2 Credit risk (Continued)

31.2ERpk (&)

(i) Trade receivables, note receivables and
contract assets (Continued)

(c)  Asat 31 December 2023, the
management considered the credit
risk associated with note
receivables was insignificant.

(iii)  Other receivables

A summary of the assumptions
underpinning the Group's expected credit
loss model for other receivables is as

follows:

(i) EBZEWFE  BEREE
REWEE (&)
() M20234% 12731
H BEERR =
EWEREENEE
BRI NERX o

(i) BRI E
REBEH b e YRR TR
EEBERELNMARENMR
RELALAT

Category
Al

Group definition of category
TEEHEEINER

Basis for recognition of
expected credit loss
provision
BRENEEFRBENEE

Performing
(“Stage 1)

E®
(MB1BEER D)

Underperforming
(“Stage 2")

BE
(T2 R 1)

Non-performing
(“Stage 37)

TR
EELED)

Counterparties have a low risk of default
and a strong capacity to meet
contractual cash flows

RHHFENRRE  BEETRER

HWRERE

Receivables for which there is a
significant increase in credit risk; as
significant increase in credit risk is
presumed if interest and/or principal
repayments are 30 days past due

=B R REE G DAY EULGRIA ; WA
R/ SRS ETAL0K - BIHER
B[R P B 3 0

Interest and/or principal repayments are
90 days past due or the counterparties
are in significant financial difficulty

MER BALEFEHI0 B ZE
FHREAMBEEE

12 months expected losses.
Where the expected lifetime of
an asset is less than 12 months,
expected losses are measured
at its expected lifetime

(“12 months ECL method")
1218 A TEERE B - (W& ER
TEERFE DR 12ME A - BITEHA
iR R EE = ([1248
BHEHEEREE])

Lifetime expected losses

2 HIFRHE R

Lifetime expected losses

2HIEHER

BEFEEERAT / B IEFR 161




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (& S BHAIN  FrBESEUARETTH)
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MBEMERE@®

(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
3.1.2 Credit risk (Continued)

(iii)  Other receivables (Continued)

As at 31 December 2024, other
receivables amounting to RMB140,121,000
from CCRE Group, CCMGT Group, Drawin
Group and their joint ventures and
associates were non-performing, and the
Group had individually assessed the ECL
by evaluating the distribution of expected
cash flows under multiple scenarios
based on historical credit loss experience,
operating model, current situations and
forecasts of future conditions of contract
counter parties under different situations,
and preparing sensitivity analysis using
reasonably possible changes of the
relevant key parameters.

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the
loss allowance provision for the other
receivables was determined as follows.
The expected credit losses below also
incorporated forward-looking information.

3.1 MERBREZEE)
31.21ERk (&)
(i) HftEWFLE ()
R2024F 123318 » &%
WMESER AREEXS
CEREEREEGED
¥ K B2 N B B H R R
A A R # 140,121,000 75
BTREE BA£EHR
BERRXZHFETRIB
ATHRERELEEEEEL
gl BRIER
MR R TEAR - BB
HEEIBATHEERS
MED M WH AEEEE
BR2YNAEAREEBR
RUIHRR ST BB
TEEIEEEE -

otk o R2024F R
2023512 A31H - HAhfE
WHRIEM B EREE TN
T ATHEREESE
TREMARIEILEER -

Non-
Performing performing Total
ER = st

As at 31 December 2024 742024%12H31H
Gross carrying amount REAE

(RMB’000) (ARMFT) 637,290 140,121 777,411
Expected loss rate TEHES IR R 6.07% 61.61%
Loss allowance provision BIERETR

(RMB'000) (AR#TFT) (38,654) (86,333) (124,987)
As at 31 December 2023 #2023%512H31H
Gross carrying amount REAE

(RMB’000) (AR#TFT) 705,707 96,773 802,480
Expected loss rate TBHAE R = 6.82% 61.71%
Loss allowance provision EEEETTR

(RMB’'000) (ARKFT) (48,142) (59,718) (107,860)
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(Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr 8 M B E R

(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B SZB#HAEIN - FTBESBAARE FITE)
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HBEREE@=
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 B¥EREREZE#E)
3.1.2Credit risk (Continued) 3.1.21=ERE: (&)
(iii)  Other receivables (Continued) (i) EMpEWKKIE ()
As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the H 2 2024 F % 2023F 12 A
loss allowance provision for trade 1B BZEKFKIERE
receivables and contract assets, and WEEREMEKRSZES
other receivables reconciles to the E B F )RR
opening loss allowance for that provision HERWNT :
as follows:
Trade
receivables
and contract Other
assets receivables Total
B EWHER Hith
EHNEE FEWFRE @ct
As at 1 January 2023 M202351A18 202,800 6,315 209,115
Net impairment losses on EREEHEERE
financial and contract assets 5 #%8 1,120,807 101,545 1,222,352
As at 31 December 2023 M2023%F12A31H 1,323,607 107,860 1,431,467
As at 1 January 2024 N2024%1818 1,323,607 107,860 1,431,467
Net impairment losses on EREENEERE
financial and contract assets ~ E5#/#%8 57,738 17,169 74,907
Receivables written-off during  FEUZUEE A 5
the year as uncollectible L EE (646) (42) (688)
As at 31 December 2024 M2024%12H31H 1,380,699 124,987 1,505,686
Trade and other receivables and contract fisf I A% 5 32 R HA AT U ) -

assets are written off where there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery.
Indicators that there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery include, amongst
others, the failure of a debtor to engage in
a repayment plan with the Group, and a
failure to make contractual payments.

EEHMEFERRAR/ —2-MFFR

I3 55 B 5 K H 8 UK
BAREHEE - BEA
BEAKRENERERE (R
REB)EBAREEAE
AT B R E  PAKR
BEEHI B AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fma BRI

(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (38 tREIN -

3

164

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
3.1.2Credit risk (Continued)

(iii)  Other receivables (Continued)
Impairment losses on trade and other
receivables and contract assets are
presented as net impairment losses
within operating profit. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written
off are credited against the same line
item.

(iv) Debt investments

The Group is also exposed to credit risk in
relation to debt investments measured at
FVPL, which is the senior notes with
interest rate of 7.75% per annum, issued
by CCRE in November 2020 and due in
May 2024. CCRE has suspended
payments of interest to all offshore
creditors since 23 June 2023 and
announced to undertake an offshore debt
restructuring plan on 20 July 2023,
resulting in a significant increase in credit
risk. The maximum exposure at the end of
the reporting period is the carrying
amount of these investments amounting
to RMB4,589,000 (31 December 2023:
RMB4,142,000).

3.1.3 Liquidity risk
To manage the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows.
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3.1
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31.21ERk (&)
(i) HftEWFLE ()

B 5 I H fh FE W IE BA K
EHEERNREBENK
EREP 25 AREREE
R RIS ER
‘B EIFT AR —1TIEE °

(iv) EERE
AEBENTEEEUARAAE
BEFfEX T ABRFEN
BEEEE(NEELER
2020 11 A 31T 7 2024
FoANHBHBMFENEX A
775%MELERE) BRAM
EERKR - B¥HMEAR
20234 6 A 23 B i = [A)
FTEENERE AT
B I 7202357 A208
EHETRIIBEBEMA
TE BYEERRBR AR
e RARE RN
KRB EZERENER
B ZE A R #4,589,0007T
(202312 A318 : AR
4,142,000 7T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr 8 M B E R

(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B SZB#HAEIN - FTBESBAARE FITE)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HXREBER @
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 MERBREZEE)
3.1.3 Liquidity risk (Continued) 3. 1.3 mEN MR i (4E)

The table below analyses the Group's financial TERBESHREARBTHER
liabilities into relevant maturity grouping based ABHEEBENST - HAEERD
on the remaining period at the end of each THABES S RBHEEAAR -
reporting period to the contractual maturity TRAEE & AS AR
date. The amounts disclosed in the table are WEME o

the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

Between Between

Less than 1and 2 and
1 year 2 years 5 years Total
TEB1F 1225 2E5F et
As at 31 December 2024 #2024 12831H
Financial liabilities cRERE
Trade and other payables &5 N E b fE {4 Z0E
(excluding accrued payroll  (TRIEEF#HE K
and other taxes payables) — EfbfEAF ) 1,110,056 184 906 1,111,146
Borrowings a3k 2,260 2,260 52,991 57,511
Lease liabilities HERE 8,661 5,681 1,234 15,576
1,120,977 8,125 55,131 1,184,233
As at 31 December 2023 #2023%12831H
Financial liabilities cRa s
Trade and other payables & 5 R EfhfEf5E
(excluding accrued payroll (T BIEEFFHE &
and other taxes payables) — EfbfEAFI ) 1,176,987 184 1,089 1,178,260
Borrowings EEA 28,184 29,228 - 57,412
Lease liabilities HERE 6,481 6,415 3,962 16,858
1,211,652 35,827 5,051 1,252,530
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fma BRI

(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (38 tREIN -

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)
3.2 capital management

166

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain
an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of
capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to
reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the asset-
liability ratio. This ratio is calculated as total liabilities
divided by total assets.

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, asset-liability ratio
of the Group was as follows:

3

FBERBEAARET L)

B S E B B IR ()

32 BEXEE
AEBZERNERE EREAEE R
BICEMREN WM AR REHEIR -
REMBNESG RS - WHEFER
B E AR RS DABRAR B ANKAS ©

REFHFBREANLRE - NEER G
ERHBERNTHRRZBE SR #1T
A H E & E AR AET -

AEEZEERBLREREEITER
ZLLENRBERBERNEEREE -

H E20244F K2023F12 318 » K
EEMNEEABHLENT ¢

As at 31 December

M®12H831H
2024 2023
2024 & 2023 F
Asset-liability ratio BEBELE 58% 55%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr 8 M B E R

(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B SZB#HAEIN - FTBESBAARE FITE)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HXREBER @
(Continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 AREEME
(a) Fair value hierarchy (@ AK[REEER

This section explains the judgements and ENE IS E R SRR AR A
estimates made in determining the fair values REEERARTENSHITAD
of the financial instruments that are recognised N o B (B R BTV A ) B R A
and measured at fair value in the financial it AELETARBEMAE
statements. To provide an indication about the ABENAEREEEZ A58
reliability of the inputs used in determining fair BiEe:TEABESRTAES A
value, the Group has classified its financial =g - FERHAH N T o

instruments into the three levels prescribed
under the accounting standards. An explanation
of each level follows underneath the table.

As at 31 December 2024 Level 1 Level 3 Total
R2024%12H318 E—ER E=EBR Mt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMFrT AR¥FrT AREFT

Financial assets at FVPL DA REESEATTA

BERENERMEE
Senior notes BREEE 4,589 - 4,589
4,589 - 4,589
As at 31 December 2023 Level 1 Level 3 Total
MR2023F 12 A31H EF—EL EF=FHK 4t

RMB000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETIT ARETT ARETT

Financial assets at FVPL DA REESENEGFA

Contingent consideration FER SR ARAE
receivables - 40,240 40,240
Senior notes BAEZE 4,142 - 4,142
4,142 40,240 44,382
The fair value of financial instruments that are WHRNERMEEE 2RI A
not traded in an active market is determined by B ARBERAMERINERE

using valuation techniques.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fma BRI

(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (38 tREIN -

FBERBEAARET L)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

168

3 HEERER @)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AREEME ()
(a) Fair value hierarchy (Continued) (@) AK[REEERE)
The different levels have been defined as TREMRRTEMOT :

follows:

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments
traded in active markets (e.g. publicly traded
derivatives and equity securities) is based on
guoted market prices at the end of the
reporting period. The quoted market price used
for financial assets held by the Group is the
current bid price. The quoted market price
already incorporates the market's assumptions
with respect to changes in economic climate
such as rising interest rates and inflation, as
well as changes due to ESG risk. These
instruments are included in level 1.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments
that are not traded in an active market (e.g.
over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by
using valuation techniques which maximise the
use of observable market data and rely as little
as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all
significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is
included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs
is not based on observable market data, the
instrument is included in level 3. This is the case
for unlisted equity securities and for
instruments where ESG risk gives rise to a
significant unobservable adjustment.

The Group's financial assets at FVPL included
contingent consideration receivables and senior
notes, fair value of which are estimated based
on unobservable inputs (level 3) or obtained
from quoted market prices (level 1) respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr 8 M B E R

(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B SZB#HAEIN - FTBESBAARE FITE)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HXREBER @
(Continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AREEMT(HE)
(a) Fair value hierarchy (Continued) (@ AK[REEERE)
There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 FRN - EEHEARBETEZHE
and 3 for recurring fair value measurements — IR =Ef EWEEE o
during the year.
(b) The following table presents the changes in (b) TREHH=2024%12A31H

level 3 instruments for the year ended 31
December 2024.

HFENE=ZERTANZE -

Contingent
consideration
receivables from Contingent
acquisition of  consideration
Henan Tianming receivables from
Property  acquisition of
Management Taihua Jinye Life
Co., Ltd. (“Henan Service Co., Ltd.
Tianming”)  (“Taihua Jinye”) Total
e R KRR
WEEBRERAF £ERBEERAF
(Famx®E)) (T=EHE])
Fig W Fig Wk
HARE HARE Bzt
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFIT AREFT AREFIT
Opening balance FEEH 3,835 36,405 40,240
Write-off b (3,835) (36,405) (40,240)
Closing balance FREH = = -
Pursuant to the acquisition agreements, the RIBUCTE R - firi )7 FE KRB B 2R

Group is entitled to a compensation from the
former owners of Henan Tianming and Taihua
Jinye if they have not achieved the revenue
targets or profit targets for the performance
commitment years, respectively. As at 31
December 2024, the earn-out terms in the
agreement were expired.

EEHMEFERRAR/ —2-MFFR

ERE RN EERFFTEER
W BIZRABEE  AlAEE
EERAEEZIMEARER
B B 22024F12A318  #%
F B ES IR SR E B e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fma BRI

(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B RABEIN © FTE S EIAARE FITH)

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 4 BEXEFHEFRHE

AND JUDGMENTS

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of
accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom
equal the actual results. Management also needs to
exercise judgement in applying the Group’s accounting
policies.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that may have a
financial impact on the entity and that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

(@) Expected credit losses on receivables and

contract assets

The Group makes allowances on receivables and
contract assets based on assumptions about risk of
default and expected loss rates. The Group used
judgment in making these assumptions and selecting
the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on
past collection history, existing market conditions as
well as forward looking estimates at the end of each
reporting period.

Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying
amount of trade and other receivables and contract
assets, as well as doubtful debt expenses in the
periods in which such estimate has been changed.
For details of the key assumptions and inputs used,
see Note 3.1.2 above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (S A& AN -

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS (continued)

(b)

(c)

Current and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to corporate income taxes in the
PRC. Judgment is required in determining the amount
of the provision for taxation and the timing of
payment of the related taxations. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the
income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period
in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers it to be probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised.
The outcome of their actual utilisation may be
different.

Estimation of goodwill and order-backlog
and customer relationships impairment
Goodwill is tested annually for impairment or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. Determining whether goodwill is
impaired requires an estimation of the recoverable
amount of cash-generated units to which goodwill
has been allocated, which is the higher of the value in
use or fair value less costs of disposal. The calculation
requires the Group to estimate the future cash flows
expected to arise from cash-generated units and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value. Where the actual future cash flows are
less than expected, or change in facts and
circumstances which results in downward revision of
future cash, a material impairment loss/further
impairment loss may arise.

fr 8 M B E R

AESBEAARE T L)

4 BEXEEHEF AR =)

(b)

(c)

EEHMEFERRAR/ —2-MFFR

BNEA R AR SE P 15 81
AEEARNTBELRMAEHR - AE
PR 77 R TE A5 TR A <2 R RN 4 A AR
BRENRRE - REEEKBRRD
LR 5 METHE HEAREETE &K
BH - MEBEEIRERBLERE
ENBYREIBE  WBREZES
EXEFLARBETHRZAEHR R
EFER TR A

EEEERRSELNSRERMEES
F T IA BRI $H A9 R R B R A
B RS RETEREZZNHIA
BENELCHAEEE - HERERD
RERABEBATR -

BEUARERBRITEREFRARNE
st
BESEFETRENAXNE SN
1B B BN B BRI B A] BE A Wk Bl
BB R SR E /TR BRI - 7
ERBYHHBFELRER  TRMEE
ENEMENREEELBUANATIKRE
T8 BEREENIAIABERER
EZATHRSE - EFERALE
B EERERSELEMMEZR
KRSRE THERME BRI
AERE - HERAKRERELRN
Bz eBXEAFEMBRAORE
BYARKRAE TR AAEELEKR
BEER, E—SREESE -
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS (continued)

172

(c)

(d)

Estimation of goodwill and order-backlog
and customer relationships impairment
(Continued)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for order-backlog and customer
relationships in accordance with the accounting
policies as disclosed in Note 37.8 to the consolidated
financial statements. In determining whether an asset
is impaired or the event previously causing the
impairment no longer exists, the management has to
assess whether an event has occurred that may
affect the asset value or such event affecting the
asset value has not been in existence. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amounts of the
asset would be determined as the greater of the fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use, the
calculations of which involve the use of estimates.
Owing to inherent risk associated with estimations in
the timing and amounts of the future cash flows and
fair value less costs of disposal, the estimated
recoverable amount of the asset may be different
from the amount actually received and profit or loss
could be affected by accuracy of the estimations.

Estimation of the useful life of customer
relationships identified in business
combination

Customer relationships identified in the business
combination on respective acquisition date is
recognised as intangible assets (Note 16). Customer
relationships primarily related to the existing
contracts of acquirees on the acquisition date. A
large portion of the existing contracts of acquirees
are with no specific expiration date. Based on past
experience, termination or non-renewal of property
management contracts with the property developers
or property owners’ association are uncommon. The
Group thus estimates the useful life and determines
the amortisation period of the customer relationships
to be ten years based on the expected contract
duration of the property management contracts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fr 8 M B E R

(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B SZB#HAEIN - FTBESBAARE FITE)

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

AND JUDGMENTS (continued)

(d) Estimation of the useful life of customer

relationships identified in business
combination (Continued)
However, the actual useful life may be shorter or
longer than estimate, depending on acquirees’ ability
to secure its contracts and relationships with property
developers or renew the contracts with property
owners’ associations in the future. Where the actual
contract duration is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying
amount of the intangible assets of customer
relationships and the amortisation expenses in the
periods in which such estimate has been changed.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management has determined the operating segments
based on the reports reviewed by the chief operating
decision-maker (“CODM”"). The CODM, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segment, has been identified as the executive
directors of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, the
Group was principally engaged in the provision of property
management services, community value-added services
and value-added services to non-property owners in the
PRC. The CODM of the Company reviews the operating
results of the integrated business as a whole to make
decisions about resources to be allocated. Therefore, the
CODM of the Company regards that there is only one
reportable segment, which is used to make strategic
decisions.

The Group mainly operates its businesses in the PRC and
earns substantially all of the revenue from external
customers attributed to the PRC. As at 31 December 2024
and 2023, substantially all of the non-current assets of the
Group were located in the PRC. Therefore, no geographical
segments are presented.

4 BEXEEHEF AR =)

d) EBEHPRABNNEFBENTE
RE B (&)

KW ERAERFHAEENEE
REEHFE - BURR BT B
BERGEEYEHAZENE L LEE
FEXTZRERBESONEES i
ERAOBRARNNRIGH  BH
ERRHEFBENELEEREE
ARG EELESHMOEHEER
ELXRE -

AEER
ERECREEBLERRE (EBEER
FE)EMNBERTEEN T - TBEY
REERRAROPTES - ABHBAR
REEEE S BOHRE -

HE2024F 202312 A31HIEEE - K
SERTHEFEREREMEETERS - 4
&I E RIS RIEE AR - AR E
ERER R EERBEMAREEBNEE X
B ARERTHENEIR - At - XA
FERERRERBEE —ET2HRH A
AV SRS MR ER -

AEBESEFERAEER  BEBRITH
WARBFBEIINDBEFE - B 22024F &
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fma BRI

(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B RABEIN © FTE S EIAARE FITH)

6 REVENUE 6 WA
The Group derives revenue from the transfer of goods and NEE AT £ ZE RIS GRBER RS RN E—
services over time and at a point in time in the following A RO & o K AR A% T 22 AE 9 LA
major service lines:

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A831BLEE

2024 2023
2024 & 2023 F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBF T
Property management and Y58 1 R AR RS
related services 2,493,824 2,185,943
Installation and decoration services L5 R A AR 85,983 272,177
Sales of goods BEmiHE 277,290 241,388
Consulting services and commercial PR R FEEEEERA
property management income 38,878 91,402
Commission income e A 21,886 36,403
Others 1) 34,366 17,342
2,952,227 2,844,655
Timing of revenue recognition ON D
— over time — el IR 2,514,263 2,444,914
— at a point in time — RE R 437,964 399,741
2,952,227 2,844,655

The Group has a large number of customers, none of whom
contributed 10% or more of the Group’s revenue, for the
year ended 31 December 2024 and 2023.

HE2024FK2023F 12 A3MBILEE - K
EEBEEAERF  HBHMEZFERKA
1HREBU A 10% A L -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fr 8 M B E R

(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B SZB#HAEIN - FTBESBAARE FITE)

6 REVENUE (continued)

(@

(b)

Assets and liabilities related to contracts
with customers
The Group has recognised the following assets and

A )
(a) EEFANEBNEEREE

AEECDHERANIEATFANEHN

liabilities related to contracts with customers: BENBE:
As at 31 December As at 1 January
®12831H »n1A1H
2024 2023 2023
2024 % 2023 2023 F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000

AREFT ARETFT ARETT

Contract assets BREE

Valued-added services B ERRT 27,408 28,925 24,980

Loss allowance provision BIERETR (16,072) (15,725) (1,093)

Net carrying amount REFE 11,336 13,200 23,887

Contract liabilities EHERE

Non-current ¥R

Property management services MEE RS 97,990 67,104 56,048

Current TE

Property management services Y EEE R 792,316 681,505 510,322

Value-added services ZERYS 71,360 77,173 77,914
863,676 758,678 588,236

Net carrying amount REHE 961,666 825,782 644,284

Significant changes in contract liabilities
Contract liabilities of the Group mainly arise from the
advance payments made by customers while the
underlying services are yet to be provided. The
increase in contract liabilities as at 31 December 2024
and 2023 is in accordance with the increase in the
total gross floor area under management of the
Group.

(b) EHEBNEXREEH
AEESHNEEETZARKRHMARM
RBREP XA BRASIB - R
20244 202312 A31H &4 8
EIG IR AN &R B 2 B AR S SR T AR 45 AN
— .
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6 REVENUE (continued)

(c)

(d)

176

Revenue recognised in relation to contract
liabilities

The following table shows how much of the revenue
recognised in the current reporting period relates to
carried-forward contract liabilities.

6

FBERBEAARET L)

YA ()

(c)

RENEEBIHBRA

TRIRRERRERAAD EREA
HPFEANAEMNERIZE

Year ended 31 December
BZ12H318LLFE

2024 2023
2024 F 2023 FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARBTF T
Revenue recognised that was REFFTAEGHNEBERN
included in the balance of ERERKA
contract liabilities at the
beginning of the year
Property management services VISR R 681,505 510,322
Value-added services B R 7% 77,173 77,914
758,678 588,236
Unsatisfied performance obligations (d) RETHENRE
For property management services, the majority of MMEEBERBME - KHBHEHAL

the contracts do not have a fixed term. For
commercial property management and consultation
services, the services are generally set to expire
when the counterparties notify the Group that the
services are no longer required. The Group has
elected the practical expedient for not to disclose the
remaining performance obligations for these types of
contracts.

For part of the property management related value-
added services, the Group recognises revenue in the
amount that equals to the right to invoice which
corresponds directly with the value to the customer
of the Group's performance to date, on a monthly
basis or settlement cycle. The Group has elected the
practical expedient for not to disclose the remaining
performance obligations for these types of contracts.
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6 REVENUE (continued)

Accounting policy of revenue recognition
Revenues are recognised when or as the control of
the goods or services is transferred to the customer.
Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws
that apply to the contract, control of the goods and
services may be transferred over time or at a point in

(e)

time.

(i)

(ii)

Property management services

For property management services, the Group
bills a fixed amount for services provided on a
monthly basis and recognises as revenue in the
amount to which the Group has a right to
invoice and that corresponds directly with the
value of performance completed.

Community value-added services
Community value-added services mainly
include sales of goods and installation and
decoration services.

The Group procures merchandise from
suppliers and sells goods directly to the
property owners online and in community.
Sales of goods are recognised when the Group
delivers the goods to the customers.

For installation and decoration services, the
Group provides installation services for the
security system and other establishment of
intelligence communities and provides
decoration services to property owners. The
Group recognises revenue over the period of
the contract by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of that
performance obligation. The progress towards
complete satisfaction of the performance
obligation, in an amount that reflects the
consideration expected to be entitled and,
depending on the nature of the contract, is
measured mainly by reference to completion of
physical proportion of the contract work.

6

fr 8 M B E R

AESBEAARE T L)

U A ()
W ATERNE S BE
EH KRR T FE

(e)

i

R - RIFE QRSB R R %

BREER  Bm &R G R
B PR TR S AE K — B B T DA -

(i)

(ii)

EEHMEFERRAR/ —2-MFFR

WEEZRH
RYEREERGME - ARER
FRLHR 0 AR 75 58 AL Bl E £ 3
RE UIRAKEAEMAZRR
TEERSEROEBENSRER
RN o

#HERERE
HEEBERGEZEREMHE
Ko B R FAE AR A o

AER B R (L R P PR R P mm A AR
EREHBEAERAZTIHES
i o Bl E RSN ARE/E
MR E PR -

RLEREERENE  A5E
BEMESREELEOEME
MRt R R R A E IRt E
ERY - REBIRBTREITH
BHEEE - RNE D HRRE
REA - TEBITROEHNE
Bz HARMBHEEEESNY
B BERTFELNEETNE - %
CHIBRBEENIREERDER
TLEBIETE o
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6 REVENUE (continued)

178

(e)

Accounting policy of revenue recognition
(Continued)
(iii) Vvalue-added services to non-property

owners
Value-added services to non-property owners
mainly include pre-launch intermediary
services, on-site management services,
property inspection service, property agency
service and commercial property management
services.

For pre-launch intermediary services, the Group
provides consultancy services to property
developers, providing designing, cleaning,
greening, construction supervision, repair and
maintenance services to property developers at
the pre-delivery stage. The Group agrees the
price for each service with the customers
upfront and issues the monthly bill to the
customers which varies based on the actual
level of service completed in that month.

For on-site management services, the Group
bills a fixed amount for services provided on a
monthly basis and recognises as revenue in the
amount to which the Group has a right to
invoice and that corresponds directly with the
value of performance completed.

For property inspection service, the Group
provides property quality inspection to property
developer and the revenue is recognised upon
the completion of service.

For property agency service, the Group acts as
a sales agent for property developer, landlord
and tenant and provides property agency
services, which charge such property
developer, landlord and tenant a commission
calculated based on the contract purchase
price. Revenue from agency services is
recognised at a point in time when the service
is rendered and the sales and purchase
agreement or leasing agreement are executed
and become effective.
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6 REVENUE (continued)

(e)

Accounting policy of revenue recognition
(Continued)
(iii) Vvalue-added services to non-property

owners (Continued)

For commercial property management services,
the Group provides hotel management and
operation services and management for
agricultural and cultural tourism projects and
commercial real estate operation.

The Group recognises the fee received or
receivable as its revenue over time in the period
in which the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by the
services performed by the Group and all the
related management costs as its cost of
services.

If contracts involve the sale of multiple services,
the transaction price allocated to each
performance obligation based on their relative
stand-alone selling prices. If the stand-alone
selling prices are not directly observable, they
are estimated based on expected cost plus a
margin or adjusted market assessment
approach, depending on the availability of
observable information.

6

fr 8 M B E R

AESBEAARE T L)

A )
W ATER IS S BUE ()

(e)

(iii)

EEHMEFERRAR/ —2-MFFR

FHEFEERS (H)

RERAEEERBME A%
BB GTEEE REE R - A
BB BOUE R B E R
R EEY -

EXFREKRAEFEAREE
1T AR5 75 SR E) F) 25 LA K2 PG 48 8
BIRE RERE IR A A H H ]
N AEBEBREHEEBEDK
BN E AR RELA

a0y RHEESHRY - 25
BIRERANBIEESEE
EROELE - WREEERES
B - AT AR
B SRR BB T AR
i RFETARRARTE -
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6 REVENUE (continued)

180

(e)

Accounting policy of revenue recognition
(Continued)
(iii) Vvalue-added services to non-property

owners (Continued)

When either party to a contract has performed,
the Group presents the contract in the
statement of financial position as a contract
asset or a contract liability, depending on the
relationship between the Group's performance
and the customer’s payment.

A contract asset is the Group's right to
consideration in exchange for services that the
Group has transferred to a customer.

If a customer pays consideration or the Group
has a right to an amount of consideration that is
unconditional, before the Group transfers
services to the customer, the Group presents
the contract as a contract liability when the
payment is received or a receivable is recorded
(whichever is earlier). A contract liability is the
Group's obligation to transfer services to a
customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

A receivable is recorded when the Group has
an unconditional right to consideration. A right
to consideration is unconditional if only the
passage of time is required before payment of
that consideration is due.
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7 OTHER INCOME 7 Hitilg A

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEEFE

2024 2023
2024 F 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FT ARBETFIT

Government grants (Note (a)) BT B (K17 (@) 2,034 8,481
Additional input value-added tax deduction ¥ EIE (B H) 58 SN
(Note (b)) (Btat b)) 284 5,768
Interest income from loans to third parties  [A158 = 7Rt B 2T 2 U A
(Note (c)) (K& (c) 4,243 4,780
6,561 19,029

(@  Government grants mainly consisted of financial subsidies (@) B/A#BIEZREMT EITE TOME@EEL - B#E

granted by the local governments. There are no unfulfilled 2024 F % 2023F 12 A31 HILFE BRI
conditions or other contingencies attached to the government B 428 B 75 A2 4] 1 R R AT RO R S L sk A 18 o
grant recognised during the years ended 31 December 2024 and

2023.

(b)  Represented additional deduction of input value-added tax (b))  IEEARE THERRMNEEEEROREINAE
applicable to certain subsidiaries.

&

() Represented interests income charged to third parties for loans ()  #E#ZE2024F 12 A31 B IEFE R = 5 WA ER
carrying interest rates from 4.25% to 12% per annum during the FEWA 2B 5% G F| & 4.25% Z 12% (2023 F -
years ended 31 December 2024 (2023: 5.6% t0 12%). 5.6% % 12%) & & °
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8 OTHER LOSSES-NET

8 HitEiRFE

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEEFE

2024 2023
2024 & 2023 F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT
Fair value gains/(losses) on financial assets A A BEFFEW AR
at FVPL (Note 18) MemMEENRAEE
Wz, (&18) (H1aE 18) 380 (27,154)
Net foreign exchange losses SNGE B 1R R (31) (1,412)
Written-off of contingent consideration i SH FE S AN EB
receivables (3,835) -
Others Hfth (5,851) (5,533)
(9,337) (34,099)

9 FINANCE COST-NET

9 MBEMARE

Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31BLEE

2024 2023
2024 % 2023 F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARBTFT
Finance income mMEWA
Interest income from bank deposits RT3 F B UA 4,003 5,770
Finance cost A& R
Interest expenses of borrowings ERFEFAX (4,172) (4,773)
Interest expenses on discount of REEFIBAR A
long-term payables FEFXZ (159) (848)
Interest expenses of lease liabilities HEBGEFEMEZ (540) (579)
(4,871) (6,200)
Finance cost-net RERAFE (868) (430)

182
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B SZB#HAEIN - FTBESBAARE FITE)

10 EXPENSES BY NATURE 10 HEHEEHEISHNAX

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEEFE

2024 2023
2024 F 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FT ARBETFIT

Employee benefit expenses (Note 17) RERMRXZ (FF11) 615,453 548,091
Security charges ZIRE 467,299 406,402
Greening and cleaning expenses L RIBRMET 506,496 403,511
Construction and installation costs RER BRI 72,961 231,599
Cost of goods sold HERA 278,772 223,537
Utilities UNSZES 3= 227,104 188,319
Maintenance costs REKAR 131,308 98,644

Depreciation and amortisation charges WERBHEE
(Note 15 and 16) (KiaE 15 % 16) 43,668 48,822
Professional service fees EERBE 40,840 37,292
Office expenses WA 24,697 22,138
Traveling and entertainment expenses ZIREBEFERAX 10,618 14,500
Taxes and other levies MIBREMEE 12,029 8,652
Auditor's remuneration ZE R < 2,960 6,500
Others HAth 80,531 65,253
2,514,736 2,303,260
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11 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

184

FBERBEAARET L)

11 EEEFMAX

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A831BLEE

2024 2023

2024 F 2023 4

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FT ARKFT

Wages, salaries and bonuses TE  FeRAF 479,370 415,929

Social insurance expenses ftERERXT

— Pension costs — defined contribution ~ — BAKEEBRH — REMR

plans (Note () sHEI(KYat @) 55,829 47,696

— Others — Hf 32,483 26,569

Housing funds FEAES 23,891 20,838

Share-based payments (Note 25) LARS 7 23 EERE R 3k (AT 5E 25) 15,824 13,964

Compensation for loss of office BBk (2 330 3,854

Other employee benefits (Note (b)) Hife 8@F (e D) 7,726 19,241

615,453 548,091

Employees in the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are required to
participate in a defined contribution retirement scheme
administrated and operated by the local municipal government.
The Group’s PRC subsidiaries contribute funds which are
calculated on certain percentage of the employee salary to the
scheme to fund the retirement benefits of the employees.

All the Hong Kong employees of the Group participate in a
mandatory provident scheme (the “MPF Scheme”). Under the
MPF Scheme, each company of the Group in Hong Kong (the
employer) and its employees make monthly contributions to the
scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings as defined under the
Mandatory Provident Fund legislation. The contributions from
each of the employers and employees are subject to a cap of
HK$1,500 per month and thereafter contributions are voluntary.

The only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefits scheme is to make the specified contributions.

No forfeited contribution is available to reduce the contribution

payable in the future years as at 31 December 2024 (31
December 2023: same).
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(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B SZB#HAEIN - FTBESBAARE FITE)

11 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (continued) 11 {EE&EFIFX @)

Other employee benefits mainly include team building expenses, (b)

(o)

meal and traveling allowances.

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year whose emoluments are reflected in the
analysis shown in Note 33 included two (2023: three) directors.
The emoluments payable to the remaining three (2023: two)

individuals during the year are as follows:

HitESRANTZREERMAX  BHRER
A o

FEERHMAL
AEEAEBRAEESFMALTEERS
(20234 : =R)EE - HEFME WM FE33FT
RN RER o FARENSHT =5 (2023 F -
M) ARSI T ¢

Year ended 31 December
BE12A3MBLEE

2024 2023

2024 F 20234

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FT ARBFT

Salaries I& 2,771 3,746

Discretionary bonuses BEIEAL 4,523 738

Pension costs Rike B 37 34
Housing funds, medical insurance and other B ATES « BEERB X

social insurances Hibit SRE 79 80

Share-based payments LARR 17 A EE B Y - 5Kk 2,904 2,050

10,314 6,648

The number of non-director emoluments fell within the following

bands:

FEEHMWRERABT

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A3MBLEE

Emolument bands (in HK$)

HK$2,000,001-HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001-HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001-HK$4,500,000
HK$6,000,001-HK$6,500,000

e fl (BB TTAT)

2,000,001/ 7T % 2,500,000 7T
2,500,001 % 70 2 3,000,000 7% 7T
3,000,001 787 % 4,500,00078 7T
6,000,001 87T 2 6,500,00078 7T

2024 2023
2024 F 20234
1 —
1 —
- 2
1 —
3 2

For the year ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, there was no
emolument paid by the Group to any of the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office.

HE2024F 1202312 A3 B ILEE » AEBEWE
MAZ&ERTMATFEN—ZZHEABE - 1EA
A ZS £ B sk A DA AN S [ B 1 SR B oK A B

18-
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12 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 12 REt=DTINKRE
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A310LFE
2024 2023
2024 £ 2023 F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFIT
Opening carrying amount FYREE 4,765 6,078
Share of (loss)/profit ek (E518), & 7 9) 282
Disposal (Note (a)) & (Mat @) = (1,595)
Closing carrying amount FRIREE 4,756 4,765
(@  The Group has disposed an associate with a disposal gains of (@ HE20BF12A31ALEE AEEHE—
RMB1,505,000 during the year ended 31 December 2023. S AT - BEWEAARKE1,5050007T °
In the opinion of the directors, there is no associate EERE BELCABEABEREANER
individually material to the Group. MEBEKX -
13 INCOME TAX EXPENSES/(CREDIT) 13 FREFHEAS (E&R)
Overseas income tax BINRBH
The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as AARERHASEEFMR I —RERR
an exempted company with limited liability and accordingly, BREEAT  AMLERCHMNHSEER
is exempted from Cayman Islands income tax. The B ARRERBERRESHEENE
Company's direct subsidiary in the BVI was incorporated NAJIEREEBHR LB (B EEANT
under the International Business Companies Act of the BVI SEYFEMAS. - R ER R SN EBAER R
and, accordingly, is exempted from British Virgin Islands BERER -
income tax.
Hong Kong profits tax EBFBH
Hong Kong profits tax rate is 16.5%. No provision for Hong EEF BRI E 5165% o & T 20244F %
Kong profits tax was provided as the Group did not have 2023F12A3MHBHILFE AR AEEIT &
assessable profit in Hong Kong for the year ended 31 EAEBEENESRHRAE T ESLEER
December 2024 and 2023. 1SHIGHR B -
PRC withholding income tax FREFEHIFR S
According to the Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC (the BIEPBENERGER A ([EREBE])
“CIT Law"), starting from 1 January 2008, a withholding tax B2008F1A1HE  ERBERIINEREE
of 10% will be levied on the immediate holding companies BRARIMAFERE AT K E2008F 1 A1
outside the PRC when their PRC subsidiaries declare H 1% BEEL A M 2 B% B0 - B m B 10%
dividend out of profits earned after 1 January 2008. A lower HTEFL o M BB A AR E IR AR
of 5% withholding tax rate may be applied when the REBKIIWFE P EEFS 7 BB EIE
immediate holding companies of the PRC subsidiaries are NP2 T - AR FEREE A 5% B
established in Hong Kong and fulfil requirements under the K o
tax treaty arrangements between the PRC and Hong Kong.
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13 INCOME TAX EXPENSES/(CREDIT)

(Continued)

PRC withholding income tax (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, the
immediate holding company of the PRC subsidiaries of the
Group became qualified as Hong Kong resident enterprises
and has been fulfilling the requirements under the tax
treaty arrangements between the PRC and Hong Kong.
Therefore 5% withholding tax rate has been applied.

PRC corporate income tax

Income tax provision of the Group in respect of operations
in Mainland China has been calculated at the applicable tax
rate on the estimated assessable profits for the period,
based on the existing legislation, interpretations and
practices in respect thereof.

The general corporate income tax rate in the PRC is 25%
according to the CIT Law effective on 1 January 2008. Four
subsidiaries of the Group are qualified as “High and New
Technology Enterprise” and can enjoy a preferential income
tax rate of 15% (2023:15%). Certain of the Group’s
subsidiaries enjoy the preferential income tax treatment for
Small and Micro Enterprise with the income tax rate of 20%
and are eligible to have their tax calculated based on 12.5%
or 25% of their taxable income.

13 FIEHRX (%)@

REFEHIFR{S# (48)

HZE2024F X2023F 12831 HIEFE - &K
SEFEBERARNEEERARKAEE
BHEBERLE  U—EFEHBEEHE
Z BRI IEALHE 2T - At - EER
5% HYTE HIFH 2K o

PRI EAEHR

AREL B B A Y RIS VE L P IS B A
ERBRTERED - RBRE - ZHR
fAEHERB A B ERR R E -

BIER2008F1B1E AR 2D EFRER
E) PR—REEMBHER2% - K&
EMEMNBARGE ST ER
A Z A 15% (2023 4F : 15%) BRI SFH
Ko REBETHEARZH20% /M2
BEAGHHE - WERBREEERTIMA
9 12.5% 5% 25% &1 %

Year ended 31 December
BZE12H831BLEE

2024 2023
2024 F 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥FT ARMTFT
Current income tax BVERRT 1550

— PRC corporate income tax — B EMER 129,963 143,238
— PRC withholding income tax — R EEHAEE 20,000 12,500

Deferred income tax (Note 29) EIEFRS R (HT5E29)
— PRC corporate income tax — B EATS (29,204) (274,007)
Income tax expenses/(credit) s8R (%) 120,759 (118,269)
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13 INCOME TAX EXPENSES/(CREDIT) 13 PSR (E%R) @
(Continued)
The tax on the Group’s profit/(loss) before tax differs from AREFFFIFE(BB) 2 HIEEEAE B
the theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted REEBTEM BN IMEEORERAE 2 BH
average tax rate applicable to profits of the group entities REEENT :
as follows:

Year ended 31 December
BZ12H318LLFE

2024 2023
2024 F 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT ARKTT

Profit/(loss) before income tax BETERAIFIE, (E518) 358,931 (696,175)

Tax charge at effective rate applicableto  REAN S EBME L ZHH

profits in the respective group entities EREMEAENHIA S 91,556 (134,894)
Tax effects of: NN EIENRBTE
— Additional tax deductions for research ~ — A EEAK AN A EB YN TE
and development costs R (1,396) (2,54¢6)
— Tax losses and deductible temporary — RERELEFSHEE
differences for which no deferred OB I8 518 K AT HE A
income tax asset was recognised TR =8 6,019 2,856
— Expenses not deductible for tax — DA A
pPUrPOSES 2,101 1,715
— Share-based compensation — e 2,611 2,304
— Additional tax deductions for salaries —ERAEEALED
for the disabled hiring KA IE R R (132) (133)
— Associates’ results reported net of tax ~ — BEL AT 7 2HMEE
(HIBRT1R) = 71)
— Withholding tax — B 20,000 12,500
Income tax expenses/(credit) FrisBim, (%) 120,759 (118,269)
The effective income tax rate was 26% and 19% excluding HE2024FNK2023F12A31BILEE &
the effect of withholding tax for the years ended 31 BETIS R R 5 Bl & 26% K 19% (18 3E T8 41
December 2024 and 2023, respectively. HHE) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS >
fr 8 M B E R

(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B SZB#HAEIN - FTBESBAARE FITE)

14 EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE 14 BREF (EHR)
(a) Basic earnings/(loss) per share (@) BREARER(FE)

The basic earnings/(loss) per share is calculated by B E2024F K2023F 12 A31H IEF
dividing the profit/(loss) attributable to shareholders B BEREREFR,(EE)IZARDE
of the Company by the weighted average number of AR B FIE (BB )BRIABR BITY
ordinary shares in issue during the year ended 31 BRMNEFHEETE (FBREEFERD
December 2024 and 2023 (excluding treasury shares (BFzE24(h))) °

(Note 24 (b))).

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A831BLEE

2024 2023
2024 F 2023 F
Profit/(loss) attributable to AARBEREEFE (&E)
shareholders of the Company (AR®TT)
(RMB'000) 214,594 (574,369)
Weighted average number of ordinary & 377 % 38 A% &9 hntE 7 15 #1
shares in issue (‘000) (Fh2) 1,280,814 1,277,907
Basic earnings/(loss) per share FRAD R REEMLF/RER
attributable to shareholders of a7,/ (E8)
the Company during the year (ABRAREITZ3)
(expressed in RMB per share) 0.17 (0.45)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fma BRI

(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (38 tREIN -

14 EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE (continued)

190

(b)

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share is calculated by
adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding to assume conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares arising from share
options granted by the Company.

For the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, the
Company has one category of potentially dilutive
shares, share base payments. The calculation for
share base payments is determined by the number of
shares that could have been acquired at fair value
(determined as the average annual market share
price of the Company’s shares) based on the
purchase price of the awarded shares. The number of
shares calculated as above is compared with the
number of shares that would have been issued
assuming the exercise of the share base payments.
The number of shares that would have been issued
assuming the exercise of the share options less the
number of shares that could have been issued at fair
value (determined as the average market price per
share for the year) for the same total proceeds is the
number of shares issued for no consideration. The
resulting number of shares issued for no
consideration is included in the weighted average
number of ordinary shares as the denominator for
calculating diluted earnings/(loss) per share.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fr 8 M B E R

(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B SZB#HAEIN - FTBESBAARE FITE)

14 EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE (continued)
(b) Diluted earnings/(loss) per share (Continued)

14 SREHN (&E) @)
(b) SRBEEF(EE) ()

Year ended 31 December
BZ12H31HLLFE

2024 2023
2024 F 2023 F
Profit/(loss) attributable to RNARIRREGEFE (BE)
shareholders of the Company (AR¥TFT)
(RMB'000) 214,594 (574,369)
Weighted average number of ordinary 2377 @AY A MnAE 158K
shares in issue (‘000) (FhR) 1,280,814 1,277,907
Adjustments for share award B SRENETTREE (FAL)
('000) 18,462 =
Weighted average number of ordinary &8 & I8 2 5 &) Bk &Y
shares for the calculation of diluted  AN#EF5 8 (TFAZ)
earnings per share (‘000) 1,299,276 1,277,907
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share FARRN T IEEN
attributable to shareholders of the ~— EREEERF]/(E1E)
Company during the year (AEBRARBITES))
(expressed in RMB per share) 0.17 (0.45)

As the Group incurred losses for the year ended 31
December 2023, the 21,800,000 shares award granted
and remained unvested and 540,000 options granted
and remained unexercised are not included in the
calculation of diluted loss per share as their inclusion
would be antidilutive. These share award and options
could potentially dilute basic earnings per share in
the future.

MR AREERE E2023F12H431H
LFEEHRGEE FESREEER
B EARDCEREEDREBDW
21,800,000 AR 17 228 B E B R
171 89 540,000 17 BB A #E - [REA A&t A
ZERDRBEBRESELRES
FE o RERNRBLBRER LS
ERKESGRERRH -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fma BRI

(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (38 tREIN -

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

FBERBEAARET L)

15 W% - BERRE

Equipment
and Right-of-
furniture Machinery  Vehicles use assets Total
RERER e B FREEE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
ARETIT AREFT ARETT ARETT AREFT
Year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12831 ALLEE
Opening net book amount FUERRFE 16,708 12,949 6,348 15,017 51,022
Additions ANE 6,539 3,085 3,181 19,004 31,809
Disposals HE (51) (56) (714) (531) (1,352)
Depreciation charge WEER (10,840) (4,874) 2,477) (10,735) (28,926)
Currency translation BHER = = - (134) (134)
Closing net book amount FREMFE 12,356 11,104 6,338 22,621 52,419
As at 31 December 2023 R2023%12A31H
Cost AR 67,556 26,484 17,053 88,224 199,317
Accumulated depreciation ZEHE (55,200) (15,380) (10,715) (65,603) (146,898)
Net book amount IR R 12,356 11,104 6,338 22,621 52,419
Year ended 31 December 2024 EZ2024F12A 31 AILEE
Opening net book amount EYEREFE 12,356 11,104 6,338 22,621 52,419
Additions NE 4,269 2,207 1,906 33,309 41,691
Disposals HeE - (27) (8) (4,730) (4,765)
Depreciation charge HEER (7,394) (4,821) (3,033) (7,973)  (23,221)
Currency translation BEENR - = = (149) (149)
Closing net book amount ERREFHE 9,231 8,463 5,203 43,078 65,975
As at 31 December 2024 R2024%12831H
Cost AR 71,825 28,224 18,645 114,574 233,268
Accumulated depreciation ZEME (62,594)  (19,761)  (13,442)  (71,496) (167,293)
Net book amount IREFE 9,231 8,463 5,203 43,078 65,975
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr 8 M B E R

(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B SZB#HAEIN - FTBESBAARE FITE)

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 Y% - BENRE @)
(Continued)
Depreciation expenses were charged to the following WERY ST AGEEEKEERUTER
categories in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income:

As at 31 December

M®12H31H
2024 2023
2024 & 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT ARETT

Administrative expenses TR X 11,419 14,666
Cost of sales SHE R AR 11,655 14,107
Selling and marketing expenses HEREHAZ 147 153

23,221 28,926
As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, no property, plant and R2024 5 )2 202312 A31 8 » wEHE -
equipment is restricted or pledged as security for T 55 % =% 1 X B BR I S VE A 8 s R i T 48
borrowing. Ad °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fma BRI

16

(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B RABEIN © FTE S EIAARE FITH)
INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16 BREE
Order-
Backlog
Platform and Software
Goodwill and  customer and
(Note (b))  knowhow relationships others Total
HE TRHHRN BEITEHR BHR
(Kt (b)) HE EFE% Heth @t
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
AREFT ANREFT ARETT ARETT AREFT
Year ended 31 December 2023 BZ20235 12831 BLLEE
Opening net book amount FORETE 114,589 27,881 119,778 8,833 271,081
Additions RE - - - 708 708
Amortisation B - (3.648) (14,947) (1,301) (19,896)
Closing net hook amount ERREFHE 114,589 24,233 104,831 8,240 251,893
As at 31 December 2023 R2023F12 A 318
Cost AR 137,085 38,027 151,608 15,298 342,018
Accumulated amortisation L EHELAE
and impairment (22,496) (13,794) (46,777) (7,058) (90,125)
Net book amount REFE 114,589 24,233 104,831 8,240 251,893
Year ended 31 December 2024 BZ2045 12831 BLEE
Opening net book amount FORETFE 114,589 24,233 104,831 8,240 251,893
Additions RE - - - 540 540
Amortisation B - (3,935) (14,945) (1,567) (20,447)
Closing net hook amount ERREFHE 114,589 20,298 89,886 7,213 231,986
As at 31 December 2024 R2024F12 A 318
Cost KA 137,085 38,027 151,608 15,838 342,558
Accumulated amortisation S EHELAE
and impairment (22,496) (17,729 (61,722) (8,625) (110,572)
Net book amount REFE 114,589 20,298 89,886 7,213 231,986

194

Central China New Life Limited / 2024 Annual Report



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr 8 M B E R

(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B SZB#HAEIN - FTBESBAARE FITE)

16 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 16 B|BIEE @)
Amortisation of intangible assets has been charged to the ELEERBEC T AGZEEZERER 0T
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as F7R -
below:

As at 31 December

MN12A31H
2024 2023
2024 & 2023
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR F T AREFIT
Administrative expenses THRAX 5,591 4,820
Cost of sales SHER A 14,856 15,076
20,447 19,896
(a) The excess of the consideration transferred over the (a) BEZENAREBHEWRER#HANEE

FRNAAEER  HEBABED
B BEBRRATEE:

fair value of the identifiable net assets of acquired
subsidiaries is recorded as goodwill. Goodwill was
comprised of the followings:

As at 31 December

®W12A831H
2024 2023
2024 F 2023 £
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFr
Acquisition of Taihua Jinye s R EE SR 5 37,145 37,145
Acquisition of One Family Network Y8 — R 4845 17,533 17,533
Acquisition of Jiyuan Zhongbang L b R AR 12,361 12,361
Acquisition of Henan Tianming 1 B ] g oK B 9,947 9,947
Others HAtb 37,603 37,603
114,589 114,589

BEFEEERAT / B IEFR 195



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fma BRI

(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (38 tREIN -

16

196

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

(b)

Impairment test for goodwill and order-
backlog and customer relationships

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill and
order-backlog and customer relationships arising on
business combinations as set out above was
allocated, at acquisition, to eleven (2023: eleven)
CGUs.

As the result of management assessment, no
impairment provision was recognised on both
goodwill and order-backlog and customer
relationships for the year ended 31 December 2024
and 2023.

Goodwill and order-backlog and customer
relationships are allocated to cash-generating units
for the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation
is made to those cash-generating units or groups of
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from the business combination in which the goodwill
and order-backlog and customer relationships arose.
The units or groups of units are identified at the
lowest level at which goodwill and order-backlog and
customer relationships are monitored for internal
management purposes, being the operating
segments.

The recoverable amount of the cash-generated units
are determined based on value-in-use calculations.
These calculation use pre-tax cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period. Management determined
a projection period of five years based on expected
development trend of the acquiree and industry
experiences. Cash flows beyond the five-year period
are extrapolated using the estimated terminal growth
rates stated below. The growth rate does not exceed
the long-term average growth rate for the related
industry in which the cash-generated units operates.
The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects specific
risks relating to the relevant industry.
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

(b)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (S A& AN -

Impairment test for goodwill and order- (b)
backlog and customer relationships

(Continued)

Management has determined the values assigned to
each of the above key assumptions as follows:

Expected growth rate
of revenue

I A B9 T8 B3 R K

Terminal growth rate

RImIR R =

Pre-tax discount rate

AR =

The key assumptions used for value-in-use

fr 8 M B E R

AESBEAARE T L)

16 BHEE &)
HELUREBRITERE S BERE
IS ()

ERECEEIR T LESETERR
WEENT

Expected growth rate of revenue over the five-year forecast period was based
on past performance and management’s expectations of market development.
FEFBRAENRTERRAERETDENBERR L EEEBH TS ERATEL

Terminal growth rate is the weighted average growth rate used to extrapolate
cash flows beyond the budget period. The rates are long-term average growth
rate for the related industry in which the CGU operates.

Bimit R R SANEERERRRSTMENNETLEEBRE - 2L X RRSE
BT ERRATTENRATIERE -

Adopted based on the analysis performed by an independent professional valuer
which reflects (i) the current market assessments of the time value of money
with reference to the relevant industry and comparable companies in relevant
countries.

RIETE L B ERGETR DN T AR - Zo TR () &2 EB@TTERE
FERMWA & LR AR BEEERFEENE RIS o

MN2024512 A31 8 - FHEEEM

calculations as at 31 December 2024 are as follows: HAMNBRBEOT
Henan Taihua  One Family Jiyuan
Tianming Jinye Network  Zhongbang Others
2PN RERXE —RA% ERRE Hft
Expected growth rate WARBEE R X
of revenue 3.9%49% 4.0%6.5% 2.0%-5.0% 4.0%-5.1%  2.0%-8.0%
Terminal growth rate after RE&RMNR
5years BERE 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0%
Pre-tax discount rate AR R 23.6% 26.0% 16.2% 20.7% 16.0%-24.6%
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fma BRI

(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (38 tREIN -

16 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

(b)

198

Impairment test for goodwill and order-

FBERBEAARET L)

16 BIEE &)
(b) FEURBEBI=EREFSEERE

backlog and customer relationships AR (48)
(Continued)
The key assumptions used for value-in-use MN2023F12 8318 EABESZER
calculations as at 31 December 2023 are as follows: REMBEERENT
Henan Taihua ~ One Family Jiyuan
Tianming Jinye Network  Zhongbang Others
TERR  FERE  REH  ERRE Hft
Expected growth rate WA B TEHAE & &
of revenue 3.6%6.7% 45%-8.6% -25.0%-20% 3.0%50% 2.3%7.0%
Terminal growth rate after & A 4R
5 years BERE 2.2% 2.2% 2.2% 2.2% 2.2%
Pre-tax discount rate Tt BT AL IR 2 22.7% 25.3% 15.3% 22.7% 15.3%-22.7%

By reference to the recoverable amount assessed by
the independent valuer or the management as at 31
December 2024 and 2023, the directors of the
Company determined that no impairment provision
on goodwill was required as at 31 December 2024 (31
December 2023: same).

According to the result of the impairment testing, the
estimated recoverable amounts of cash-generated
units related to other main acquisitions exceed their
carrying amount (i.e. the headroom) as below:

LREB Y HEME IR E K 2024 F
202312 A 31 H FF 4 #9 A W B &
B ARAIEEEENR2024F 12 A 31
A 8 75 3t 0 B IR R (B B (2023 4F
128318 : #HR) °

REBERENAGR BEMERRE
EREHENRCELBUMMEE AT
ClEBEBHERmECISHE) T

As at 31 December

MW12H31H
2024 2023
2024 & 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®FT ARETFIT

Henan Tianming NN
Taihua Jinye RERHE
One Family Network — KA
Jiyuan Zhongbang EIRRE

7,983 2,424
6,292 3,919
14,218 13,148
6,101 9,723

Management performed sensitivity analysis based on
the assumptions that expected growth rate of
revenue or pre-tax discount rate would be changed
by taking into accounts the volatility of the business
and industry in which the acquirees are engaged. Had
the following estimated key assumption for the
forecast period been changed as below, the
headroom would decrease to the amounts:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr 8 M B E R

(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B SZB#HAEIN - FTBESBAARE FITE)

16 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 16 BHEE &)

(b) Impairment test for goodwill and order- (b) BEUREBEITEEZFBEAZARE
backlog and customer relationships R ()
(Continued)

As at 31 December

R12H31H
2024 2023
2024 F 2023 F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARETIT
Henan Tianming e NG|
— Expected growth rate of revenue ~ — FEHAIW AR R R TE 1% 845 970
decrease by 1%
— Pre-tax discount rate increase — THATALER R IB N 1% 4,647 1,765
by 1%
Taihua Jinye REEGR S
— Expected growth rate of revenue — FEHAR AR RE TR 1% 778 3,546
decrease by 1%
— Pre-tax discount rate increase — TARTAEIR =B 10 1% 2,156 2,575
by 1%
One Family Network —RABEE
— Expected growth rate of revenue ~ — FEHAW AR R R TE 5% 5,241 8,559
decrease by 5%
— Pre-tax discount rate increase — BAATALIR RN 1% 9,120 12,310
by 1%
Jiyuan Zhongbang EIRRE
— Expected growth rate of revenue  — FEHAUR AIE R R R FE 1% 3,707 9,324
decrease by 1%
— Pre-tax discount rate increase — TARTARIR =B 10 1% 3,596 9,307

by 1%

Based on the above assessment and the historical BiE LT RESRER - #=2024
result, the directors have not identified any F12A318  EFWEZBHEAKER
reasonably possible change in the key assumptions AT R BREAEANEEA
on which the recoverable amount is based that would geEE  NBReELAEUNEREE
cause the carrying amounts of the cash-generated BBES AR E SR (2023F 12 A
units to exceed their respective recoverable amounts 318 : #R) -

as at 31 December 2024 (31 December 2023: same).
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fma BRI

(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B RABEIN © FTE S EIAARE FITH)

17 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 17 #ZHEREISHEMI A
CATEGORY

As at 31 December

R12A31H
2024 2023
2024 F 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT ARKTT

Financial assets at FVPL LAREBEEIFAER
HemEE 4,589 44,382

Financial assets at amortised cost Z#HEHKATENESREE

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 21) e RIFSEEY (HaF21) 1,190,148 1,620,556
Trade and other receivables (Note 19) B 5 R HMEWFRIE (At 19) 2,614,446 2,358,399
Restricted cash XRRHIZR & 7,871 7,137

3,812,465 3,986,092
Financial liabilities at REERATENSHEE

amortised cost
Trade and other payables (excluding B 5 REMENFIE (T EERT

accrued payroll and other taxes e REMERBE) (HaE27)
payables) (Note 27) 1,111,146 1,176,987
Lease liabilities (Note 26) HEBE(KF26) 14,960 15,844

1,126,106 1,192,831
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr 8 M B E R

(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B SZB#HAEIN - FTBESBAARE FITE)

18 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVPL 18 U ABEFEXFAERZNE
il & =
As at 31 December
M®12H31H
2024 2023
2024 2023 F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AREFT ARKTT

Financial assets at FVPL DNAREESELFTTABRN
eWMEE
— Senior notes (Note (a)) —BEERE (M @) 4,589 4,142
— Contingent consideration — RS A RAE (M 3£ 3.3(0)
receivables (Note 3.3(b)) - 40,240
4,589 44,382
Less: non-current portion of contingent & : FEU S AR BEIIER BN Z 5
consideration receivables - (3,835)
Current portion of financial assets AR BEGELF ABRR
at FVPL CRIEEMREF D 4,589 40,547
(a) The Company subscribed the senior notes issued by (@) ARFREEZFEMER20204 11 A%
CCRE in November 2020 amounting to US$12,500,000, THWELEEE - £% &12500,0003%
which has been matured on 24 May 2024 and bear TC ZEBEER2024F5824HEIH
interest at the rate of 7.75% per annum (Note 3.1.2(v)). REMET75% 5T 2 (FFE3.1.2(v)) °
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fma BRI

(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B RABEIN © FTE S EIAARE FITH)

18 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVPL (continued) 18 UAAREEFELFAREZNE

B & E (@)
(b) Amounts recognised in profit or loss: (b) REZBERANSE
During the year, the following gains/(losses) were FER - AT (EE) RIBE T g
recognised in profit or loss: 7

As at 31 December

R12A31H
2024 2023
2024 % 2023 %
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FT ARETFIT

Fair value gains/(losses) on REMERFEREZ
financial assets at FVPL RARBEFEILETA
recognised in other losses BENEREENDR
— net (Note 8) BERE (E8) (KE8)
— Senior notes — EBEER 380 (23,316)
— Revaluation of contingent — EHEWRESARE
consideration receivables = (3,838)

380 (27,154)
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fr 8 M B E R

(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B SZB#HAEIN - FTBESBAARE FITE)

19 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 19 B S R H{EUWEIE R FE{ =

PREPAYMENTS

18

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2024 2023
2024 % 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFIT
Trade receivables (Note (a)) Z 5 EIWERIA (A15E (@)
— Related parties (Note 32(d)) — @@ 5 (MaE32(d)) 1,640,198 1,694,099
— Third parties —%=75 1,686,451 1,277,318
3,326,649 2,971,417
Note receivables B AR - 244
Less: allowance for impairment of B B S EWGRIE R E R
trade receivables (1,364,627) (1,307,882)
1,962,022 1,663,779
Other receivables H b fE U FNIA
— Deposits (Note (c)) — & (M) 464,917 565,412
— Amounts due from related parties — FEUR AR 5 SR8 (FfaE 32(0))
(Note 32(d)) 140,121 132,542
— Loans to third parties (Note (b)) —ME=ZFERMZED) 55,870 55,153
— Utilities — DNEEEE 55,910 30,093
— Amounts due from the non- — PRI B A B FEAE A%
controlling interests of MR FRIAE
subsidiaries 3,506 5,920
— Others — =i 57,087 13,360
777,411 802,480
Less: allowance for impairment of B H A FEMGRIE R B B
other receivables (124,987) (107,860)
652,424 694,620
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19 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 19 Z S5 R E{fE =g Ll B Faft =

PREPAYMENTS (continued) 15 (&)
As at 31 December
R12H31H
2024 2023
2024 F 2023 F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREFIT
Prepayments TEfTFRIE
— Security charges and cleaning — ZREBERFEAX
expenses 198,077 117,597
— Others — HAM 41,344 40,354
239,421 157,951
Total st 2,853,867 2,516,350
Less: non-current portion of other A E A EUGRIE R IB AT FIE A
receivables and prepayments SEmEE (59,084) (50,359)
Current portion of trade and other B 5 R H A fE W R I K Fa A
receivables and prepayments KER BN S 2,794,783 2,465,991
Notes: Bfet -
(@)  Trade receivables mainly arise from property management (@) EBSREWFIEFEREMEEERS XIEEE
services and related value-added services. BRT °
Property management services income are received in V) 5 B 1R AR5 UL AR 4B B AR 7% 15 2 MO (6 SR UK
accordance with the terms of the relevant services agreements. BY o (/5 FETE TR API %S I Ak AN & e ST A B R
Service income from property management service is due for BB IRRRIEUWA o
payment by the residents upon the issuance of demand note.
The related value-added services to property developers are MYEREERENAMSEREOERRS
usually due for payment upon the issuance of document of TERRPIBE B A B SR I B R AT o

settlement.
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19 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENTS (continued)

(@)

(Continued)

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the aging analysis of the
trade receivables based on recognition date of trade receivables
were as follows:

9 EZREMEBIFIAELRFEMNR

I8 ()
@ (&)

R2024 2202312 8318 * ERE Sl
RIERER B R E 5 e SR IE B AR e 2 AT 40
T

As at 31 December

®12A318
2024 2023
2024 % 2023 F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR#TF T ARBFT
Less than 1 year THBiE 1 F 1,221,935 954,885
1t0 2 years 1824 555,280 1,425,763
2 to 3years 2E3F 1,075,687 487,991
3to 4 vyears 3E4AF 392,699 69,592
Over 4 years AFPE 81,048 33,186
3,326,649 2,971,417

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, trade and other receivables
were mainly denominated in RMB.

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the carrying amounts of
trade and other receivables approximated their fair values.

Information about the impairment of trade and other receivables
and the Group’s exposure to credit risk was disclosed in Note
3.1.2.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group provided loans to third
parties totally amounted to RMB55,870,000 (31 December 2023:
RMB55,153,000), which bear interest rates ranging from 4.25%
to 12% (2023: 5.6% to 12%) per annum. Of this amount,
RMB3,870,000, RMB25,000,000 and RMB27,000,000 will mature
within one year, two years and three years, respectively (31
December 2023: all loans were due within two years).

R2024E 22023512 B31 8 » BH R HEMEK
FETEUAREE -

R 2024 F [ 2023F 12 A3 H - EH REME
WERRREERL AR EERE -

BEE S RAEMERFIERERANEBEEE
ERE A E R PAMTE3.1.24% 5 o

(b) HR2024FE12A318  AEBRE = HREN
B R4 58 5t A A R ¥ 55,870,000 7t (2023 F
128318 : AR%55153,0007T) @ & F F| &
4.25% % 12% (20234 : 5.6% = 12%) st B - H
f A R #3,870,0007T + A % 25,000,000 7T &
AR#27,000000 T#H D RIR—F - MEKR=
FREHI(2023412 A318 : FIAERERRH
FREIH) -
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19 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENTS (continued)

©

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group, through
its subsidiaries, entered into several Exclusive Property Sales
Agency Services Agreements with various independent third-
party property developers. These agreements granted the Group
exclusive rights to market and sell residential units, parking
spaces, and retail outlets developed by these third parties.
Under the terms of these agreements, the Group was required
to place deposits to guarantee performance and adherence to
the exclusivity provisions of the agreements. Such deposits are
unsecured and refundable upon the termination or expiry of the
agreements.

During the year ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, the Group
executed sales transactions under these agreements. Revenue
was recognised based of the corresponding margins, which
were derived from the difference between the selling prices of
the properties and their baseline values as agreed in the
agreements.

20 INVENTORIES

As at 31 December 2024, inventories of RMB11,249,000
(2023: RMB12,691,000) consisted finished goods for sale on
the online shopping platform and smart hardware. No
allowance was made for these inventories as at 31
December 2024 and 2023.

19 %E&E%EH&%&IELX&?EN%&
18 (&)

©

REE2024F 12 A3MBLLEFE - AEBEFEB
HB AR EE TH A = WERAEERL
HNBRMEHERIERBE HE - XS HER
FTASEBRERN  LEHREEZEE=H
FEMNEEEN - FEMRTEES - RIEZ
EREMIER - REBATFHIRS AERETT
METEBHREOBEMIEEY - ZFESAE
AR AT A1 4R LE BB R IR AE o

REE2024F K 2023F 12 A31BIEFE * &
SEBRBZER RN THERD - WATIER
FENFERER  BMEESBERBRNEY
HEAGEEIENESE -

20 78
R2024%F12 4318 - FE AR 11,249,000
TL (20234 AR#12,691,0007T) AEH +
BYT A HENRN MRS LREM - 12024
F % 2023% 12 A31 BW EFLILMEH B -

21 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 21 BERKREEEY
As at 31 December
M12A31H
2024 2023
2024 £ 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARBFT
Denominated in RMB AR E
Cash at bank RITIRE 1,188,491 1,616,160
Cash on hand FHERE 111 285
1,188,602 1,616,445
Denominated in HK$ LA TTEHE
Cash at bank RITIRE 1,517 4,083
Denominated in US$ LAZETTEHE
Cash at bank RITIRE 29 28
1,190,148 1,620,556
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AESBEAARE T L)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 21 RERREZFEM @
(Continued)
Cash and short-term deposits held in Mainland China are R B A A B3R & N R I 52 E s ok
subject to local exchange control regulations. These MEESRBIFTIRE o SERHIEEARE T F
regulations provide for restrictions on exporting capital B (1F 5k 2N EH R & o
from Mainland China, other than through normal dividends.
RESTRICTED CASH 22 ZIRFIRE
Restricted cash mainly represents (i) funds for litigation ZREBESETEROLOMBRATFARS
preservation of some subsidiaries and (i) deposits for the B R(i)BHRHHRES ©
performance guarantee.
SHARE CAPITAL 23 A
Number of Equivalent
ordinary Share share
shares capital capital
ZERHE [N BRAEZEY
HK$'000 RMB'000
FET ARMTF T
Authorised EE
As at 31 December 2023 2023 £F J2 2024 5

and 2024 12H31H 5,000,000,000 50,000 42,795
Issued BT
As at 1 January 2023 20231 A1H 1,278,726,000 12,408 11,337
Issue of shares in connection 3t 2023 F i {5 22 =t 2|

with 2023 Share Award BITRRD (FY3E)

Scheme (Note) 21,800,000 218 201
As at 31 December 2023 A 2023412 A318 1,300,526,000 12,626 11,538
As at 1 January 2024 R2024F1A1H 1,300,526,000 12,626 11,538
Cancellation of shares LSRR (0 (Bt 5 24(b))

(Note 24(b)) (1,250,000) (12) (11)
As at 31 December 2024 R2024F12 4318 1,299,276,000 12,614 11,527
Note: Hfet -

Represented issue of 21,800,000 ordinary shares on 8 September 2023
with nominal value of HK$0.01 per share to the appointed trustee of the

Company pursuant to the 2023 Share Award Scheme (Note 25(b)).

FEIR 1% 2023 G i 10 22BN 5T & - 1202369 A8 HMZA

AR

#E A %17 21,800,000 & F A TEI1E 0.01 BT

KX 3@ A% (T s 25(0)) °

EEHMEFERRAR/ —2-MFFR
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24 OTHER RESERVES

208

24 Hitif#

FBERBEAARET L)

Employee
share-based Foreign
Share  Treasury Capital compensation Statutory  currency Total other
premium shares  reserves  reserves  reserves translation  reserves
EEN
RAHER it
RiVEE  ERRG  EARE NWeRE  iERE  MER  RELE
RMB 000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB000
AREFT ARBTLT ARETT ARETT ARETT AREFr AREFx
Balance at 1 January 2023 R2023E1 A1 AMES 1,086,360 - 81,023 259 183,043 (112,606) 1,238,079
Share award scheme-value of Trth B8 — EE MR

employee services (Note 25(b)) EEMHE20) - - - 13,964 - - 13,964
Issug of shares in connection with 5t 2023 IR 1) 2Bt 1%

2023 Share Award Scheme 110k {R (BTEE25))

(Note 25(b) = (201) = = = - (201)
Repurchase of shares of the BEARRRRN (AzEb)

Company (Note b) - (2933) - - - - (2.933)
Currency translation differences £ EEER - - - - - 1818 1818
Dividend distribution to ARED RIS (3£ 30)

shareholders (Note 30) (326,261) - - - - - (326,261)
Appropriation of statutory reserves AT REE (473 ()

(Note (a)) = = = = 34141 = 34,141
Balance at 31 December 2023  R2023E12 A 310K

] 760,099 (3,134) 81,023 14,223 217,184 (110,788) 958,607
Balance at 1 January 2024 R2024E1 A1 A& 760,099 (3,134) 81,023 14,223 217,184 (110,788) 958,607
Share award scheme-valug of Txth B8 — EE R

employee services (Note 25(b)) BE (A7 250) - = = 15,824 - - 15,824
Viesting of awarded shares RARHEE 11,400 52 - (11,452) - - -
Cancellation of shares (Note (b) ~ sES8IR IR (A2 () (2.922) 2,933 - - - - 1
Currency translation differences ~ EMBREZES - - - - - (9,672) (9.672)
Dividend distribution to ARED RIS (H3£30)

shareholders (Note 30) (411,960) - - - - - (411,960)
Appropriation of statutory reserves A &R (@)

(Note (a)) = = = = 32,058 - 32,058
Balance at 31 December 2024  R2024E12 A 310K

23 356,617 (149) 81,023 18,595 249,242 (120,460) 584,868
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(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (& 2B HAI - B S EUARETTH)
24 OTHER RESERVES (continued) 24 Hitif#EdE =)
(@) PRC statutory reserves (@) HEEERE

In accordance with relevant rules and regulations in B R AEREB R REH - RN E
the PRC, except for sino-foreign equity joint venture BEIN MERRRRAGEIRR
enterprises, all PRC companies are required to PR e R R ERESNEE
transfer 10% of their profit after taxation calculated AEMI0%ERE L FTHEES  E
under PRC accounting rules and regulations to the EESHAFGTREENEFMELRD
statutory reserve fund, until the accumulated total of 50% ° JATE B RS E A N ESHEE
the fund reaches 50% of their registered capital. The ML R AERE AT FEERE
statutory reserve fund can only be used, upon EINEBARIRNER -

(b)

approval by the relevant authority, to offset losses
carried forward from previous years or to increase
capital of the respective companies.

Treasury shares (b) EERH

As at 31 December

®12A31H
2024 2023
2024 F 2023 5
Number of Number of
treasury treasury
shares Amounts shares Amounts
BEFR 5 EFED
=] ix-] o gE! G|
RMB’000 RMB000
AR FT ARETFIT
At the beginning of NG|
the year 23,050,000 3,134 - -
Share issued and held by 18 4% 2023 4 % {7 22 &)
a trustee under 2023 FTEIEITRAXH
Share Award Scheme AFFERRG - - 21,800,000 201
Share transferred to and 1B4% 2023 G Ja fn H2E)
held by directors and STEIEERARES
certain employees under  RETREREH
2023 Share 17
Award Scheme (5,640,000) (52) - -
Shares repurchased (Note) — B&EIB& 7 (Afat) - - 1,250,000 2,933
Shares cancelled (Note) FESERR D (ML) (1,250,000) (2,933) = =
At the end of the year RER 16,160,000 149 23,050,000 3,134
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24 OTHER RESERVES (continued)

(b)

Treasury shares (Continued)

Note: The Company repurchase 1,250,000 shares of its own
ordinary shares during the year ended 31 December
2023. The total purchased consideration was
approximately HK$3,316,000 (equivalent to
RMB2,933,000) and was recognised as treasury shares in
other reserves. These shares were cancelled by the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2024.
Accordingly, the issued share capital and share premium
were reduced by the amount of the shares cancelled.

25 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

210

(@

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

The Company approved and adopted the option
scheme on 3 January 2019. Share options under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (the "Option”) are
granted to eligible participants (the “Eligibles”)
including directors and certain key employees.
Options are conditional on the Eligibles have served
the Group for certain period (the vesting period).
Share Options are granted for no consideration and
carry no dividend or voting right. When exercised,
each Option is convertible into one ordinary share.
The Group has no legal or constructive obligation to
repurchase or settle the Option in cash.

Share options granted to employees under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

On 3 January 2019 and 10 January 2019, 31,680,000
and 13,320,000 Options were granted to the Eligibles
with the same exercise price of HK$0.62 per share.

For vesting schedule of the share options granted to
directors and certain key employees, the share
options will be vested within 24 months immediately
following the listing date.
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FBERBEAARET L)

24 HitifdEdE =)

(b)

EFR7 (&)

it s RRARREE2023F 12 A3 B ILFEE
B8 [E11,250,000k B B L Mm% - MEEE
RIEH A3,316,0008 T (FHERARE
2,933,000 7T ) M 1E H A R HER B E
TR BE2024F12A3NBIEEFE -
ZERPDEHRARTE - ALt - B2
TTRARBRMNEED IR FHEROHE
AR o

25 IR HERAMTRK

(@

BRAMRERIBREE

AATER 20194 1 A 3 B # A& FER 49
REARAEETEl - B RAFARERIBRE
FEITHERE(ERED EETE
REERFTEZREAANEGER
2HE((REH/AL] - BRERT
MIEHREEBALTEAATEERE
EH—EMHR(GEER) - BRED
BFIUEEE - b TR B K
REE TR B—HERETER
B—REBR AEBUENRSE
Bl A EERENEES TR -

BERAHREBERETE T RES
BRIBERE
20194138 % 201941 A 108 -
B M4 &g AT 31,680,000 &
13,320,000 10 iR 1 - 1T ER AT
0.627 7T °

IRTEERFEEZRBNERE
FEEMmMS  BRESKREELD
HER 24 A A NERE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (S A& AN -

25 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

(@

(b)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued)
Share options granted to employees under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued)
Movement in the number of share options granted to
employees and their related weighted average
exercise prices are as follows:

fr 8 M B E R

AESBEAARE T L)

25 LRI BEBENGR @)

(a)

R B B 5 AT AR (49)
EPON LTl T e oy et
BT A ()

1 B 15 1 0 B MR A B B R AR A
BT TEENEBT

Number of options
BREHE

Exercise price 2024 2023

TEE 2024 & 2023 F

At the beginning of the year R F 4] HK$0.62 % 7T 540,000 540,000
Exercised 21768 HK$0.62 78 7T - -
Forfeited B8 U HK$0.62 7 7T (540,000) -
At the end of the year RER HK$0.6278 7T - 540,000
Currently exercisable B AIATAT{E HK$0.62 78 7T - 540,000

Fair value of share options granted under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

The fair value of options granted on 3 January 2019
and 10 January 2019 under Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme determined using the Binomial option-pricing
model was approximately RMB20.8 million.

There were no expenses recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income for
share options granted to employees for the year
ended 31 December 2024 (2023: nil).

2023 Share Award Scheme

On 29 May 2023, the Board of the Company approved
and adopted the Share Award Scheme for Eligibles of
the Group, including directors and certain key
employees (the “2023 Share Award Scheme”). The
2023 Share Award Scheme is the share-based
incentive scheme that the Company has in place to
motivate its employees. Employees are not entitled to
dividends on any awarded shares until these shares
are transferred to them at the end of the vesting
period.

(b)

EEHMEFERRAR/ —2-MFFR

BEXAHREFNERETHEATRT
ZIBREN L AEE

20191 H3H %201941 410018
BERARBEMBEETR T ZER
BN AEEER ZRABERETEE
EEETF  WAARKE208BETT -

HE2024E 12 AN BILEE - HiEgt
ETEENERENGS2EREE
FRIERR Y (20235 : F) -

2023 F R 7 SR B ETE

20235 H298  ARREESH
ERRNWAEEEERAT (RIEES
RETEXZRE) ZBRHERT S
(M2023 £ p €@t &) - 2023 F %
BB AR AR ARBEES M
B ARR D BETER B EIFTE - B
BEBENREMNEEBRNORE &
ZERMNEBIPERSEE TR

z=
==
=
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25 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

212

(b)

2023 Share Award Scheme (Continued)

The Group has entered into a trust deed and
appointed a trustee for the purpose of administering
the 2023 Share Award Scheme and holding shares
awarded or to be awarded to the employees (the
“"Awarded Shares") before vesting. On 8 September
2023, the Company allotted and issued 21,800,000
new shares to the trustee to hold on trust. The
Awarded Shares of 30%, 30% and 40% will be vested
on 12 months, 24 months and 36 months from date
of grant if the vesting condition can be fulfilled and
the purchase price of the Awarded Shares granted is
nil.

The movements in the number of shares held for the
Share Award Scheme for the period that ended are
as follows:

FBERBEAARET L)

25 URIpBERNSR @
(b) 2023 FRPIEEE (&)
AEBEIT I EERBLFEZITA
& 2023 4 B 15 S5 Y T B R A B3 B AT
BEEETISETRESNRG (%
B o 20239 B 8H » A7)
[ 5% 3F A B 3 % B 77 21,800,000 % #1
BB HERGIAETHREE - ¥
85 B 15 AL S0 AL B AR B 1 SRR 15
HEEEAZ - BI30% * 30% & 40% K
SEMARIS IS A B ERAE S 1218 A -
2418 A R 361EARE -

A 2 A SR TRD T ) L1 HA ] AR 55 40 8K
BEBMT -

Awarded shares
Year ended 31 December

5% B AR 1D
BE12H31BLEE

2024 2023

2024 & 2023

At the beginning of the year REA]) 21,800,000 -
Granted BEWN - 21,800,000
Vested BB (5,640,000) =
At the end of the year RER 16,160,000 21,800,000

For the Awarded Shares granted under the 2023
Share Award Scheme, the fair value is recognised as
an expense over the period in which the vesting
conditions are fulfilled. The total amount to be
expensed over the vesting period is determined by
reference to the fair value of the Awarded Shares
granted. A total expense of RMB15,824,000 (2023:
RMB13,964,000) was recognised for employee
services received in respect of the 2023 Share Award
Scheme for the year ended 31 December 2024.
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FhAR % 2023 FF AR 17 SR D a1 B4R 1 A9 SR ED AR
MmE - DAEER R R ERARER
BAY - BREBHALENRLE2E
EREEBRONANEEET - HZE2024
F12A831H L FE - 52023 F J 17 82 Eh =+
EMEEERGERAIRBBARE
15,824,0007T (20235 = AR #13,964,0007T) °
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26 LEASES 26 HE
(@) Amounts recognised in the consolidated (@) REEHMBEMRRARPBERNESHE
statement of financial position
As at 31 December
M12H31H
2024 2023
2024 % 2023 %
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFr
Right-of-use assets FREEE
— Leased properties and equipment  — FRE ¥ & & (K15 15)
(Note 15) 43,078 22,621
Lease liabilities HEAE
— Current — RE 8,661 5,945
— Non-current — JEmE 6,299 9,899
14,960 15,844
(b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated (b) REEZHKRRPERINESEHE
statement of comprehensive income
Year ended 31 December
BE12A3MALEE
2024 2023
2024 % 2023 F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFIT
Depreciation charge HEEH
— Leased properties and equipment  — A& ¥ & & (K1aE 15)
(Note 15) 7,973 10,735
Interest expense (included in finance | BB (3t ABE K Z)
costs) (Note 9) (BtzE9) 540 579
Rental expenses relating to short- HEAREEEHERBENHE
term and low-value leases SR (FEAEEKR AR RTT
(included in cost of sales and BFR)
administrative expenses) 857 1,702
Cash outflows for leases HERSME 9,171 12,220

BEFEEERAT / B IEFR 213




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fma BRI

(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B RABEIN © FTE S EIAARE FITH)

26 LEASES (continued) 26 #HE =)
(c) A maturity analysis of lease liabilities as at 31 () M2024F2023F 12 A31BHEEAE
December 2024 and 2023 is shown in the table B ERER O MTE N T ¢
below:

As at 31 December

®W12A831A
2024 2023
2024 & 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMFT AREFIT

The present value of lease liabilities is FHE & EMIRELNT :

as follows:
Within one year —F A 8,661 6,481
Later than one year but no later than —Z==4
two years 5,681 6,415
Later than two years but not later than —Z R
five years 1,234 3,962
15,576 16,858
Future finance charge RREEE A (616) (1,014)
14,960 15,844
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27 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

27 ESRHMEMNRKIE

AESBEAARE T L)

As at 31 December

M12H831H
2024 2023
2024 F 2023 F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT
Trade payables (Note (@) B SN FIE (M5 (8)
— Related parties (Note 32(d)) — @ 5 (M1a#32(a)) 13,776 35,693
— Third parties —%=h 559,772 568,973
573,548 604,666
Other payables HAth fET 3R
— Deposits — &S 234,964 301,973
— Amounts due to related parties — FE RN 5 518
(Note (b), Note 32(d)) (BfaE®) - K 32(d) 21,711 16,085
— Payables for acquisition of subsidiaries ~ — UREEHTE A &) e 718 4,905 41,135
— Other third parties —HE=F 276,018 213,128
537,598 572,321
Accrued payroll Rt EH S 162,671 126,212
Other taxes payables H fth fE 48 H1 18 86,698 82,358
1,360,515 1,385,557
Less: non-current portion of other payables & : Hth fE{t Z 3B IEENHAEE (1,090) (1,273)
Current portion of trade and other payables & 5 K H {th f&{~f ZIBENHEA 28 5 1,359,425 1,384,284

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the carrying amounts of
trade and other payables approximated their fair values.

2024 5 K 202312 H318 - B 5 K HA
RN RENEmEEE A EERES -
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27 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) B REMEMFIE @)

(@) Asat 31 December 2024 and 2023, the aging analysis @ EZE2024F K%2023F12H318 + R
of the trade payables based on invoice date were as BEEH N E SN FIE 2 RO
follows: 5 €

As at 31 December

M12H831H
2024 2023
2024 F 2023 F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARSFT
Less than 1 year B F 427,004 395,136
110 2 years 1822F 37,214 120,183
2 to 3years 2E3F 66,193 58,877
Over 3 year 3FL L 43,137 30,470
573,548 604,666

()  The amounts due to related parties were unsecured, (b)) B GRIEERR - 2R RAR

interest-free and repayable on demand. LRIEE -

28 BORROWINGS 28 (&

As at 31 December

216

R12H31H
2024 2023
2024 % 2023 F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FR ARKFT
Non-current liabilities ERBAE
— Long-term bank borrowings — secured — KEISRITE K — A
(Note (b)) (BteE b)) 52,000 52,000
— Less: Current portion of long-term — R - REISRITEFREE S
bank borrowings — secured — B - (25,000)
52,000 27,000
Included in current liabilities STAMBAE
— Current portion of long-term — RHRITIE R B E D
bank borrowings — secured — B - 25,000
Total bank borrowings IRITIE R 52,000 52,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr 8 M B E R

(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B SZB#HAEIN - FTBESBAARE FITE)

28 BORROWINGS (continued) 28 fEM (@)
(@) As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s bank (@ M2024F12A831H @ KEBFEITERK
borrowings were repayable as follows: WEZBERAT
As at 31 December
M®12H831H

2024 2023

2024 £ 2023 F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMTFT ARBTFT

Within 1 year —F AR - 25,000

Over 1 year and within 2 years —FEEMEUA - 27,000

Over 2 years and within 5 years ME EBRFUAA 52,000 -~

52,000 52,000
(b)  The secured long-term bank borrowings amounted to (b)) R2024F12A318 - BEFRBARIT
RMB52,000,000 as at 31 December 2024 (31 &k = AR 52,000,000 7t (2023 4 12
December 2023: RMB52,000,000) were bearing with A318 : AR#52,000,0007T) @ #&F
interest rates (ranging from 4.45% to 9.18% per FR = B (A B 27,000,000 7T B & 50
annum (2023: 8.25% per annum) for borrowings of 12 4.45%9.18% #) 5 7| % (2023 F : %
RMB27,000,000 and ranging from 4.25% to 5.50% per 825%H F F X )F BERARK
annum (2023: 9.18% per annum) for borrowings of 25,000,000 7T B9 fi& TR 3% 4.25%-5.50% HJ
RMB25,000,000) and secured by certain property, & FI K (2023 F : 129.18% K) F FI| X&)
plant and equipment of a non-controlling interest. PR WA —RIEERESANET

M - BB MR IEEE -

(¢)  All the borrowings are denominated in RMB as at 31 (€ F2024F K2023F12A31H  Fi &
December 2024 and 2023. BREIAAREE -
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29 DEFERRED INCOME TAX

The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax

liabilities is as follows:

29 BEEFRISH

BERABEMREHBE BT -

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2024 2023
2024 F 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFiT AREFT
Deferred tax assets: FEERIEEE ¢
— Deferred tax assets to be recovered — B 12{8 AU EH
after more than 12 months EERIRE = 290,708 291,923
— Deferred tax assets to be recovered — #1218 B R4 El A
within 12 months BERRIEE E 54,476 36,484
Set-off of deferred tax liabilities pursuant B4 E5 R & K $5 B 7R 18
to set-off provisions Bf& - (722)
345,184 327,685
Deferred tax liabilities: EERIERE
— Deferred tax liabilities to be recovered  — #5712 1& A 18 4 =] B i
after more than 12 months HEAaE (18,253) (30,680)
— Deferred tax liabilities to be recovered — — #7712 & B AL [E & E E
within 12 months HEaE (3,564) (3,564)
Set-off of deferred tax liabilities pursuant to AR E K §5 48 = K SR IE R I8
set-off provisions =N - 722
(21,817) (33,522)
323,367 294,163

218

Central China New Life Limited / 2024 Annual Report



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (S A& AN -

fr 8 M B E R

AESBEAARE T L)

29 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued) 29 EEFREH @)
Deferred tax
liabilities —
excess of
Deferred carrying  Deferred
tax Deferred  Deferred  Deferred amount tax
assets—  Deferred tax tax tax of other liabilities —
allowance on tax  assets—  assets— liabilities— intangible financial
doubtful  assets— lease accrued rightof assetsover  assetsat
debts  taxlosses liabilities ~ expenses  useassets the tax hases FVPL Total
BEhiE BERE
BE—Ef BE-NAR
i1 BE  EEHE  BERE  BERE ENEERR e
hEgE— HEEE- BE- BE- BE— EESBIH LiHABEN
REERE  REEE  HESE  EEHRY GREEE  EE0¥5 SREE @it
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ARETT  ARETT ARETT ARETr AREFT ARETr AREFT  AR¥ETn
As at 1 January 2023 R2023F1A1H 47518 9,835 = 848 = (28,944) (9,10) 20,15
Credited/(charged) tothe consolidated ~ REA2ERER
statement of comprehensive income ~~ 3FA/(f1%) 29,581 m 1,250 (848) (722) 3564 959 274,007
At 31 December 2023 R20235125318 317,099 10058 1250 - (722 (25,380) (8,142) 294,163
Asat 1 January 2024 R20245181A 317,099 10,058 1,250 = (722) (25,380) (8,142) 294,163
Credited/(charged) tothe consolidated A 2ERER
statement of comprehensive income~~ 3FA/(f1%) 16,589 516 (328) - 122 3,563 8,142 29,204
Others Hih = =
At 31 December 2024 #2024 512 A31A 333,688 10,574 922 - - (21,817) = 323,367

As at 31 December 2024, the Group has not recognised
deferred tax assets in respect of cumulative tax losses and
temporary differences totalling of RMB77,677,000 (31
December 2023: RMB63,941,000) as it is not probable that
future taxable profits against which the losses can be
utilised will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction.

Deferred income tax liabilities of RMB65,717,000 (31
December 2023: RMB80,520,000) have not been recognised
for the withholding tax that would be payable on the
unremitted earnings amounted to RMB657,171,000 (31
December 2023: RMB805,200,000) of certain subsidiaries.
The Company is able to control the timing of distribution
from these PRC subsidiaries. Such earnings are expected to
be retained by the PRC subsidiaries for reinvestment
purposes and would not be remitted to the oversea
intermediate holding companies in the foreseeable future
based on management’s estimation of overseas funding
requirements.

HE2024F12A8318  KEBIApELLE
A ARET77,677,0007T(2023F 12 A31H -
AR®63,941,00070) ) Rt HIEEBEERE
RHUEZERRECHIBEEE  RESMHE@R
5B 8RR 8 T K R AE A 1] FB A9 2R 2R B 5 F) B
FUABRRRES -

WELETHBERRKREDRAFAREK
657,171,0007 (2023 12 A318 : A R ¥
805,200,000 7t ) FE 1 H T N A1 SR IR IE AT 15
T & & AR % 65,717,000 7T (202312 A 31
H: AR#80,520,0007T) ° AN &) /] $2 4
ZEFHMNBARMNDIRER - RIEEERE
HBIINE S FRMOEF - ZERFEE A
PRMBARMREANEIRE - WAERE
BB R ZIE RGN AR AR
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30 DIVIDENDS 30 2R
2024 2023
2024 F 2023 FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT ARBFT
Special dividend paid (Note (a)) BRI S (MfaE (@) 286,262 =
Interim dividend paid (Note (b)) B BBRR B (77 (D) 125,698 103,089
Final dividend paid (Note (c)) B AREIRE B (2% () - 223,172
411,960 326,261

220

@

A special dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December
2023 of HK$0.2410 per ordinary share, approximately
HK$313,427,000 (equivalent to RMB286,262,000) was declared
by the Board and approved by the Company's Shareholders at
the Annual General Meeting held on 28 June 2024. The special
dividend has been distributed out of the Company’s share
premium and paid in cash.

An interim dividend in respect of six months ended 30 June 2024
of HK$0.1059 per ordinary share, approximately HK$137,726,000
(equivalent to RMB125,698,000) was proposed by the Board at
the Board Meeting held on 26 August 2024. The interim dividend
has been distributed out of the Company’s share premium and
paid in cash during the year ended 31 December 2024.

An interim dividend in respect of six months ended 30 June 2023
of HK$0.0871 per ordinary share, approximately HK$113,275,000
(equivalent to RMB103,089,000) was proposed by the Board at
the Board Meeting held on 21 August 2023. The interim dividend
has been distributed out of the Company’s share premium
account and paid in cash during the year ended 31 December
2023.

A final dividend in respect of year ended 31 December 2022 of
HK$0.1910 per ordinary share, approximately HK$243,998,000
(equivalent to RMB223,172,000) was declared by the board and
approved by the Company's Shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting held on 11 May 2023. The final dividend has been
distributed out of the Company’s share premium and paid in
cash.

A final dividend in respect of year ended 31 December 2024 of
HK$0.0736 per ordinary share have been proposed by the board
of directors of the Company and are subject to the approval of
the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting to be held on 2
June 2025. The final dividend will be distributed out of the
Company’s share premium. These consolidated financial
statements have not reflected these dividends payable.

The Board did not propose any final dividend for the year ended
31 December 2023.
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FEETEN2024F 6 A28 B RITHREBF
AELERYBAARARESHAEREHS
2023F 12 A3 BILFENFIREEGRE B
B%0.241058 7T * #9/4313,427,00058 7T (F&E R
AR #286,262,0007T) + WHEAR R R R EHL
A o BRI B E AR BRI 3@ B R 5 R I A
WEFft e

BEECTEN2024FSA2BRITHNESS S
FLEBSREE 202446 A308 (k518 A
B R B R E E 01059 T 4
137,726,0007% 7t (#8 & R A & # 125,698,000
JT) e FHIREEREE2024F 12 A31H 1
FERARRRRGHEF DRI IAIRS LA -

BEEDN2028FE8A21BRITHESSS
#FLEETIREE 2023464308 (k58 A
R AR B E R YT A R0087IE T &
113,275,000 7t (8 & 7 A K % 103,089,000
JL)  BE2023F 12 A3THILFE - RHR
BERARTRMD EBRFDIRTIARES
it e

BEEDN2023F5 1M BRITHRRBESE
AEeLERIAAARESHEREHZ
2022F 12 A3 BILFEHKRBAREERE B
BX0.191058 7T * 41/ 243,998,000 7T (#E R
AR ¥223,172,0007T ) + WA R & R R#E
HE o REARRE B R R 5 B P 7RI A
WEXfte

ARFIEZEEEEREE2024F12HA31H
LEF SR B R HARR B A 3@ AR 0.0736 7 T -
AFRERMN2025F 6 A2 A EBITHRRBE KR
2 LIERFAMEE - RERBEEARRD
RADEER DR o ZEARE MBRER LA R
ZERERMES °

EECVERESREZ2023F12A318 1
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr 8 M B E R

(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B SZB#HAEIN - FTBESBAARE FITE)
31 CASH FLOW INFORMATION 31 HEREEN
(@) cash generated from/(used in) operations (a) REmME (FTABES

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

2024 2023
2024 F 2023 £
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARBTFT
Loss before income tax RET PSRRI & 18 358,931 (696,175)
Adjustments for: FEE -
— Depreciation of property, plantand  — ¥% - = LR ETE
equipment (Note 15) (HfaE15) 23,221 28,926
— Amortisation of intangible assets — m B R (WA 16)
(Note 16) 20,447 19,896
— Allowance for impairment of trade ~ — & 5 & £ fth fE YR Z B AN
and other receivables and contract BHEERBERE
assets 74,907 1,222,352
— Losses from disposal of property, — HEYE - BERK
plant and equipment including (BIEFERAEEE)W
right-of-use assets iagi] 53 771
— Gains from disposal of an associate  — & — B & A A1 A Uz - (1,505)
— Disposal of a subsidiary — HE—ENBAFR (735) =
— Net foreign exchange losses (Note 8) — I X, &5 18R 58 (f17% 8) 31 1,412
— Fair value (gains)/losses on financial — A AR BEFTEILETA
assets at FVPL (Note 8) EaremEEN
AREE (W), EiE
(K1:E8) (380) 27,154
— Share of profit/(loss) of associates ~ — FE(RES = A &) %EF
(Note 12) /(B18) (et 12) 9 (282)
— Finance cost (Note 9) — BB (B 9) 4,871 6,200
— Interest income from loans to third ~ — [AZE = TR E A
parties (Note 7) FEWA (HaE7) (4,243) (4,780)
— Share award and share option — IR SRE) R BB AR T &)
scheme-value of employee services — EERBEE
(Note 11) (Kt 11) 15,824 13,964
492,936 617,933
Changes in working capital: EEECEE)
— Trade and other receivables and — B 5 R HEAMEWGIE
prepayments AR B ZIR (439,035) (968,161)
— Contract liabilities —&HEaE 135,884 181,498
— Inventories —=FE 1,442 1,763
— Contract assets — EHEE 1,517 (3,945)
— Trade and other payables — B 5 RHEAMEN IR (41,135) 136,264
— Restricted cash —XRHES (734) (1,811)
150,875 (36,459)
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31 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued) 31 REREEHN @)

(b) The reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b) BMETHEEZEBZEHERENT :
financial activities is as follows:
Other
payables —

amounts due
Lease to related

liabilities parties  Borrowings
Ht S
I — A

HEAE A 5 IR EE

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB000

AREFIT ARETFIT ARETFT

As at 1 January 2023 MN2023F1A1H 11,799 14,286 74,000

Cash flows HeReE

Financing cash inflow BERSTA - 1,799 =

Financing cash outflow BMERS L (9,939) - (22,000)
Non-cash changes FHEEH

Addition in lease contract HEARARE 13,984 - -

As at 31 December 2023 MN2023%F 12 A31H 15,844 16,085 52,000

As at 1 January 2024 M2024F1H18 15,844 16,085 52,000

Cash flows HeReE

Financing cash inflow MERSAA - - -

Financing cash outflow MERS T (7,774) - -
Non-cash changes FHRLEH

Addition in lease contract HEARRE 6,890 - -

Disbursement BT - 5,626 -

As at 31 December 2024 202412 4318 14,960 21,711 52,000
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fr 8 M B E R

(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B SZB#HAEIN - FTBESBAARE FITE)

32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@

Name and relationship with related parties

32 Al AERS
() BIMS SMK RN S NEE

Name Relationship with the Group

£ BB B R

Mr. Wu Controlling shareholder of the Company
bt ZAN/NETEL i

CCRE Group A group controlled by Mr. Wu
BEMESE FR A A4 I Y £ [

CCMGT Group A group controlled by Mr. Wu
PIREEEE FBAST AR S

Henan Drawin Technology Industry Group Co. Ltd.
and its subsidiaries (“Drawin Group”)
MEEREENBREXSEBERAG R
HiB AR ([RREH])

Henan Jianye Taihong Real Estate Co. Ltd.
HHEXRLRBEXARAA

Henan Aijia Household Products Co. Ltd.
AN ERERRBRAR

Zhengzhou Jianye Zhengzhong Digital Film Co. Ltd.
ENEEEREHN B AR AR

Zhengzhou Renji Real Estate Development Co. Ltd.
ENCEFEREZERRAA

Shengiu County Forest Peninsula Real Estate Co. Ltd.

MEBAMELEEXERAT

Henan Yuzhu Real Estate Co. Ltd.
TAEBRKEEAR AT

Xinmi City Emperor Resettlement Industry Co. Ltd.
MEmMRLEREARAR]

A group controlled by Mr. Wu

B A S RS R E

Ajoint venture of CCRE Group

BRWESENAEDRR

A joint venture of CCRE Group
EXHMESEMNEERE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
EEMWESENSERE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BEMESENEEDLE

Ajoint venture of CCRE Group
BRMESEENGERE

Ajoint venture of CCRE Group
BEMESENSELHE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
EEMESENSERE
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32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

224

(@

Name and relationship with related parties
(Continued)

32 AR S @)
(a) BEmES &R SRS HIBR ()

Name
=L

Relationship with the Group
icbiNo S RS

Zhoukou Zhonghang Real Estate Co. Ltd.
AOHMmEXRER AR

Zhengzhou Jianze Real Estate Co. Ltd.
HINEEEEFR AR

Anyang Zhongrun Real Estate Development Co. Ltd.
ZEh EEEREBR AR

Jiaozuo Jianteng Real Estate Co. Ltd.
EERREXRARAT

Luoyang Zhuohong Real Estate Co. Ltd.
B RLEXBR AR

Henan Guoxuan Real Estate Co. Ltd.
AEEEFEXERDA

Puyang Construction City Development Co. Ltd.
ESREMERAR AR

Hebi Rongyi Real Estate Co. Ltd.
BEREEXAR AR

Linzhou Heavy Machinery Real Estate Development
Co. Ltd.
MM EHFHERZERR AR

Luoyang University Science and Technology Park
Construction Co. Ltd.
BEREREEZZER QA

Luoyang Jinjian Urban Construction Development Co. Ltd.

BEMEREMERERBRAF]
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A joint venture of CCRE Group
BERMESEENGEMRE

Ajoint venture of CCRE Group
BEMEEENSERE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
EEMWESENSERE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BEMWESENEEDLE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BERMESEENGERE

Ajoint venture of CCRE Group
BEMEEENSERE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
EEMWESENSERE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BEMESENEEDLE

Ajoint venture of CCRE Group

ERMWESENAEDLE

Ajoint venture of CCRE Group

ERMWESENAEDLE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BERMEEENGERE
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32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(@

Name and relationship with related parties
(Continued)

32 EBAE RS @)

(a)

BARE S BB BRER R S B R ()

Name
=L

Relationship with the Group
B E W ABIR

Luohe Jingcheng Real Estate Co. Ltd.
BARMEZEERAA

Luohe Liangchen Real Estate Co. Ltd.
BRREXEERAR]

Henan Rongxing Real Estate Co. Ltd.
AEEEEXFRARF]

Shanggiu Baile Real Estate Co. Ltd.
BEALEXERAR]

Luoyang Jianzun Real Estate Co. Ltd.
BEREEEXARETAA

Henan Jianye Huayi Brothers Cultural Tourism Industry
Co., Ltd.
T EREER B IREEZEBR AR

Zhengzhou Jianling Real Estate Co., Ltd.
BMEREXEEGRAR]

Henan Jiancheng Economic Development Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.
A RENEREERZEER AR

Luohe Jingde Real Estate Co. Ltd.
B EERBRAA

Henan Lingtai Real Estate Development Co. Ltd.
AEEREHERZERAF

Zhoukou Jianwen Real Estate Co. Ltd.
BAOmEXEFXAR AT

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BERMESENGERE

Ajoint venture of CCRE Group
BEMEEENSERE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BEEMWESENSERE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BEMESENEEDE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BERMESENGERE

Ajoint venture of CCRE Group

BRWESENAEDRE

Ajoint venture of CCRE Group
BEMEEENSERE

A joint venture of CCRE Group

BEEHMESENAEDLE

An associate of CCRE Group
BEMESENE S AR

An associate of CCRE Group
EEMESEMEE AR

An associate of CCRE Group
BEME S E AR E A T

EEHMEFERRAR/ —2-MFFR
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32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

226

(b)

Transactions with related parties (b)
In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the
consolidated financial statements, the following is a

summary of the transactions carried out between the

Group and its related parties in the ordinary course of

business during the years ended 31 December 2024

and 2023.

Provision of goods and services to companies
controlled by Mr. Wu, joint ventures and associates of
CCRE Group and CCMGT Group:

FBERBEAARET L)

32 EEtAE RS @)

HEBINZS

BT ESA ISR E M B EA
RPN UTRAEE K EBE S E
H = 20244 KR 202312 A31 8 Ik &
ERESEKBREFPETHZHME -

RS EMIERI AR BEMWESE
EHREZFEENSELREBER
AR E KRS

Year ended 31 December
HBZ12A31BLEE

2024 2023
2024 F 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT AR®TT

Installation and decoration services LR REERE 22,598 154,437
consulting services and commercial BRI MR EEEIE
property management income WA 8,242 47,769
Sales of goods EmiHE 55 35,486
Property management and related Y55 18 N AR R AR 7S
services 20,870 30,725
Other value-added services HAth 38 (E R 7 34 815
51,799 269,232
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32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 32 BEARXSE @®m)

(b) Transactions with related parties (Continued) (b) EREREABAENRS (&)
Receipt of goods and services from companies BB EESINAR - BEME
controlled by Mr. Wu, joint ventures and associates of SEERPREXEENSGELER
CCRE Group and CCMGT Group: Bt N AR EME M KR

Year ended 31 December
BZE12H31BLEE

2024 2023
2024 £ 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT ARETFIT

Tourism service costs TR B2 AR FS A 2N 133 802

Cost of goods sold HEMK AR 1,252 59

Others HAth 1,991 5,233
3,376 6,094

Additions of right-of-use assets REFEREEE

— Office rental e NEY ke - 6,307

Interest expenses for lease liabilities HEAEMNERAY

— Office rental —WAEHEE - 193
All of the transactions above were carried out in the FHER SR AEENIEE
normal course of the Group's business and on terms HBERET TIEBRRSEH 2
as agreed between the transacting parties. 1 198 FE BV IR ST ©
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32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 32 EAEHF X5 (&)

() Key management compensation () FEEBEAEHM
Compensations for key management including FABREEHFENETEEEAEN
directors” emoluments during the year are set out HENES AT
below:

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEFE

2024 2023
2024 £ 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®FT ARETFIT

Salaries and other short-term e REMREHESET
employee benefits 13,688 17,016
Share-based payments AR D BETE R 5K 10,671 9,416

24,359 26,432
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32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 32 BAEtF R H (@)
(d) Balances with related parties (d) ERRAEE WAEER

As at 31 December

R12H31H
2024 2023
2024 F 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT AR®ETT

Trade receivables H 5 IR
— CCRE Group and its joint ventures ~ — EEMEEB R EAE
and associates (=EYNE NG 1,637,620 1,691,213
— CCMGT Group and its joint ventures — RREXEERHEE]
% 2,452 2,264
— Drawin Group —HR5E 126 622
1,640,198 1,694,099
Other receivables (Note (i) EAth FE MR IR (AT ()
— CCRE Group and its joint ventures ~ — ZEEEB LR HEA]
and associates 1 K& N F] 102,812 96,151
— CCMGT Group —HREEEE 36,859 36,362
— Drawin Group —HEREE 450 29
140,121 132,542
Prepayments SELNE
— CCRE Group and its joint ventures ~ — iZEESEBLRHEAE
and associates (Y& /N 985 978
— Drawin Group —H£R&H = 4
985 982
Contract assets BHEE
— CCRE Group and its joint ventures ~ — EZEMEEENHEALE
and associates b R E QA 24,431 25,378
— CCMGT Group —HREXEE 3 3
24,434 25,381
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32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 32 BEABtF X5 (&)
Balances with related parties (Continued) (d) EEBAEETT RIAEER ()

(d)

230

As at 31 December

R12H31H
2024 2023
2024 F 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT AR®ETT

Trade payables B ST RIA
— CCRE Group and its joint ventures ~ — iZEiEELEBLRHEAEE
g(=E 3 13,776 35,683
— Drawin Group —EREH = 10
13,776 35,693
Other payables (Note (ii)) H b FE A< 5RIB (BT (i)
— CCRE Group and its joint ventures ~ — i@EMEEBREARE
and associates 2 K& N F] 21,506 16,034
— CCMGT Group —HREXEEH 205 51
21,711 16,085
Lease liabilities MEaE
— CCRE Group — EEMEEE - 4,805
Contract liabilities aHaE
— CCRE Group and its joint ventures ~ — BREMEEENHEAE
and associates 12 R HEE QT 3,615 3,245
— CCMGT Group —HREEEE 66 64
3,681 3,309
0] Trade receivables, other receivables, trade payables, () FEY SRR A R E S EIRGRIE - H
lease liabilities and contract liabilities due from/to related EYRIE - ZEZEMNFIE  HEAE
parties are unsecured and interest free. RENBBEREEARAE -
(i) Other payables due to related parties are interest-free (i)  EHthESEEE S FIEAR S RERENRK
and repayable on demand. fBiE -
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33 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 33 AA TS ERRER G
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE

COMPANY
As at 31 December
M12A31H
2024 2023
2024 & 20234
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Wi AREFT ARETT
Assets BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Investment in subsidiaries R B RRIMIRE 148,667 132,842
Property, plant and equipment L E ST = 4,731
148,667 137,573
Current assets REEE
Other receivables from subsidiaries H A e U BB A R K8 573,151 563,845
Financial assets at fair value through NARBEFEL AR
profit or 10ss HEREE 4,589 4,142
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBESEEY 1,351 955
579,091 568,942
Total assets EEH#E 727,758 706,515
Equity s
Equity attributable to shareholders of Z<7 TR R E/E#EH
the Company
Share capital f& 7 23 11,527 11,538
Other reserves (Note (a)) HAubfEE (A5 @) 397,524 787,048
Accumulated losses 255 E (106,115) (101,648)
Total equity RERmE 302,936 696,938
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33 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE

33 ALQTMBRARRBEEELE @)

232

COMPANY (continued)
As at 31 December
M12A31H
2024 2023
2024 F 20234
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
iz AR%Frx ARETT
Liabilities =L
Non-current liabilities kRBERS
Lease liabilities HEBE - 2,682
Current liabilities REAE
Other payables H e FUR 424,822 4,771
Lease liabilities HEB®E - 2,124
424,822 6,895
Total liabilities BEH8E 424,822 9,577
Total equity and liabilities ERRAERAE 727,758 706,515

The statement of financial position of the Company was
approved by the board of directors of the Company on 26
March 2025 and was signed on its behalf.

Wang Jun
&
Director
EF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr 8 M B E R

(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B SZB#HAEIN - FTBESBAARE FITE)

33 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 33 AATHBARKREGEEE) @)
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE
COMPANY (continued)
(@) Reserve movement of the Company (@) AATHEERS
Employee
share-hased  Foreign Total
Share  Treasury Capital compensation  currency other
premium  shares  reserves reserves translation  reserves
EEURGA Hfb e

Etvaf EERG EXEG EEOMeRE  OMRER L
RMB000  RMBOOO  RMB000 RVMBO00  RMBUO0  RMB'000
ARETL ARETT ARBTT  ARRTL ARETT ARETI

Balance at 1 January 2023  R2023F1R1R 8

& 1,086,360 = 100,000 259 (99,026) 1,087,593
Share award schemevalugof R B2 — EE
employee services RBER - - - 13,964 - 13,964
Issue of shares in connection with ~ 3 2023 E R (7 1211 2
2023 Share Award Scheme Bk = (201 = = = (201)
Repurchase of shares of the KARBERG
Company - (2,933) - - - (2933)
Currency translation differences  E#aE =% - - - - 14,886 14,886
Dividend distribution to AREDERE
shareholders (326,261) - - - - (326,261)
Balance at 31 December 2023 14202312831
i 760,099 (3134 100,000 14223 (841400 787,048
Balance at 1 January 2024  R2024F1B1B %
£& 760,099 (3,134) 100,000 14,223 (84,140) 787,048
Share award schemevalue of — FR(72EERH 2 — B8
employee services s EE - - - 15,824 - 15,824
Vesting of awarded shares RERNEE 11,400 52 - (11,452) - -
Cancellation of shares Rzl i (2.922) 2,933 - - - 1"
Currency translation differences  EHHE=%H - - - - 6,601 6,601
Dividend distribution to AREDERE
shareholders (411,960) - - - - (411,960)
Balance at 31 December 2024 X2024 512831 AH
g 356,617 (149) 100,000 18,595 (77,539) 397,524
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34 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT 34 RERHAREE
LIABILITIES
(a) capital commitments (a) EAXREE
As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the Group’s 20245 % 20235 12 A3 HILFE -
capital commitments mainly related to the REEMEREEFZHERETAR
development of the intelligent platform and financial M REZZAMFEER - FIEERT
sharing system. The details are set as below: -

As at 31 December

R12H31H
2024 2023
2024 F 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT ARETT

Intangible assets B AE 3,768 3,768
(b) contingencies (b) HAREIR

The Group did not have any material contingent 2024 K 202312 A31H - K&

liabilities as at 31 December 2024 and 2023. Ef R ERSBERE -
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35 DIRECTORS' BENEFITS AND INTERESTS 35 EEREFIRiEZS

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments () EERBETHRAEME
The remuneration of every director and the chief EEERESTHRAE ZMES 0
executive is set out below: N
For the year ended 31 December 2024: BE2024F12A31HILFE :
Housing
allowances,
other

allowances  Contribution
Share-based  and benefits to pension

Fees Bonus payment (V) in kind scheme Total
NRfE AE2E- Hi Bie
Name #e e ®e ERMARV) RENENER ST b

RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000  RMB'000
ARETE ARETR ARETT  ARETT  AREFT ARETZ

Executive directors HTES

Mr. Wang Jun FlREE 3,045 - 1,884 17 4,946
Ms. Dai Jiling () RERLL() 1,106 - 314 23 14 1,457
Mr. Shi Shushan (i) PENEEN 1817 1,932 942 47 36 4,774

Non-executive directors FEH{TES
Ms. Wu Lam Li (iv) B L () 43 - an - - 514

Independent non- BUFHTES
executive directors

Mr. Leong Chong PARHE 203 - - - - 203
Ms. Luo Laura Ying BELT 203 - - - - 203
Ms. Xin Zhu FhHut 203 - - - - 203

6,620 1,932 3,611 87 50 12,300
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35 DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS
(Continued)

236

(a)

35 EEREMBREZS@®

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (@) EBEERITETHAEMS (&)
(Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023: BZ2023FE 1231 HILEE :
Housing
allowances,
other
allowances  Contribution
Share-hased and benefits t0 pension
Fees Bonus  Payment (V) inkind scheme Total
Wkina GE2E- Ei Bike
Name # ik #e ERNAZRV) ZEAENEH HEE5 ks
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETT ARETT AEEFT ANEEFT ARETT
Executive directors BITES
Mr. Wang Jun ThEE 3,007 2,069 - 16 - 5,092
Mr. Shi Shushan (i) PELREN 2229 405 - 48 34 2,716
Mr. Wang Qian (ii) TE L) 173 - - 2 - 175
Non-executive directors F#{TES
Ms. Wu Lam Li (iv) BHTL() 90 202 - - = 292
Ms. Dai Jiing () RickaL() 69 135 - - = 204
Ms. Min Huidong (1) RERLT() 2 - - - - 21
Independent non- BUFHTES
executive directors
Mr. Leong Chong R 199 - - - - 199
Ms. Luo Laura Ying Eent 199 - - - - 199
Ms. Xin Zhu FRLT 199 - - - - 199
6,186 281 = 66 34 9,097

(iii)

(iv)

Ms. Dai Jiling was appointed as a non-executive director
on 24 March 2023, re-designated from a non-executive
director to an executive director and appointed as a chief
executive officer on 16 August 2024.

Mr. Shi Shushan was appointed as an executive director
on 3 February 2023, resigned the position of chief
executive officer on 16 August 2024 and resigned as an
executive director on 1 February 2025.

Mr. Wang Qian resigned as an executive director on 3
February 2023.

Ms. Wu Lam Li resigned as a non-executive director on
19 June 2024.

Ms. Min Huidong resigned as a non-executive director on
24 March 2023.
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fr 8 M B E R

(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B SZB#HAEIN - FTBESBAARE FITE)

35 DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS

(Continued)

(@

Directors’ and chief executive’'s emoluments

(Continued)

(vi)

(vii)

The share-based payment corresponds to the shares
awarded under the 2023 Share Award Scheme as set out
in Note 25(b), which was adopted by the Board of the
Company on 29 May 2023. The vesting period of the
awarded shares is determined by the Board. In
accordance with Accounting Bulletin 3 (Revised), the
management has adopted the estimation approach to
estimate the money value of awarded Shares at the
amount of the gain if the options/awards are exercised,
or as if they were exercised, at the time of vesting, for
those options/awards which vested during the year. The
amount of the gain is the difference between the market
price of the shares on the day of vesting and the price
paid, if any, for the shares.

In accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, the
share-based payment expenses for Mr. Wang Jun, Ms.
Dai Jiling, Mr. Shi Shushan and Ms. Wu Lam Li are at
approximately HK$4,823,000, HK$804,000, HK$2,411,000
and HK$1,206,000 (equivalent to RMB4,355,000,
RMB726,000, RMB2,178,000 and RMB1,089,000) (2023:
HK$4,255,000, HK$709,000, HK$2,128,000 and
HK$1,064,000 (equivalent to RMB3,843,000, RMB641,000,
RMB1,922,000 and RMB961,000)), respectively. The
aggregate amount of the cash emoluments paid to,
including fees, bonus, other benefits in kind, housing
allowances, other allowances, and contributions to the
pension scheme, together with the share-based payment
expense incurred by Mr. Wang Jun, Ms. Dai Jiling, Mr. Shi
Shushan and Ms. Wu Lam Li are at approximately
RMB7,417,000, RMB1,869,000, RMB6,010,000 and
RMB1,132,000 (2023: RMB8,935,000, RMB845,000,
RMB4,638,000 and RMB1,253,000), respectively. The
value is the amortization of the share award for future
years which does not involve cash income.

35 EEEMRERS @)

EERTETRAEBME (&)

(@)

EEHMEFERRAR/ —2-MFFR

(vii)

VABR A% B E 5 B9 3/ AR B AR IR B 7
25(b) FT # 79 2023 4 B& {5 B2 D AT E14R 1
R 17 » sx 5T 87202345 529 B %
NAREESEN - LEHRGOERBEL
HEZESRT - RIS AEEIFREE
1B57) BEEEERAME RERN
EEMOERE REmE - RITERR
#HER R RS S BB SO T T B AR
RS S B AT ER RGN N
EMER - kXeEARBE BRMAM
B T HER (INE) ZHEEE -

RIEE AU 15| & 2R B 25 m
;o EBEE RERLZE - 2EILE
HEREMLZTHBRGNFFALZ S BIN B
4,823,000 7T ~ 804,000 7T ~ 2,411,000
7 7T %.1,206,0007% 7T ( B R AR
4,355,000 + AR 726,0007TC « AREE
2,178,000 7T &2 A R #5 1,089,000 7T ) (2023
& 5 Bl £4,2550005 JT ~ 709,00078
JC * 2,128,000 7T K& 1,064,0007% 7T ( 48
B AR 38430007 « AR 641,000
7T~ AR 1,922,000 7T & A R # 961,000
JL)) e XN FEMBEE  RicKR Lt -
SE2EERTHZEIHNESHS (B
FWE A HHEYRR - R
Al ~ H AR AL RORIR S 5HEIME ) E R
AR AR REAZBES LA
AER#7,417,0007T  AR#1,869,0007T
AR ¥ 6,010,000 7T &2 A R ¥ 1,132,000 7T
(20234 : AR #89350007T « A R
845,0007C + AR#4,6380007T AR
1,253,0007T) ° ZEBEEARKFERSG
REEE - TS RIBEERA -
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35 DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS
(Continued)

238

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2024, no director
or the chief executive officer has waived or agreed to
waive any emoluments. The emoluments of directors
and the chief executive officer of the Company were
not distributed as the management of the Company
considers there is no reasonable basis of allocation.

Directors’ retirement benefits and
termination benefits

There were no retirement benefits paid to or
receivable by directors during the years ended 31
December 2024 and 2023 by defined benefit pension
plans operated by the Group and there were no
director’s termination benefits subsisted during the
years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023.

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

During the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023,
the Group did not pay consideration to any third
parties for making available directors’ services.

Information about loans, quasi-loans and
other dealings in favor of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors

During the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023,
there were no loans, quasi-loans and other dealings
entered into by the Company or subsidiaries,
undertaking of the Company, where applicable, in
favor of directors.

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

There were no significant transactions, arrangements
and contracts in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company was a party and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted as at 31
December 2024 and 2023.

No directors waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments for the years ended 31 December 2024
and 2023. No incentive payment for joining the Group
or compensation for loss of office was paid or
payable to any directors during the years ended 31
December 2024 and 2023.
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(a

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)
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HE
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36 SUBSIDIARIES 36 MEQT
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Group as at REEF2024F % 2023FE 12 B31 BT E
31 December 2024 and 2023 are set out as below. B ATEBEIT
Place of incorporation Registered/issued Principal activities/ Attributable equity
Company name and kind of legal entity  and paid-up capital place of operation interest of the Group
EMB ISR B/ TEER/
DRER HEERER BTREMRER "EhY FEEREER
31 December
12A31H
2024 2023
20245 NBE
Directly owned:
HEER:
Sky Joy Limited BVI, Limited liability company ~ US$1/US$1 Investment holding in BI 100% 100%
ARERAT ABEBRES ARAR 1EnER REBEARHENSHE
1%
Indirectly owned:
BEEs
Central China New Life (Hong Kong)  Hong Kong, Limited liability  HK$10,000/Nil Investment holding in 100% 100%
Limited company Hong Kong
BEMEE(BHB)BRAH & BROA 10,000%7,/% RERFERARR
Henan Central China New Life The PRC, Limited liability RMB700,000,000/ Consultancy Services in 100% 100%
Service Co., Ltd. company RMB700,000,000 Henan Province
EEENEERBERAR HE - BRAR ARET000000007/  WAEEHEEARS
AR#700,000,0007C
Henan Central China Property The PRC, Limited liability RMB300,000,000/ Property management 100% 100%
Management Co., Ltd.* company RMB300,000,000 Services in Henan
AERENFERERAR hEl - BRAF AR%3000000007,/  RAREHENEERRS
AKR#300,000,0007C
Henan Zhizun Housing Agency Co.,  The PRC, Limited liability RMB100,000,000/ Real estate marketing 100% 100%
Ltd.* company RMB100,000,000 Services in Henan
MEEEEERNERAR B - BRAR ARE100000000/ RABEHERHEEH

A #100,000,000 7 fR%
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36 SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 36 MIE2AE )

Place of incorporation Registered/issued Principal activities/ Attributable equity
Company name and kind of legal entity ~ and paid-up capital place of operation interest of the Group
EMALBER i/ TEER/
INCER HEERER BIREHRER REHY KEEELER
31 December
12A318
2024 2023
20245 2023F
Indirectly owned: (Continued)
HEEs: (2
Henan Central China New Life The PRC, Limited liability RMB100,000,000/ Tourism services in 100% 100%
Travel Service Co., Ltd.* company RMB38,050,000 Henan Province
WERENEREERBEERAR HE GRAR ARE1000000007/  WAEBHERERS
AR 38,050,000
Henan Central China New Life The PRC, Limited liability RMB100,000,000/ Hotel management services 100% 100%
Hotel Management Co., Ltd.* company RMB16,000,000 in'Henan Province
MERENEEEEERERAR HE HRATF ARE1000000007/ RABEHSEEERRE
AR#16,000,000 7T
Henan Central China New Life The PRC, Limited liability RMB50,000,000/ Management Consulting 94% 94%
Agricultural Development company RMB22,000,000 Services in Henan Province
Co., Ltd.*(formerly known as
Henan Songyan Agricultural
Development Co., Ltd.)
MERENEEEXERERAR HE FRAF ARES00000007T,/  RABEHSERZARS
(A THaRRELR AR 22,000,000
ARAR)
Henan Aiou Electronic Technology  The PRC, Limited liability RMB8,000,000/ Technology services in 93.33% 93.33%
Co., Ltd.* company RMBY7,666,000 Henan Province
MELEEFHEERAR e - BRAR AE8000,0007T,/ NEERR
ARE7 6660007
Henan One Family Network The PRC, Limited liability RMB100,000,000/ Technology services in 100% 100%
Technology Co., Ltd.* company RMB100,000,000 Henan Province
- FEERRERAT HE - ERAR ARE1000000007/  RAREHSRKIMHRY
AR 100,000,007
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36 SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 36 MBAE#)
Place of incorporation Registered/issued Principal activities/ Attributable equity
Company name and kind of legal entity ~ and paid-up capital place of operation interest of the Group
EMALBER R/ TEER/
INCES HEERER BIREHRER REWY KEEELER
31 December
12A318
2024 2023
20245 2023F
Indirectly owned: (Continued)
MEEs: (8)
Song Yun (Beijing) Information The PRC, Limited liability RMB10,000,000/ Technology services in 80% 80%
Service Co., Ltd.* company RMB10,000,000 Beijing
BSELR)ERRBAERAA HEl - BRAR AR%100000007/  BIERIESRATRE
AR 10,000,000 T
Xinyang Nanhong Property Service  The PRC, Limited liability RMB3,000,000/Nil Property management 100% 100%
Co., Ltd.* company Services in Henan
EEmRIEREER AR HE - BRAR ARE3000007T,/F RABEHSNEERRE
Henan Central China New Life The PRC, Limited liability RMB10,000,000/ Management Consulting 100% 100%
Business Management company RMB10,000,000 services in Henan Province
Co., Ltd.* (formerly known as
Henan Central China Jing
Yuecheng Commercial
Management Co., Ltd.)
WERENEEREERERAR HE ARAF ARE100000007/  RABEHSERZARS
(3178 : WERERNNEE AR 10,000,000 7T
ERERAR)
Linzhou Liuhe Property The PRC, Limited liability RMB3,000,000/ Property management 51% 51%
Management Co. Ltd.* company RMB3,000,000 Services in Henan
TR EERBBR AR HE - ERAR AR¥3,000,0007T,/ MBS NFERRE
AR 3,000,007
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(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (& S BHAIN  FrBESEUARETTH)
36 SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 36 MEBASE®)
Place of incorporation Registered/issued Principal activities/ Attributable equity
Company name and kind of legal entity ~ and paid-up capital place of operation interest of the Group
EMALBER B/ TEER/
INCES HEERER BIREHRER REHY FEEELER
31 December
12A318
2024 2023
20245 2023%F
Indirectly owned: (Continued)
HEEs: (2
Zhengzhou Jiaxiang Property The PRC, Limited liability RMBS3,000,000/ Property management 51% 51%
Management Co., Ltd.* company RMB3,000,000 services in Henan Province
BN ERNERBERAA HE - BRAF AR¥3,000,0007T,/ R EENFERRE
AR%3,000,0007
Jiyuan City Zhongbang The PRC, Limited liability RMB10,000,000/ Property management 51% 51%
Environmental Sanitation company RMB3,100,000 services in Henan Province
Co,, Ltd. *
ERM R RAREERAT HE - ERAR ARE100000007T/  RABAHSNEERRE
ARH3,100,0007
Taihua Jinye Life Service Co., Ltd.* ~ The PRC, Limited liability RMB50,000,000/ Property management 51% 51%
company RMBS5,000,000 services in Hebei Province
RERFEERBERAA e - BRAR ARES00000007T/  RALAHSNEERRE
AR 5,000,007
Luoyang Zhonghong Zhuoyue The PRC, Limited liability RMBS3,000,000/ Property management 51% 51%
Property Management company RMB3,000,000 services in Henan Province
Co, Ltd.*
RERLEEMEERERAR B BRAA AR¥3,000,0007T,/ RIBEEENZERRE
AR 3,000,007
Henan Jin Guanjia Property The PRC, Limited liability RMB10,000,000/ Property management 65% 65%
Management Co., Ltd.* company RMB1,000,000 Services in Henan Province
MEEERNEERERAR HE - ERAR ARE100000007T/  RABAHSNEERRE
AR 1,000,007
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(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (& 2B HAI - B S EUARETTH)
36 SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 36 MBAE#)
Place of incorporation Registered/issued Principal activities/ Attributable equity
Company name and kind of legal entity ~ and paid-up capital place of operation interest of the Group
EMALBER R/ TEER/
NRER HRERED BIREHEER Ty rEEEGER
31 December
12R31H
2024 2023
2024% 2023%F
Indirectly owned: (Continued)
HEEs: (2
Henan Jianye Vehicle Life The PRC, Limited liability RMB1,000,000/Nil Technology services in 93.33% 93.33%
Technology Co., Ltd.* company Henan Province
MERXEEERRERLA HE - ERAR ARB10000007L/F  RABREHSRIMHRS
Henan Central China New Life The PRC, Limited liability RMB20,000,000/ Tourism services in 100% 100%
Culture Tourism Operation company RMB2,000,000 Henan Province
Management Co., Ltd.*
MEREMEEXEEEEER $H ARAR ARB200000007/  RABEHSRERS
BRAF AR 2,000,007
Henan Central China Shared Home  The PRC, Limited liability RMB10,000,000/ Technology services in 100% 100%
Network Technology company RMB5,350,000 Henan Province
Co., Ltd.*
WEEELZFRBERAER  HE FRAF ARE00000007T,/  RAEEH SRR
A7) AR 5,350,007
Henan Jianye Tianming City Service  The PRC, Limited liability RMB30,000,000/ Property management 51% 51%
Co., Ltd. company RMB30,000,000 services in Henan Province
WERERRSTREERAR  HE - ARAF AREI00000007/  RABEEHESNEERRE
AR 30,000,000
Henan Zhicheng New Life Service  The PRC, Limited liability RMBS5,000,000/Nil Community value-added 100% =
Co., Ltd. company Services in Henan Province
WA EHE R R AR AR - ERAR AR%50000007T,/F  RAREHEHRISERS

d The English name of the subsidiaries represents the best effort
by the management of the Group in translating their Chinese

names as they do not have an official English name.

* MBARMNEXABARAEEEEERNH
RERXER  AREWEEHEEHR -

EEHMEFERRAR/ —2-MFFR
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37 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting
policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.
The consolidated financial statements are for the Group
consisting of the Company and its subsidiaries.

244

37.1 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting

(a)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including a structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are deconsolidated from the date that
control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the
Group (refer to Note 37.2).

Inter-company transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the
transferred asset. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and
equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, statement of changes in equity and
statement of financial position respectively.
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(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (S A& AN -

37 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

37.1 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (Continued)
(b) Associates

(c)

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control or joint
control. This is generally the case where the
Group holds between 20% and 50% of the
voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of
accounting (see Note 37.1 (c) below), after
initially being recognised at cost.

Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's
share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of
the investee in profit or loss, and the Group’s
share of movements in other comprehensive
income of the investee in other comprehensive
income. Dividends received or receivable from
associates are recognised as a reduction in the
carrying amount of the investment.

When the Group's share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds its
interest in the entity, including any other
unsecured long-term receivables, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on
behalf of the other entity. Unrealised gains on
transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group's interest in these entities.

Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
equity-accounted investees have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

fr 8 M B E R

FASBAARKFITE)
37 HttEEEXEBURBE @)

71 FRRARERETEE (HF)
(b)) HERA
prs

1B EIT HIE R A R HlRE R
FEER - ERAREAKRERE
20% £ 50% X RAEM T o IR
LRAIMNERERRAY SRR
AHEm & FOE(R T X
37.1(C)) BB ©

(c) #zm%

REBEEDEE  REMFRK
REER - HR&FLAABEARESR
R A SR B R R B T B
‘AMENER - ARREMEE
W ERANKERIGRERES
Hip2EK S - EUEE
WS R BN B ERSEER
BRREERRD o

i AN 5% B B A5 A 25 51 BR A B WO 1S
BERIEBENBERBNED
(B ¥ (E fa L 4t S 4530 & B B U
IR AIAKETemRE
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37 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

37.1 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (Continued)
(c) Equity method (Continued)
The carrying amount of equity-accounted
investments is tested for impairment in
accordance with the policy described in Note
37.8.

(d) Changes in ownership interests in
subsidiaries without change of control
The Group treats transactions with non-
controlling interests that do not result in a loss
of control as equity transactions with equity
owners of the Group. A change in ownership
interest results in an adjustment between the
carrying amounts of the controlling and non-
controlling interests to reflect their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference
between the amount of the adjustment to non-
controlling interests and any consideration paid
or received is recognised in a separate reserve
within equity attributable to owners of the
Group.

37.2 Business combinations
The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for all business combinations, regardless of
whether equity instruments or other assets are
acquired. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

o fair values of the assets transferred:;

. liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquired business;

o equity interests issued by the Group;

o fair value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement; and

o fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in
the subsidiary.

246 Central China New Life Limited / 2024 Annual Report

FBERBEAARET L)

7 HEEEXREBERBE @)

371 ZERARERSTTRE (F)

(c) % (H)
Ry E N REERENE
37 8 P R AR AETTIRME DRI A

(d) TEBZEHIESB KB L A
BREZSE
AEE BT EHREEH NI
ERAE s ) R 545 4 BN B A
REEANBRERS - FREHEE
o ) 528 B0 48 B A i B DR PR AR
BRI ARE(E 2 EIEHTE - A
R KA KT B A R AR R M A o
HIFTRESFL AR SRR
B A MBI HHE 2 A 1Y
ERZERRAEEEE AELE
= AR BB e FERR

37.2 £KE6t
RASHREABEE5EHAR
Enetr WEEa TASKEMEE -
FUEEM B A R EENRERE

s FMBREENANERE:

s  HRKBRBWAIEBAELD
aE:

o AREEBITHRE

s HIRUBLHEELENEMEE
FRBEHRAEE: &

o RRHIBRBME SRR RE
BAREE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr 8 M B E R

(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B SZB#HAEIN - FTBESBAARE FITE)

37 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

37.2 Business combinations (Continued)

37 HttEEEXEBURBE @)

37.2 X% &6t ()

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are, with limited exceptions, measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The
Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquired entity’'s net
identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
The excess of the:
o consideration transferred,

o amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquired entity, and

o acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts
are less than the fair value of the net identifiable
assets of the business acquired, the difference is
recognised directly in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is
deferred, the amounts payable in the future are
discounted to their present value as at the date of
exchange. The discount rate used is the entity’s
incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which a
similar borrowing could be obtained from an
independent financier under comparable terms and
conditions. Contingent consideration is classified
either as equity or a financial liability. Amounts
classified as a financial liability are subsequently
remeasured to fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss.
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37 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

37.2 Business combinations (Continued)
If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any
gains or losses arising from such remeasurement are
recognised in profit or loss.

37.3 Separate financial statements
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.

37.4 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker ("“CODM"). The
CODM, who is responsible for allocating resources
and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the executive
directors that makes strategic decisions.

248 Central China New Life Limited / 2024 Annual Report

37

FBERBEAARET L)

Hitn BEERNEBRME @)

37.2

37.3

37.4

EBa 0t (&)
HMEBEHDPEERET - WETIRE
FITH5 BB 77 B AR X W B B BR e
BERKBEHNAABEENAE -
ZEHFEELENTMREHEERR
1RSSR

BB HREk

K R R B Ty IR AN FNRR R (E
SRR - RABRIREERBHERA -
B AR FER AR RIRERRE
WA BARR ©

HRIMERBNIREEENREEB
BB A A1 B R A B AR B9 2 T W e
BE - IMZRERBILVBRERA
MREEBRBRREDEEFR (1
BE) R E M BHRAANEREE - R
R EIZERER B AEZFNH
BRAMREETRERNS -

72 BB &
LBEDHMNEZBRTAERNETRLER
RETETBERERERE]) IENAZ
EH M- TELERREARLE
DEHER DB R KRB CER
ERIELRBIERENATES -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr 8 M B E R

(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B SZB#HAEIN - FTBESBAARE FITE)

37 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY 37 HtEBESEAXETBEREE @)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

37.5 Foreign currency translation 37.5 HNEEH,

(a) Functional and presentation currency (@) DWERZEIEX

Items included in the financial statements of REFBRETENEREXTSYE
each of the Group's entities are measured using BEFAERELEMEIERER
the currency of the primary economic BEHNEE([ThEeE® ) stE - K
environment in which the entity operates (the RNETEHEZUARARNINGEE
“functional currency”). The Company is BT ([HBT]) BIEHRKEE
expecting to transact its future operating and Lt EEE c AR AEENTE
financing activities primarily in Hong Kong dollar EBNRFPBEER - RNEBRE
("HK$"), which is the Company’s functional AR 25| ARG M BHE -

currency. As the major operations of the Group
are within the PRC, the Group determined to
present its consolidated financial statements in

RMB.
(b) Transactions and balances (b) XZR#EE

Foreign currency transactions are translated GNEERx S5 FRIA R 5 B BRI THY
into the functional currency using the exchange EXRSEFTEEENGEERE
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions BNEEY  ZEIFEEESE
or valuation where items are re-measured. BIINE W 2 K1 - LA RIRF R
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting ERMEINETFENEREE
from the settlement of such transactions and &8 ERTE A MINE W= K EE
from the translation of monetary assets and BEPNEREPER -

liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at
year-end exchange rates are generally
recognised in profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate RS FRAB B R HNE W B 1E R
to borrowings are presented in the consolidated A ZEWER AR R E KT
statement of comprehensive income within ZEIE N 251 o A EH i 9NE Uk 25
finance costs — net. All other foreign exchange REBREEEEKRERANHE
gains and losses are presented in the b (E518) W5 B 2818 N %58
consolidated statement of comprehensive HEZ7 o

income on a net basis within other (losses)/

gains-net.
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37 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

37.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

250

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the
Group entities (none of which has the currency
of a hyper-inflationary economy) that have a
functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

o assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated
at the closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position;

° income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not
a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at
the rate on the dates of the transactions);
and

. all resulting currency translation
differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of any net investment in
foreign entities, and of borrowings and other
financial instruments designated as hedges of
such investments, are recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a foreign
operation is sold or any borrowings forming
part of the net investment are repaid, the
associated exchange differences are
reclassified to profit or loss, as part of the gain
or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign operation are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.

Central China New Life Limited / 2024 Annual Report

B BAARKFITE)
37 HttEEEXREBERBE @)

37.5 HMEEE R ()
(c) HKERA
M EMEZE-TRNME
SEER(HPUETMNERK
AaBREEERNEE) ) M
BRI BARAIRAT AR E
REYNEE

s REERBRWEENRA
BRZEERBERBHN
YT T =R S 48

o FBRBRNKRARMAXR
FE R % (BRIE% T
ERWIZER S H @
TEXNRBEZENSE
MUE: ErBEERT
WARRXAZER 2858
MEREH) &

. FEMLELMNEERAE
24819 1 2t 2 T Mok
HERR -

RREURARER  REFINE
BEMKEFHEANEERZE
REZEHHPBEENERREMES
BMTAELAMENZEREMS
s R - I B IRINETS
HEEAKIRE FE—BONE
A& RES - AERAIE L ZREH D
BEEs FAREREN &

BRI ERELNEERAT
BEABRASZRINEBNEE
REfE  WIRKRHEXRRE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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37 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

37.6 Property, plant and equipment

37 HttEEEXEBURBE @)

37.6 ¥ - MERRE

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of any
component accounted for as a separate asset is
derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
reporting period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate their cost, net of their residual
values, over their estimated useful lives as follows:

—  Vehicles 5 years
—  Equipment and furniture 3-5years
—  Machinery 5years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

An asset’'s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount.
These are included in profit or loss.

ME - BFE RRBRE L RARITE
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37 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

37.7 Intangible assets

252

(a)

(b)

Goodwill is measured as described in Note 37.2.
Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is
included in intangible assets. Goodwill is not
amortised but it is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that it might
be impaired, and is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Gains and
losses on the disposal of an entity include the
carrying amount of goodwill relating to the
entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units
("CGUs") for the purpose of impairment testing.
The allocation is made to those cash-generating
units or groups of cash-generating units that
are expected to benefit from the business
combination in which the goodwill arose. The
units or groups of units are identified at the
lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes, being the
operating segments.

Platform and know-how

Platform and know-how acquired in a business
combination is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. The contractual technology
has a finite useful life and is carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is
calculated using the straight-line method over
the expected life of 10 years for the technology.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr 8 M B E R

(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B SZB#HAEIN - FTBESBAARE FITE)

37 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY 37 HtEBESEAXETBEREE @)
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
37.7 Intangible assets (Continued) 37.7 B EE (&)

(c) oOrder-backlog and customer relationships (c) BRETEREFEHEFR
Order-backlog and customer relationships HEESAHPESHNERITE R
acquired in a business combination is FEFRAENKE R RRARER
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. R BRIIEREFEEAER
The order backlog and customer relationships BMRAIEAFE - AR AR 2
have a finite useful life and are carried at cost FHEEHTIER - MINE == 1578
less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is FHERF BN ESETE -

calculated using the straight-line method over
the expected life of 3 to 10 years.

(d) Other intangible assets (d EMEFEEE

Other intangible assets mainly include EEFEEEFTERETE#E
computer software. They are initially recognised B HRVIREBE RERELEDN
and measured at costs incurred to acquire and AR NGTE - HMWEFEE
bring them to use. Other intangible assets are RE=Z R F G R FHFE
amortised over their estimated useful lives of 3 NABEEE  RRTEEZE
to 5 years, using the straight-line method which BEARRE B MR TET BB
reflects the pattern in which the intangible o

asset’s future economic benefits are expected
to be consumed.

(e) Research and development (e) s
Research expenditures and development TREZEENHRS L RFARS
expenditures that do not meet the criteria are HAE R AR o SRl
recognised as an expense as incurred. REAYHRABKATSERR
Development costs previously recognised as an HIFRAEE °

expense are not recognised as an asset in a
subsequent period.
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37 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
37.8 Impairment of non-financial assets

254

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite
useful life are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment, or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that they
might be impaired. Other assets are tested for
impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
of disposal and value-in-use.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at the end of each reporting period.

37.9 Investments and other financial assets

(a) Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently
at fair value (either through other
comprehensive income, or through profit
or loss), and

o those to be measured at amortised cost.
The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing the financial

assets and the contractual terms of the cash
flows.
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37 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

37.9 Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Classification (Continued)

For assets measured at fair value, gains and
losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or
other comprehensive income. For investments
in debt instruments, this will depend on the
business model in which the investment is held.
For investments in equity instruments, this will
depend on whether the Group has made an
irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to present subsequent changes in
fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOCI).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when
and only when its business model for managing
those assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, the date
on which the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from the
financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit of loss (FVPL), transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Transaction costs of financial
assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit or
loss.
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37

256

SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
37.9 Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)
(c) Measurement (Continued)
Debt instruments
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group's business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are two
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

o Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Interest
income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Any gain
or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in other gains/(losses)-net
together with foreign exchange gains and
losses. Impairment losses are presented
as separate line item in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

o FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria
for amortised cost are measured at FVPL.
A gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at FVPL is
recognised in profit or loss and presented
net within other gains/(losses)-net in the
period in which it arises.
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37 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

37.9 Investments and other financial assets

(Continued)

(c) Measurement (Continued)
Equity instruments
The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group's
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to
profit or loss following the derecognition of the
investment. Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognised in profit or loss as
other income when the Group's right to receive
payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at
FVPL are recognised in other gains/(losses)-net in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as applicable.

(d) Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position where the Group
currently has a legally enforceable right to
offset the recognised amounts, and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

37.10 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of purchased inventory are
determined after deducting rebates and discounts.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

7 HitEEEXSTBRME @)

379 REREMEBMEE (/)

(c) =& (&)
#zmTA
FEBRBRANEBENENA
BARE - MAKBERERE
REAM 2 EKE2FIRAIRE N
N EERDRERE - AR EE
RRERTER A EERER
BREFODEERS - EAKE
FESZ U B B R IR RO RE B - 5%
ERENRBEBENBET HER
REAYA

NARBEAEYFABENS
BEENAAEEEIRNGEE
HRER AN E s (EE)
FE (AR ) PR

(d) #H#FELMTA
EAREE B A AEAE R NITHER
ARHEEREE  LERRF
BMEEGEIRBEREENRG
HRER  SREENMAGBTE
R YREEEEARBRRT
WEHFE -

3710 78
FERKARAIERFE_EPHR
K& AR - B8 B 77 &5 AR Bk B30
RTB&EE - IZBRFENERE
EBBRETNGTEEMNMRERESD
TR AN RIETHHEFTE 2 BFTACAS o

BEFEEERAT / B IEFR 257




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fma BRI

(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (38 tREIN -

37 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY

258

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
37.11Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for merchandise sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business. They are generally due
for settlement within 12 months (or within the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer) and
therefore all classified as current.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the
amount of consideration that is unconditional unless
they contain significant financing components, in
which case they are recognised at fair value. The
Group holds the trade receivables with the objective
to collect the contractual cash flows and therefore
measures them subsequently at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. See Note 19 for further
information about the Group’s accounting for trade
receivables and Note 3.1.2 for a description of the
Group’s impairment policies.

37.12Cash and cash equivalents

In the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents includes cash on hand and deposits held
at call with financial institutions.

37.13Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the Company’s
ordinary shares (treasury shares), the consideration
paid, including any directly attributable incremental
costs (net of income taxes) is deducted from equity
attributable to the Company’s shareholders until the
shares are cancelled or reissued. Where such shares
are subsequently reissued, any consideration
received, net of any directly attributable incremental
transaction costs and the related income tax effects,
is included in equity attributable to the Company’s
shareholders.
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37 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
37.14Trade and other payables

37 HttEEEXEBURBE @)

3714 E 5 K E MR RRIR

Trade and other payables represent liabilities for
goods and services provided to the Group prior to the
end of financial year which are unpaid. These
amounts are classified as current liabilities unless
payment is not due within 12 months after the
reporting period. They are recognised initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

37.15Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in
profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using
the effective interest method. Fees paid on the
establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is
probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-
down occurs. To the extent that there is no evidence
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will
be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a
prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over
the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the contract is extinguished, cancelled or
expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of a financial liability that has been extinguished or
transferred to another party and the consideration
paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or
liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as
other income or finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless,
at the end of the reporting period, the Group has a
right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting period.

All borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they are incurred.
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37 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

37.16 Current and deferred income tax
The income tax expense or credit for the period is the
tax payable on the current period’s taxable income
based on the applicable income tax rate for each
jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax
assets and liabilities attributable to temporary
differences and to unused tax losses.

260

(a)

(b)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period in the countries where the
Company and its subsidiaries and associates
operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected
to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using
the liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they
arise from the initial recognition of goodwill.
Deferred income tax is also not accounted for if
it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss and does not give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period and
are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.
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37 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

37.16 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)
(b) Deferred income tax (Continued)

37 HttEEEXEBURBE @)

37.16 BNHA R IR FE Fr 5 i (48)
(b) EFEFTEH (&)

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be
available against which the temporary
difference can be utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not
recognised for temporary differences between
the carrying amount and tax bases of
investments in foreign operations where the
company is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax assets and liabilities and
when the deferred tax balances relate to the
same taxation authority. Current tax assets and
tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a
legally enforceable right to offset and intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit
or loss, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.
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37 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

37.17 Employee benefits

262

(a)

(b)

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including
nonmonetary benefits and accumulating annual
leave that are expected to be settled wholly
within 12 months after the end of the period in
which the employees render the related service
are recognised in respect of employees’
services up to the end of the reporting period
and are measured at the amounts expected to
be paid when the liabilities are settled. The
liabilities are presented as current employee
benefit obligations in the statement of financial
position.

Pension obligations

The Group only operate defined contribution
pension plans. In accordance with the rules and
regulations in the PRC, the PRC based
employees of the Group participate in various
defined contribution retirement benefit plans
organised by the relevant municipal and
provincial governments in the PRC under which
the Group and the PRC based employees are
required to make monthly contributions to
these plans calculated as a percentage of the
employees’ salaries. The municipal and
provincial governments undertake to assume
the retirement benefit obligations of all existing
and future retired PRC based employees’
payable under the plans described above. Other
than the monthly contributions, the Group has
no further obligation for the payment of
retirement and other post-retirement benefits
of its employees. The assets of these plans are
held separately from those of the Group in
independently administrated funds managed by
the governments.
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37 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

37.17 Employee benefits (Continued)
(b) Pension obligations (Continued)

(c)

The Group also participates in a retirement
benefit scheme under the rules and regulations
of the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
Ordinance (“MPF Scheme”) for all employees
in Hong Kong. The contributions to the MPF
Scheme are based on minimum statutory
contribution requirement of the lower of 5% of
eligible employees’ relevant aggregate income
and HK$1,500. The assets of this MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in
independently administered funds.

The Group's contributions to the defined
contribution retirement scheme are expensed
as incurred.

Housing funds, medical insurances and
other social insurances

Employees of the Group in the PRC are entitled
to participate in various government-supervised
housing funds, medical insurances and other
social insurance plan. The Group contributes on
a monthly basis to these funds based on certain
percentages of the salaries of the employees,
subject to certain ceiling. The Group's liability
in respect of these funds is limited to
the contributions payable in each year.
Contributions to the housing funds, medical
insurances and other social insurances are
expensed as incurred.
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37 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

37.17 Employee benefits (Continued)

264

(d)

(e)

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the Group before
the normal retirement date, or whenever an
employee accepts voluntary redundancy in
exchange for these benefits. The Group
recognises termination benefits at the earlier of
the following dates: (a) when the Group can no
longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; and
(b) when the entity recognises costs for a
restructuring that is within the scope of HKAS
37 and involves the payment of termination
benefits. In the case of an offer made to
encourage voluntary redundancy, the
termination benefits are measured based on
the number of employees expected to accept
the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12
months after the end of the reporting period
are discounted to their present value.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the statement of financial
position date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the
time of leave.

37.18 Share-based payments
Share-based compensation benefits are provided to
employees via the Pre-IPO Employee Share Option
Plan in 2019 and Share Award Scheme in 2023.
Information relating to the schemes is set out in Note

25.
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37 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

37.18 Share-based payments (Continued)

37 HttEEEXEBURBE @)

3718 AR RET VS ()

Employee options

The fair value of options granted under the Pre-IPO
Employee Share Option Plan and Share Award
Scheme is recognised as an employee benefits
expense with a corresponding increase in equity. The
total amount to be expensed is determined by
reference to the fair value of the options granted:

— including any market performance conditions
(e.g. the entity’s share price);

— excluding the impact of any service and
nonmarket performance vesting conditions (e.g.
profitability, sales growth targets and remaining
an employee of the entity over a specified time
period); and

— including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (e.g. the requirement for employees
to save or holdings shares for a specific period
of time).

The total expense is recognised over the vesting
period, which is the period over which all of the
specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the
end of each period, the Group revises its estimates of
the number of options that are expected to vest
based on the non-market vesting and service
conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to
original estimates, if any, in profit or loss, with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.
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37 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY

266

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
37.19Provisions

Provisions for legal claims, service warranties and
make good obligations are recognised when the
Group has a present legal or constructive obligation
as a result of past events, it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even
if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one
item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period. The discount rate used to
determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the liability. The
increase in the provision due to the passage of time
is recognised as interest expense.

37.20Interest income

Interest income from financial assets at FVPL is
included in the net fair value gains/(losses) on these
assets.

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost
calculated using the effective interest method, except
for those are held for cash management purposes, is
recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as “other income”.

Interest income is presented as finance income

where it is earned from financial assets that are held
for cash management purposes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr 8 M B E R
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37 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
37.21Leases 3721 E

37 HttEEEXEBURBE @)

The Group as a lessee

The Group leases various properties. Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide
range of different terms and conditions. The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants, but leased
assets may not be used as security of borrowing
purpose.

A lease is recognised as a right-of-use asset (Note 26)
and corresponding liability at the date of which the
leased asset is available for use by the Group. Each
lease payment is allocated between the liability and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or
loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability for each period. The right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the lease term on a straight-line
basis.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease
payments:

(@ fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

(b) variable lease payments that are based on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the
index or rate as at the commencement date;

(c) amounts expected to be payable by the lessee
under residual value guarantees;

(d) the exercise price of a purchase option if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise that
option;

(e) Lease payments to be made under reasonably
certain extension options if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

(fy)  payment of penalties for terminating of the
lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee
exercising that option.
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37 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
37.21Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in
the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is
used, being the rate that the individual lessee would
have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain
an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a
similar economic environment with similar terms,
security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the
Group:

(@ where possible, uses recent third-party
financing received by the individual lessee as a
starting point, adjusted to reflect changes in
financing conditions since third party financing
was received;

(b)  uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-
free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for
leases held by the Group, which does not have
recent third party financing; and

(c) makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g.
term, country, currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or
loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising
the following:

(@ the amount of the initial measurement of the
lease liability;

(b) any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received,

(c) anyinitial direct cost; and

(d)  restoration costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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37 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY 37 HiBEEXEBREE @)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

37.21Leases (Continued) 7.1 FE (E)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) AEFERBRBEA (&)
Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over FTREEERTEEERNA{EBFEHE
the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease REHANREERERENE - W
term on a straight-line basis. If the Group is AEEAERESITEEERERE
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the FREESEEHBEEMNFRFH
right-of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying NEHRITE -

asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases and all HEOHHAEEREEEENES
leases of low-value assets are recognised on a NI EGEERNERTER AR
straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. X o MEEEREBAI2@ANKAT
Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 WHE RKEBEEEEREEIBEK
months or less. Low-value assets comprise staff INMESER R ©

dormitories and small items of office furniture.

The Group as a sublease lessor KEBERZHAHEA

Sub-lease is a transaction for which an underlying HEEABA(TIHEEHEA D) KHEH

asset is re-leased by a lessee (“sublease lessor”) to EEFBHBETFE=F MELHEAHR

a third party, and the lease (“head lease”) between EBEAZENEE((EHEDDAEX

the head lessor and lessee remains in effect. In MRS e EnoMoEm  2FEEEA

classifying a sublease, a sublease lessor shall classify AR TS ES Ao EemEM
the sublease as a finance lease or an operating lease EKEREE -

as follows:

(@) If the head lease is a short-term lease that the @ WMEREREHBE  EAEA
entity, as a lessee, has accounted for the lease ANEREEEZEHEEHNNE
payments associated with those leases as an ENFAREERRNZRBESR AKX
expense on either a straight-line basis over the H i Z g 2 ABRYIVER X -
lease term or another systematic basis, the ZNMBRBAKERE -
sublease shall be classified as an operating
lease.

(b)  Otherwise, the sublease shall be classified by b ‘A HHELBRIHEEESE
referenced to the right-of-use asset arising from ZIEREEE D BAREHRES
the head lease as finance lease or operating KERE -
lease.

37.22Dividend distribution 37.22 R E DK

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend R EH R Z A E T IREBERIRE

declared, being appropriately authorised and no BRI AD R 2 EABRESRE (ELB

longer at the discretion of the entity, on or before the BEHEBETEHERERNSRE)EL

end of the reporting period but not distributed at the FEAE o

end of the reporting period.
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37 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

270

(Continued)

37.23 Government grants
Grants from the government are recognised at their
fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that
the grant will be received and the Group will comply
with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income over the period necessary to
match them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.

37.24Earnings per share
()  Basic earnings per share is calculated by
dividing:

the profit attributable to shareholders of
the Company, excluding any costs of
servicing equity other than ordinary
shares.

by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the
financial year, adjusted for bonus
elements in ordinary shares issued during
the year and excluding treasury shares.

(i) Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures
used in the determination of basic earnings per
share to take into account:

the after-income tax effect of interest and
other financing costs associated with
dilutive potential ordinary shares, and

the weighted average number of
additional ordinary shares that would
have been outstanding assuming the
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares.
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MEBTHEE

A summary of the consolidated results and of the consolidated 7<% E3% T~ 3 B iift ELE 45 BU 49 3@ =5 PO (@ B B 4 2
assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests of the Group for HGAEENGEEEE - BENMIEIERERAO
the last four financial years prepared on the basis hereunder  Z4T :

stated is as set out below:

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS BA¥ES
For the year ended 31 December
BZ12ANABLEE
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020

2024 5 20234 2022 £ 2021 4 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFT AREFT ARETT ARETT

Revenue WA 2,952,227 2844655 3148141 3598918 2,654,499
Profit/(loss) before taxation B RTAE,/ (BE) 358,931 (696,175) 759,180 826,054 556,909
Income tax (expenses)/credit R (%), #e (120,759) 118,269 (188,016) (172,666) (116,165)
Profit/(loss) for the year FRFE/ (E8) 238,172 (577,906) 571,164 653,388 440,744
Attributable to: PATRFEL

Equity shareholders of the Company AR RIEZKR 214,594 (574,369) 562,260 619,559 426,587

Non-controlling interests IR iER 23,578 (3,537) 8,904 33,829 14,157
Earnings/(loss) per share AN/ (EE)

(expressed in RMB per share) (UEBRAREZS))
— Basic — &K 0.17 (0.45) 044 049 038
— Diluted — &5 0.17 (0.45) 0.44 048 0.37
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MEBHEE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL POSITION FEEMTAR

As at 31 December
R12A318
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
2024 F 20234 2022F 20214 2020F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETT

Assets &
Non-current assets ERBHEE 706,985 690,956 506,206 451,809 222,865
Current assets MEEE 4,019,976 4160122  4,828602 4585171 4,027,114
Total assets EEHAE 4,726,961 4851078 5334808 5036980 4,249,979
Liabilities 8
Non-current liabilities FRBEE 179,196 138,798 152,272 155,509 64,747
Current liabilities mEaE 2,558,392 2,549,931 2123417 1,824,943 1,467,882
Total liabilities SEHE 2,737,588 2,688,729 2275689 1980452 1,532,629
Net assets EEFE 1,989,373 2,162,349 3,059,119 3056528 2,717,350
Equity B
Total equity attributable to

shareholders of the Company ANAIRREGERAE 1,863,154 2054783 2942564 2954233 2,691,344
Non-controlling interests Eae g 126,219 107,566 116,555 102,295 26,006
Total equity EReE 1,989,373 2162349 3059119 3056528 2,717,350
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